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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”)
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents
of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Leason CBM & Shale Gas Group Company Limited
(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and that there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website at www.hkgem.com for
at least seven days from the date of its publication.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
2 ) filj or

China Leason CBM & Shale Gas Group Company Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) currently conduct
the business of manufacture and sales of liquefied coalbed gas whose
operations are located in the PRC. The Company was incorporated
in Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability in
July 2002 and was initially listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12 August
2008.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of exploitation,
liquefaction production and sales of natural gas in the PRC.
Headquartered in Beijing. The Group’s production of liquefied coalbed
gas is in Shanxi Qinshui Basin which boasts the richest liquefied
coalbed gas, while its distribution network extends to Shanxi,
Guangxi and Guangdong Provinces, etc.

In order to stabilise our natural gas supply and hence raise the
utilisation of our liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) plant, the Group has
made significant investment in resources exploration and exploitation
at the coalbed methane blocks located in Yangcheng, Shanxi, since
July 2011. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had successfully
supplied gas to the LNG plant. The commercial production of coalbed
gas has transformed our Group into a vertically integrated natural
gas company and continued to enhance our leading position in
China’s unconventional gas market.

The Group will adhere to the principle of “social responsibility is of
overriding importance” while exploring and developing in the new
energy sector with an aim to provide the world with high-quality clean
energy and keep improving and promoting the harmonious
coexistence of man and nature.

FEBEREREEREXEEERAR K
HIfB AR (M AEE]) BRiER g
BIEREREERBEER - ARAR_-F
T_ELAEHESREEMNIAERRE
[RAR]  ARAFRBRMOR —FE=F\A+=
BYIXEBEHAERXZMARRRAIRER
(TRIZER]) £ e

AEBB R EERPBEEERARFR R
EEEMHERS - NEBE 2 AFRNL
R o REBRBRICKR B RAEERIR B
BERRARZEENILFKAEM  HEXK
BEIA - EA - BRFH -

RESEABENAARMEURSH MR
fERAR ([BIERAR]) THROFAE - 5
ZE——F AR AKERIL ARG AR
EREMNERBGRRARIEELKER
& BEIEE-T—=F+-A=+—H'B
ERMBIERARIHESR - KERNEHE
GFEERASRENAREE —BIEHNRARA
7] WEBERBMETRBRIETHRRAART
SR B I HAL ©

AEERAZ HEEESN N ITIERE
B BHEHERBATHRZMER - B
ABRHEEENFRLR - FHENS e
A B R FIRE KA

6 CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the audited financial results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

OVERALL BUSINESS REVIEW

After years of development, we have achieved the goal of turning
ourselves into a vertically integrated natural gas producer with
complete value chain businesses. We have established a complete
business process covering CBM extraction, liquefaction, pipelines
and highway transportation, distribution network and technical
services. As at 31 December 2013, we have completed the ground
work and drilling of 228 wells in the Yangcheng gas block which
resulted in stable increase of the number of production wells and
gas output. The gas supply pipeline connecting Yangcheng gas block
Huiyang Company (“Huiyang Company”) and Qinshui Shuntai LNG
Plant was constructed and put into operation. As Huiyang Company
started supply of CBM extracted by it to Qinshui Shuntai LNG Plant,
the plant is able to secure more stable gas supply and ready to
further improve its utilisation and production cost structure. The
supply constraints are gradually unleashing, and we will continue to
focus on improving output of production wells and constructing new
wells in 2014.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
B £

EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION
BUSINESS REVIEW

During 2013, the construction of new wells was somewhat impacted
by our focus on improving capabilities of production wells. However,
the unremitting efforts of the management resulted in encouraging
progress in the construction of new wells. As at 31 December 2013,
we have completed the ground work and drilling of a total of 228
wells, of which 138 wells were producing gas. The gas output volume
of the existing production wells amounts to 800 cubic metre per day
per well on average. In addition, the gas supply pipeline connecting
the gas block and the LNG plant was constructed and put into
operation. The Group has started to generate revenue, profit and
cash flow from the business of exploitation of natural gas, and its
profitability and cash flow position will be further improved as the
number and capabilities of production wells further increase.

LNG BUSINESS REVIEW

The shortage of gas supply in the whole LNG industry in Shanxi,
including ourselves, has not yet improved significantly, which resulted
in a lower utilisation rate of our Qinshui Shuntai LNG plant. However,
we made efforts to resume the supply of gas from China United
Coalbed Mathane Co. Ltd. (FE € R AR EE R A (“China
United”) during 2013. In addition, Qinshui Shuntai LNG plant has
started to receive gas supply from Yangcheng gas block and its
utilisation rate has improved gradually as the gas supply pipeline
was constructed and put into operation. Qinshui Shuntai LNG plant
is expected to turn loss into profit in 2014.

FAHRREERKDRE

BAZT—=—FRABOBNHRET RS
EEHMERL  FIHOERSZI—TERE
M2 BEEEENTEREAT #iHE
BEARMB T ERERE  BIE—F—=F
TZA=+—H1t AEEBREHTKT
208N IERFAMMME M T RITH  He -
REHEE A1380 - RAMNATHIHZF
HEH HRERESTRE00 5K - R
HAAREREBRIEAARIHNEEHLE
BRERTEWRAET  ARERBEHEBAKR
ARFAREBESKE - BARBERE
BEAEFBENLINMELNE — PR
Ft - AEENBFE DR S RIBRGHE—
HHE o

RAL R AR E TS [ BE

AR ERBRICRARITE (BREMED)
FIR R E RN RBARRE - EEI
PIRL FOO 7K NBZR AL R AR R B A B & A
K- BERMANZHT  —F—=FTEIK
BTHBRERBEREELR ([HE]) B
RoRE BEEBRERNTIXRARL
R B RARERN R RE LR
WIKIBZRRERAR T - EeFI A RE L
R’ T —HFNKIBRRIERAR IR
BEERERE -

8 CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

MARKETING BUSINESS REVIEW

After years of development, the Group has developed a diversified
customer base comprising industrial, commercial and resident
customers and established complete distribution channel and
network. In addition, we have also taken different measures to
maximise the profitability of our gas sale. During 2013, we used
different sales mix and flexibly selected various equipment such as
pipeline, cylinder group, gas station and skid-mounted equipment
to sell gas to our customers. With commencement of the related
work , we will be able to reduce the uncertainty in future natural gas
sales and optimise our sales mix, i.e. shifting towards a balanced
mix from a residential user dominated mix. We will strive to ramp up
the business progressively in 2014, and contribute more earnings to
the Group.

EMPHASISE ON TECHNOLOGIES
ADVANCEMENT

In order to ensure the smooth development of our exploration and
production business, the continuous improvement of technologies
and to maintain our leading position in technological advancement,
we actively worked with research institutes to build and expand our
professional technical team, so as to provide professional and
advanced technical services to our exploration and liquefaction
production business. In the future, we will be investing heavily in
developing and advancing our CBM extraction technology and
techniques.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
B £

OUTLOOK

At present, demand for natural gas is increasing in China with huge
growth potential. As pollution is worsening in China, governments
at all levels are placing more emphasis on development of clean
energy, which shows great potential in further development,
recognising the rising advocacy of safer — especially under the recent
nuclear power crisis — and cleaner energy. However, the existing
conventional natural gas production is unlikely to satisfy China’s
strong demand of natural gas in the coming years; and we believe
that it is inevitable that the PRC government would need to encourage
the unconventional gas production. With all the favourable policies
and measures in place, there is no doubt that the Company, as a
leading CBM company, will gain major benefits. We will seize this
opportunity to grow our CBM business on a long term sustainable
basis and would try our very best to maximise our shareholders’
investment return.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our team for all
their hard work in the past years for turning the Group a better
enterprise than | have ever seen. Going forward, | believe that our
team will pay more efforts in making the Group a leading enterprise
in China’s CBM industry.

Wang Zhong Sheng
Chairman

28 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a consolidated turnover of approximately
RMB187,184,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013,
representing an increase of approximately 1.82% compared with
that of the corresponding period in 2012. The increase was mainly
attributable to:

(i)

the liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) plant in Qinshui County, Shanxi
Province was shut down for major overhaul between February
2012 and April 2012. However, the production has increased
compared with the previous year as the equipment was
operating under normal capacity for the year ended 31
December 2013, therefore operating income generated from
sales of liquefied coalbed gas and sales of piped natural gas
have increased by approximately RMB717,000 and
RMB9,273,000 respectively. As the income generated from
liquefied coalbed gas has increased, in order to meet the
demand for the Group’s logistic services, we cut back the
external sales of logistics services for the year ended 31
December 2013 which offset the increase in sales of liquefied
coalbed gas during the same period.

The Group recorded gross loss of approximately RMB24,285,000
for the year ended 31 December 2013, mainly attributable to:

due to the increase in the production of liquefied coalbed gas,
the production cost of liquefied coalbed gas was lowered,
resulting in the decrease in gross loss of approximately
RMB4,176,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 as
compared with that of the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Group recorded a loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 of approximately
RMB271,440,000 compared with that of approximately
RMB55,130,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012. The reasons
for the loss are as follows:

(0

the decrease of approximately RMB50,975,000 in other revenue
and net income to approximately RMB4,686,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2013 as a result of not receiving any
monetary compensation income to for the shortage of electricity
supply in the industrial zone for the Year;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

O PHLE i i B S e

(i) the loss of approximately RMB163,000,000 arising from
impairment on goodwill of our operation of coalbed methane
exploration and development, natural gas liquefaction and LNG
distribution;

(i) the loss of approximately RMB25,000,000 arising from an
impairment on intangible assets as a result of the difficult
operating environment that has lasted since 2010 in Guangxi
Province, the PRC;

(iv)  Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy Development Company Limited,
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a conditional finance lease agreement in relation to the sale
and lease of equipment with CIMC Capital Limited and a total
lease consideration of RMB114,570,000 (subject to
adjustments) for a term of 36 months by monthly installments,
therefore, it led to an increase of approximately RMB10,731,000
in finance charges on obligations under finance lease to
approximately RMB11,677,000 for the Year; and

(v) the interest expenses on bank and other borrowings wholly
repayable within five years increased from approximately
RMB6,113,000 to approximately RMB15,010,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2013 as a result of the increased in bank
and other borrowings due with one year increased from
approximately RMB110,600,000 to approximately
RMB162,751,000 during the Year.

The property, plant and equipment increased from approximately
RMB601,503,000 to approximately RMB782,941,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2013. It was mainly contributed to the
completion of construction work of gas pipeline placement works,
CBM wells and relevant machineries during the Year.

The balance of prepayment relating to construction expenses
increased from approximately RMB71,068,000 to approximately
RMB123,373,000 during the year ended 31 December 2013, which
are mainly constituted by the prepaid expenses on ground work,
drilling and pipeline placement for CBM wells.

The balance of the Group’s trade and other payables increased
significantly by approximately RMB76,972,000 during the year ended
31 December 2013. This was mainly attributable to the increased in
property, plant and equipment as a result of Group’s focus on natural
gas exploration and extraction business in 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT
PROSPECTS

Resources and reserves

Yangcheng Huiyang New Energy Development Company Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “Huiyang New Energy”) has interest in
certain coalbed methane (CBM) properties located at Shanxi
Province, the PRC. These CBM properties are located at various
coal mine areas owned by Shanxi Yangcheng Yangtai Group Industrial
Company Limited. Huiyang New Energy is a joint venture company
and 60% of its equity interests is held by one of the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

The Company has engaged an independent, US-licensed natural
gas reserve engineer, the Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc.
(“NSAI"), to evaluate the CBM properties reserves as of 31 March
2012. The Yangcheng area is approximately 96 km? in the Shanxi
Province, the PRC. Development within the Yangcheng gas block is
focused on the #3 and #15 coal seams.

The results of the NSAI reserve evaluation as of 31 March 2012 are
summarised as follows:

1. Total original gas in place of 272.4 BCF on all blocks

2. Net 3P (Proved + Probable + Possible) reserves of 205 BCF

3. Net 2P (Proved + Probable) reserves of 27.7 BCF

4.  Net 1P (Proved) reserves of 3.5 BCF

Gas volumes are expressed in billion of cubic feet (BCF) at standard
temperature and pressure bases.

The reserves show in the above table are estimates only and should
not be construed as exact quantities. Proved reserves are those
quantities of oil and gas which, by analysis of engineering and
geoscience data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty to be
commercially recoverable; probable and possible reserves are those
additional reserves which are sequentially less certain to be recovered
that proved reserves. Estimates of reserves may increase or decrease
as a result of market conditions, future operations, changes in
regulations, or actual reservoir performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Natural gas exploration and extraction:

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has already completed the
ground work and drilling of 228 CBM wells, of which 138 wells were
in production. The average gas production volume of the existing
wells ready for immediate gas output is 800 cubic metres per day.
The number of wells drilled was slightly below our previous
expectation as the Group was focus on increasing the output of
production and the stability of gas output. The Board expects to
accelerate the drilling program in 2014. The Group expects to
complete the ground work and drilling of 70 CBM wells during 2014
and a total of 298 CBM wells by the end of 2014. The average gas
production volume of the existing production wells is 800 cubic
metres per day per well. The Group expects its overall gas output to
exceed 200,000 cubic metres per day by the end of 2014. As the
construction of the Group’s natural gas pipelines for delivery of gas
from the Yangcheng gas block to the Qinshui Shuntai LNG plant has
been completed and put into operation, the utilisation rate of Qinshui
Shuntai LNG plant is expected to significantly improve in the future.

Liquefaction operation:

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s LNG production capacity was
500,000 cubic metres per day. However, due to the tight supply of
domestic natural gas within China, the Group experienced difficulty
in sourcing enough natural gas feed for its downstream liquefaction
purpose. Therefore, the utilisation of the Group’s LNG plants was
relatively low and unsatisfactory. However, the above situation has
been improved as the production volume of Huiyang New Energy
increased. Furthermore, in order to ensure the efficient and safety
operation of our equipment, the Group suspended the operation of
the LNG plant for an overhaul for the period during which the Group
did not secure sufficient gas feed. After the overhaul, the Group
expects the LNG plant to become more efficient and cost effective,
which will increase the revenue, profit and cashflow contribution to
the Group in 2014 because of the increase in our self-produced gas
production supply.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Marketing and sales:

The Group has developed the vertical integration structure to supply
LNG from its LNG plant in Qinshui County, Shanxi Province through
its own distribution pipes and through the distribution network in
Henan, Hebei and Guangxi provinces to its customers in surrounding
areas. The vertical integration structure can reduce the risk of gas
supply disruption and increase profit margins. After years of
development, the Group has developed a diversified customer base
comprising industrial, commercial and resident customers and
established complete distribution channel and network. In addition,
we have also taken different measures to maximise the profitability
of our gas sale. During the Year, we used different sales mix and
flexibly selected various equipment such as pipeline, cylinder group,
gas station and skid-mounted equipment to sell gas to our
customers. With commencement of the related work , we will be
able to reduce the uncertainty in future natural gas sales and optimise
our sales mix, i.e. shifting towards a balanced mix from a residential
user dominated mix. We will strive to ramp up the business
progressively in 2014, and contribute more earnings to the Group.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had net assets of approximately
RMB820,749,000, including cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB17,656,000. To minimise financial risks, the Group
implements stringent financial and risk management strategies and
avoids the use of highly-geared financing arrangements. The Group’s
gearing ratio, calculated by the Group’s total external borrowings
divided by its shareholders’ fund, was approximately 12% for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 11%).

The Group is opportunistic in obtaining financing to further improve
the cash position given that the natural gas drilling program is capital
intensive. If the Group has adequate financing in the future (whether
it is from internal cash flow due to increased gas sales, or from fund
raising), the Group will accelerate the drilling program. Apart from
the intended investment in upstream CBM exploration and extraction,
the Group does not have any other plan for acquisition or investment,
disposal or scale-down of any current business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Employees

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has an aggregate of 509
employees, of which 78 are research and development staff, 245
are engineering and customer service staff, 165 administrative staff
and 21 marketing staff. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
the staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration and share-based
payment) was approximately RMB27,168,000 (2012: approximately
RMB24,834,000).

The salary and bonus policy of the Group is principally determined
by the performance of the individual employee. The Group will, on
an ongoing basis, provides opportunity for professional development
and training to its employees.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
the Directors and eligible employees.

Risk in Foreign Exchange

The group entities collect most of the revenue and incur most of
expenditures in their respective functional currencies. The Directors
consider that the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange is
insignificant as the majority of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in the functional currency of each individual group entity.

Significant Investment, Material Acquisitions and
Disposal of Subsidiaries and Associated
Companies

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no significant
investment, material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies by the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK

The Board believes that the Company will sustain long term
development and maintain its leading position in China’s natural gas
market given its vertical integration business structure that reduces,
or eliminates risks in gas supply, gas price fluctuation and earning
visibility. According to the 12th Five-Year Plan for the period from
2011 to 2015 promulgated by the PRC government, natural gas
users in China will increase by 100 million to a total of 250 million.
On the nationwide gas market basis, the Group has observed
inadequate gas supply in general that has rendered midstream gas
processing companies in the market in an adverse operating
environment causing low utilisation and ongoing loss. Unlike most
of the above midstream gas processing companies whose business
models only focus on certain areas of the gas production or supply
chain, the Group has its own gas production in upstream operation
which enhance the Group’s self sufficiency in gas supply to the
midstream LNG plants and downstream gas sales and distribution,
and therefore reducing the gas supply risk in the long run. The current
situation of gas supply inadequacy and the consequential loss arising
from operations are just temporary and it is likely that the business
will turn profitable and show phenomenal growth in the near future
as the Group accelerates its gas production and the rising trend of
the price of LNG in the PRC continues.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Furthermore, the Group, with its own gas supply, is less affected by
gas price fluctuation in the international natural gas market. Moreover,
gas price increases in the international market would in fact make
our gas products and supply more competitive and increase our
profit margin given our lower operation cost resulting from our full
participation in the natural gas value chain. The Group believes that
its revenue and profit will increase in the long run. More importantly,
the vertical integration strategy would enable the Group to sustain
long term development and become a strong market leader. After a
series of corporate restructuring, the Group believes that the buildout
of the Group’s vertical integration structure is almost complete and
now it is high time for the Group to move to the second stage - the
growing phase. The Group expects to turn the business into profitable
in the near future. On the upstream exploration and production front,
the number of wells ready for gas output would increase and the
daily production per well would rise as the wells become more mature.
On the other hand, the construction of the pipelines that transport
gas to the LNG plants in Qinshui County from the Group’s own gas
fields has been essentially completed, and China United has resumed
gas supply since mid-November 2013 increasing gas supply by
approximately 200,000 cubic metre per day. Since then, the Group
can increase its own LNG plants utilisation and thus to reduce loss
by feeding more self-produced gas to the LNG plants. More
importantly, the utilisation of the downstream LNG transportation
trunks and the storage facilities would also increase. As the gas
price increases, demand for gas in China remains strong and the
Group’s supply constraints unleash, the Group expects the gas sales
in 2014 to grow significantly and the profitability to improve
substantially. In the near future, the Group will mainly focus on
upstream CBM exploration and production on the existing CBM
assets. Meanwhile, the Group will be opportunistic in value-accretive
upstream gas asset acquisition, if any.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Application of Corporate Governance
Principles

The Group is committed to promoting good corporate
governance, with the objectives of (i) the maintenance of
responsible decision making, (ii) the improvement in
transparency and disclosure of information to shareholders,
(iii) the continuance of respect for the rights of shareholders
and the recognition of the legitimate interests of shareholders,
and (iv) the improvement in crisis management and the
enhancement of performance by the Group. The Group has
applied the principles set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules with these objectives in mind.

Promulgation of Company’s Corporate
Governance Code

To this end, the Group has promulgated a set of code on
corporate governance (the “Company Code”) which sets out
the corporate standards and practices used by the Group to
direct and manage its business affairs. It is prepared by
reference to the principles, code provisions and recommended
best practices set out in the Code, which came into effect on
1 January 2005. In addition to formalising existing corporate
governance principles and practices, the Company Code also
serves the purpose of assimilating existing practices with
benchmarks prescribed by the Code and ultimately ensuring
high transparency and accountability to the Group’s
shareholders.

Compliance of Company Code and the code
provisions under the Code (the “Code
Provisions™)

The Group has complied with all provisions in the Company Code
and the Code Provisions under the Code during the year ended
31 December 2013 save for code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1 of
the Code, details of the derivation and reason for derivation
are set out in the paragraphs headed "Chairman and Chief
Executive" and "Appointment term of Non-executive Directors"
of this corporate governance report.

The Company Code contains all the Code Provisions of the
Code and other provisions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than those as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings and code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors as set out in the Company’s code
of conduct for the year 2018.

BOARD COMPOSITION, ROLE AND
FUNCTION

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting
the success of the Company through direction and supervision of
the Company’s business and affairs.

The Board comprises a total of seven Directors, comprising four
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman),
Mr. Shi Liang, Mr. Fu Shou Gang and Mr. Kwok Shun Tim and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luo Wei Kun, Mr.
Wang Zhi He and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong. Ms. Pang Yuk Fong has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and financial
management expertise as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A
of the GEM Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
there were three independent non-executive Directors in the Board
and the number of independent non-executive Directors represents
at least one-third of the Board. The Company has also complied
with Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, which stipulates that
one of the independent non-executive Directors must possess
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Board considers that the
independent non-executive Directors are all independent persons
with appropriate qualifications or expertise and the Company has
complied with the relevant requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Code. In 2013, the
Board has reviewed and monitored: (a) the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, (b) training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, (c)
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, (d) the Company’s code of conduct and (e)
the Company’s compliance with the Code disclosure requirements.

Appointment Term of Non-executive Directors

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Currently, the independent non-executive Directors have no fixed
term of office but are subject to retirement by rotation at annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose of this
code provision.

Roles of Directors

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
management of the Company and is collectively responsible for
appointing and supervising senior management to ensure that the
operations of the Group are conducted in accordance with the
objectives of the Group. The principal roles of the Board are:

o to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plans;

o to monitor and control operating and financial performance
through the determination of the annual budget; and

° to formulate internal control policies and set appropriate policies

to manage risks in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board is directly accountable to the shareholders and is
responsible for preparing the accounts.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management responsibility
to the management staff under the instruction/supervision of the
Board.

The management staff of the Company are principally responsible
for:

1. exercising all such other powers and perform all such other
acts as may be exercised and performed by the Directors, save
and except for those that may specifically be reserved by the
Board/or the committees set up by the Board for decision and
implementation; or those that may only be exercised by the
Board pursuant to the Articles of Association, the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

2. formulating and/or implementing policies for business activities,
internal controls and administration of the Company;

3.  planning and deciding the Company’s strategies on its business
activities; and

4.  keeping proper written records of its decisions taken which
may be inspected by any members of the Board or the Board
committees upon request.

The Board will review the above arrangements on a periodic basis
to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Prior to the retirement of Mr. Feng San Li on
26 November 2012, Mr. Feng San Li was holding the title of CEO.
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng is the chairman of the Board. After Mr. Feng’s
retirement, Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng continues to act as the chairman
and the duties of the chief executive have been undertaken by the
other executive Directors. The Board meets regularly to consider
major matters affecting the business and operations of the Group.
The Board considers that this structure will balance the power and
authority between the Board and management and believes that
this structure enables the Group to make and implement decision
promptly and efficiently.
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BOARD OPERATION

Regular Board meetings are held normally every three months, with
additional meetings arranged, if and when required. In 2013, the
Board held 25 meetings.

The attendance record of each member of the Board at board
meetings and general meetings of the Company are set out below:

Attendance of
Board Meetings

e SghE

EETERF

FFE MES=EATE K LEER
EH I RHEE - EFER-F =5 Y
BA-HERRM -

SEFEMANLBALNEERRHRR
RAEHEHMT

Attendance of
General Meetings

EEETE BRXE
HE#E e

Executive Directors
RITESE
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman) 25/25 4/4
TRBEE (FF)
Mr. Shi Liang 25/25 4/4
hise S 4

Mr. Zhang Qing Lin (retired on 27 May 2013)
REMAEE(R=ZE—=FRA=-++LHERME)
Mr. Fu Shou Gang

%L

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (appointed on 2 January 2013)
BHBEERE(R_ZE—=F—A_AEZD)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIURTESE
Mr. Luo Wei Kun
BHEERE

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong
ZEFTL

Mr. Wang Zhi He
FzREE

Note: Number of board meeting and general meeting held during the tenure of
the Director

Directors are free to contribute alternative views at meetings and
major decisions would only be taken after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

All Directors have access to the company secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with, and advising the Board on compliance matters.

—z-=F5§

1/1 (Note) (Ff 5%)

1/1 (Note) (FF )

25/25 4/4
25/25 4/4
25/25 4/4
25/25 4/4
25/25 4/4
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Directors’ Duties

Every Director is required to keep abreast of his responsibilities as a
director of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company:

° A comprehensive director’s handbook is issued to every
Director, which sets out guidelines on conduct by making
reference to the relevant sections of the statutes or the GEM
Listing Rules, and reminds Directors of their responsibilities in
making disclosure of their interests and potential conflict of
interests.

o Orientation programmes are organised for providing induction
to new Directors to help them familiarise with the Company’s
management, business and governance practices.

° Management provides appropriate and sufficient information
to Directors and the committee members in a timely manner to
keep them apprised of the latest development of the Group
and enable them to discharge their responsibilities. Directors
also have independent and unrestricted access to senior
executives of the Company.

BEERE

BRESATREREEARNARESNR
B URARARINEE T - EBE8) R
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations. Directors’
training is an ongoing process. During the year ended 31 December
2013, Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company updates Directors on the latest development regarding
the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.

Attending seminar(s)
or programme(s)/
reading relevant
materials in relation
to the business,
GEM Listing Rules
or directors' duties

(Yes/No)
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng Yes
Mr. Shi Liang Yes
Mr. Zhang Qing Lin
(retired on 27 May 2013) Yes
Mr. Fu Shou Gang Yes
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim
(appointed on 2 January 2013) Yes
Mr. Luo Wei Kun Yes
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong Yes
Mr. Wang Zhi He Yes

The briefing sessions covered topics including the Code, listed
company regulations and disclosure obligations in Hong Kong,
disclosable transactions and connected transactions etc.
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REMUNERATION PAID TO MEMBERS OF
KEY MANAGEMENT

Details of remuneration paid to member of key management (exclude
Director) fell within the following band:

INTFEEEEASHHMN

XNTEEERAR (TERES) NHHA

ol
(=3

FUTRE :

2013 2012

—E—=%f —E—=F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AB ABL

HKD Nil ~ HKD 1,000,000 =70 % 1,000,000/ 7T 2 8

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the
following purposes: —

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on policies and
structure for remuneration of directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such policy on remuneration;

(b) to make recommendations to the Board the remuneration
packages for executive Directors and senior management and
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of all of the Company’s
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Pang Yuk Fong
(Chairman), Mr. Luo Wei Kun and Mr. Wang Zhi He. The duties of
Remuneration Committee is to review and make recommendations
to the remuneration policy and packages of the executive Directors
and executives.
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In 2013, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each member of the Remuneration Committee
is set out below:

e SghE

FHEZEE N T =FEBHRT K& -

FHZEEEREMNDFELENT -

Attendance
g
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (Chairman) 1/1
vEFrt (FE)
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 1/1
BEERE
Mr. Wang Zhi He 11
FzMmEsE

During the meeting, members of the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the remuneration packages and overall benefits of the
Directors by taking into account factors such as remuneration
packages and benefits offered by comparable companies, the
respective contribution of each of the Directors to the Group and
the business objectives of the Group.

The executive Directors are responsible for reviewing all relevant
remuneration data and market conditions as well as the performance
of individuals and the profitability of the Group, and proposing to the
remuneration committee for consideration and approval. The
Remuneration Committee performed the major work as below:

1. reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company and the remuneration and performance of
duties of the executive Directors and senior management in
the year under review;

2.  made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 12 August 2005 for, inter alia, the
following purposes: —

(@) to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship; and

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or reappointment of directors and
succession planning for directors.

In August 2013, the Board has adopted its board diversity policy
(the "Board Diversity Policy"). All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against selection
criteria based on a range of diversity perspectives, which would
include but not be limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee is made up of all of the Company’s
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Zhi He
(Chairman), Mr. Luo Wei Kun and Ms. Pang Yuk Fong.

In 2013, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each member of the Nomination Committee is
set out below:
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Attendance
HEE
Mr. Wang Zhi He (Chairman) 1/1
T MEE (FFE)
Mr. Luo Wei Kun 11
BEBRE
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong 11
ZTEFLL
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At the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Company’s Board of Directors, made
reference to criteria including, inter alia, reputation for integrity,
accomplishment and experience in the relevant industry, professional
and educational background, and commitment in respect of available
time and relevant interest. The Nomination Committee was satisfied
with the existing composition of the Board and recommended no
change in the near future, and performed the major work as below:

1. examined the structure, size and composition of the Board, to
ensure the Directors have the expertise, skills and experience
required to meet the Company’s business;

2. assessed the independency of all independent non-executive
Directors; and

3. made recommendations to the Board in this regard.

AMENDMENT TO THE TERMS OF
REFERENCE OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the nomination committee of the Company
was amended on 14 August 2013 to include the review of the
Company’s board diversity policy and the progress on achieving the
objectives set for implementing the said policy as one of its duty.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 28 July 2003 and currently comprises all three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Pang Yuk Fong
(Chairman), Mr. Luo Wei Kun and Mr. Wang Zhi He. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual reports,
financial statements, half year reports and quarterly reports; (b) to serve
as a focal point for communication between Directors, the external
auditors and internal auditors; (c) to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities by providing an independent review and supervision of
financial reporting, and the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system; and (d) to review the appointment of external auditors on an
annual basis as well as to ensure independence of the continuing
auditors.
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In 2013, the Audit Committee held four meetings. The attendance B\BXEZEE@N T =FLHETINAEZ -

record of each member of the Audit Committee is set out below: ERLZEEXKENHFBLENT
Attendance

==

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (Chairman) 4/4

CERRLE (F/E)

Mr. Luo Wei Kun 4/4

BHERE

Mr. Wang Zhi He 4/4

Tz MEAE

At the meetings, the Audit Committee has carefully reviewed the
Company’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results and its system
of internal control and has made suggestions to improve them. The
Audit Committee also carried out and discharged its other duties
set out in Code. In the course of doing so, the Audit Committee has
met the company’s management several times during year 2013.
Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to
the Group’s external auditors and the management.

During the financial year 2013, the Audit Committee has held four
meetings. The Group’s results for the year 2013 have been reviewed
and commented by the Audit Committee members, and performed
the major works as below:

1. reviewed the annual financial results and report for the year
ended 31 December 2012, interim financial results and report
for the six months ended 30 June 2013 and quarterly financial
results and reports for each of the six months ended 31 March
2013 and 30 September 2013;

2. reviewed the internal audit department’s report regarding the
reviewing and procedures of the internal control and risk
management of the Company; and

3. provided opinions to the Board in respect of the terms of
appointment of external auditors.
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The Group’s result for the year ended 31 December 2013 have been
reviewed and commented by the audit committee members, which
was of the opinion that the preparation of such results complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements as well
as the GEM Listing Rules and that adequate disclosures have been
made.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through mails whose contact details are as
follows: —

Room 910B, 9th Floor

East Wing, Tsim Sha Tsui Centre
66 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Tel No.: 2366 1613

Fax No.: 2366 1665

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionst(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at
any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other than
the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registration office provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are given,
shall be at least seven (7) days and that the period for lodgment of
such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
annual accounts which give a true and fair view of the Group’s state
of affairs of the results and cash flow for the year. In preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors have:

° adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

° made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and ensured the accounts are prepared on a going
concern basis.

The Company recognises that high quality corporate reporting is
important in reinforcing the trust relationship between the Company
and the its stakeholders and aims at presenting a balanced, clear
and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in all corporate communications.
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Internal Control

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control over
financial, operational and compliance issues for the year 2013. The
Audit Committee concluded that, in general, the Group has set up a
sound control environment and installed necessary control
mechanisms to monitor and correct non-compliance. The Board,
through the review of the Audit Committee, is satisfied that the Group
in 2013, fully complied with the code provisions on internal controls
as set forth in the Code. The Audit Committee also concluded that
the Group has employed sufficient staff for the propose of accounting,
financial and internal control.

External Auditors

The Group's external auditors are HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. The Audit Committee is mandated to ensure continuing
auditors' objectivity and safeguard independence of the auditors,
and it has:

° determined the framework for the type and authorisation of
non-audit services for which the external auditors may provide.
In general, the engagement of the external auditors to perform
non-audit services is prohibited except for tax related services;
and

° agreed with the Board on the policy relating to the hiring of
employees or former employees of the external auditors and
monitored the applications of such policy.

During 2013, the remuneration payable to the Company’s external
auditors for audit and non-audit services were approximately
RMB1,437,000 and RMB163,000 respectively. The non-audit
services represent the services provided in connection with the
investment circular of the Company in relation to the finance lease
arrangement.
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The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013 were audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Group has not employed any staff who was formerly involved in
the Group's statutory audit.

Corporate Communication

The Group recognises the importance of shareholder feedback and
the need for ongoing communication with its stakeholders, including
the general public, investors, and the institutional and individual
shareholders. The Company published annual, interim and quarterly
reports which contained detailed information about the Group.
Inquiries by shareholders are directed and dealt with by senior
management of the Group.

Company secretary

Mr. Lui Chi Keung has been appointed as the company secretary
since September 2007. For the details, please refer to page 38 to
this report.

The company secretary has complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules in relation to the professional training requirements.

INVESTORS RELATIONSHIP

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.
These include the annual general meeting, the annual, interim and
quarterly reports, notices, announcements and circulars and the
Company's website at http://www.ilinkfin.net/china_leason/.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there had been no
significant change in the Company's constitutional documents.
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DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng, aged 50, has been appointed as chairman
of the Board, an executive Director and the compliance officer of
the Company since May 2006. From 9 January 2004 to 26 May
2006, Mr. Wang was an executive director of Tianjin Jinran Public
Utilities Company Limited (“Tianjin Jinran”) (formerly known as Tianjin
Tianlian Public Utilities Company Limited), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01265, former stock
code: 08290), and was responsible for its business strategies. He
graduated from the University of Tianjin with a bachelor degree in
engineering in 1984. Mr. Wang is also a director of Tianjin Leason
Investment Group Company Limited (K32 M B IREEB AR A
A]). Mr. Wang is a substantial shareholder of the company which
holds 2,162,358,177 Shares in person or through controlled
corporation, representing approximately 22.73% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report. In addition, as
at the date of this report, Mr. Wang is interested as a grantee of
options to subscribe for 3,247,500 shares under the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 18 May 2011.

Mr. Shi Liang, aged 45, has been appointed as an executive Director
since May 2006. Mr. Shi graduated with a bachelor degree in Material
Science in the Shanghai University of Science and Technology of
the PRC and a master degree in management from the Business
School of the People’s University in the PRC. He was a vice general
manager of Tianjin Tianlian. He had worked for Jiangsu Nan Tong
Electric Melter Company and Electronic Industrial Division Basic
Products Department. He had also worked for Jiangsu Hua Yong
Electronic Group Company as deputy manager of international
cooperation department and secretary to the board of directors. He
had also held various positions as a project manager, senior manager
and an assistant to executive director in the investment banking of
United Securities Limited, a securities company in the PRC.

Mr. Zhang Qing Lin, aged 63, was appointed as an executive Director
since 17 May 2010 and retired on 27 May 2013. He graduated from
the Tianjin Industrial University* (K2 T 2 X&), (formerly known as
The Institute of Tianjin Textile Industry* (K247 & T % £55)) in 1980.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang has extensive working
experience in corporate management. Mr. Zhang remained as an
employee of the company and he is interested as a grantee of options
to subscribe for 3,247,500 shares under the share options scheme
adopted by the Company on 18 May 2011.
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Mr. Fu Shou Gang, aged 47, has years of experiences in the natural
gas sector. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in Tianjin Jinran,
where was pointed as an executive Director. Mr. Fu is interested as
a grantee of options to subscribe for 3,247,500 shares under the
share options scheme adopted by the Company on 18 May 2011.

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim, aged 39, was appointed as the executive
Director on 2 January 2013. Mr. Kwok holds a master of science in
China Business Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a master of laws (International Economic Law) from the City
University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor Degree of Business
Administration in Accounting from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He is an associate member of Hong Kong
Society of Accountants (currently known as Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants), an ordinary member of Hong Kong
Securities Institute, a full member of IT Accountants association and
a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Kwok is currently a member of Guangdong Province Zhaoqing City
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
HFEARBGHEEZEREEEMZ E2), a director of Yan Oi
Tong for the year 2013/2014. Mr. Kwok is currently an executive
director of Convoy Financial Services Holdings Limited (Stock code:
1019), a company of which shares are listed on Main Board of the
Stock Exchange with effect from 30 April 2013, an independent non-
executive director of Longlife Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
8037), a company whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 8 February 2013, and the company
secretary of Tianjin Jinran. Mr. Kwok previously served as an executive
director of Computech Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8081), a
company whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange,
from 18 January 2013 to 30 January 2014 and an independent non-
executive director of Hong Kong Education (Int’l) Investments Limited
(Stock Code: 1082), a company whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange from 10 August 2012 to 28 February
2014.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Luo Wei Kun, aged 75, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since August 2006. He graduated from the
Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering in
1964 and started postgraduate studies in the same year. He was
awarded a postgraduate diploma in civil engineering in 1967. He
acted as a technician in Wuhan Branch of the Chinese Medicine
Industrial Limited during 1968 to 1969 and as a technician, deputy
section chief, section chief, engineer and vice chief engineer in the
State Ministry of Medicine - Hubei Medical Manufactory Branch
during 1969 to 1985. He then worked as a senior engineer, section
chief and assistant factory manager in Tianjin Second Coal Gas
Factory during 1986 to 1992. From 1992 to 2000, he acted as a
vice chief engineer in Tianjin Utility Department and at the same time,
worked as a chief engineer in Tianjin City Gas Administrative Office.
After his retirement in March 2000, Mr. Luo acted as a consultant of
Tianjin City Gas Administrative Office and Tianjin City Gas Planning
Office. Currently, he is an independent non-executive director of
Tianjin Jinran.

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong, Yvonne, aged 47, is an experienced practising
certified public accountant in Hong Kong with over 25 years of
professional experience in accounting and auditing. Ms. Pang is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Ms. Pang holds a
Master of Professional Accounting Degree from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.
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Ms. Pang's professional career started in Deloitte (one of the Big-4
International Accountancy Firms) and subsequently held the
accounting positions in the listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms.
Pang has been running her own practice of Certified Public
Accountant (practicing) in Hong Kong since 1990's and has currently
been the Managing Director of Focus Asia CPA Limited. She has
also been the Managing Director of Focus Secretarial Services Limited
which is engaged in providing multilateral company secretarial
services and the Managing Director of Focus Asia Market Consultants
Limited and Focus Corporate Consultancy Limited which are
engaged in providing business advisory services to her clients in
various aspects.

Ms. Pang has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director since 2006.

Mr. Wang Zhi He, aged 66, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since August 2006. Mr. Wang is a senior
accountant. Mr. Wang graduated from Anhui University of Finance
and Economics in February 1972, and was assigned to finance
department of Anhui Huaibei Mining Bureau and worked as a
commissioner, deputy section chief, section chief, deputy director
and director. Mr. Wang was transferred to the Ministry of Coal Industry
in May 1995, and worked as a director of Asset Capital Management
Division and State-owned Assets Management department. In
October 1997, Mr. Wang was re-designated as a chief accountant
of China Coal Construction Group Corporation, and worked as a
deputy general manager and chief accountant in May 1999. Mr. Wang
was transferred to Zhonglian Gas Company Limited and worked as
a chief accountant in March 2004. Mr. Wang has years of relevant
experience.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lui Chi Keung, aged 56, has been appointed as the company
secretary and authorised representative of the Company since
September 2007. Mr. Lui presently is appointed as the Company’s
secretary and authorised representative. Mr. Lui is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Lui has over 30 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, financial and business management.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 65 to 66.

The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31 December
2013 are set out in the consolidated and company statements of
financial position on pages 67 to 68 and page 69 respectively. The
cash flows of the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of
cash flows on pages 72 to 73.

The Directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 31(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in page 71 and note 31(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In accordance with the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s articles of association, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to its shareholders comprise share
premium, translation reserve and accumulated losses which in
aggregate amounted to approximately RMB726,888,000 as at
31 December 2013 (2012: RMB709,410,000). The distributable
reserves are available for distribution provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed, the Company
will be able to pay off its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2013 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (Chairman)
Mr. Shi Liang
Mr. Zhang Qing Lin (retired on 27 May 2013)

Mr. Fu Shou Gang
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (appointed on 2 January 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Luo Wei Kun
Ms. Pang Yuk Fong
Mr. Wang Zhi He

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Luo Wei Kun, Ms. Pang Yuk Fong and Mr. Wang Zhi He retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office for each of independent non-executive Directors
is the period up to his retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the provisions
of the articles of association of the Company.
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Biographical information of the Directors is set out on page 35 to
page 38 of this report.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors have remained
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION

Details of Directors’ and key management’s remuneration for the
year are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No other contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business
subsisted at the year-end or any time during the year to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes or
may cause any significant competition with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on Information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed
issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:
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Long positions in shares, underlying shares and

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

W

RAXFREG - HEARDREZ 24

debentures of the Company )
Number of
shares/ Approximate
Nature of underlying percentage
Name Capacity interest shares of shareholdings
%, 1 FREA
5% Bang BRGOHE Aot
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng Interest of controlled Corporate interest 181,185,000 2.21%
corporation (Note 1)
TRBEE XEEEER NGIE 3o (PEE1)
Beneficial owner Personal 1,983,673,177 24.21%
(Note 2)
ExBEEA A (Mtzx2)
Mr. Fu Shou Gang Beneficial owner Personal 2,500,000 0.03%
(Note 3)
OEL s EREAA A (PEE3)
B 5

As at 31 December 2013, Jumbo Lane Investments Limited was interested
in (i) 120,790,000 shares of the Company, and (ii) 60,395,000 shares to
be issued under the Open Offer.

Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng owns 100% interest in the issued share capital of
Jumbo Lane Investments Limited and he is taken to be interested in the
shares owned by Jumbo Lane Investments Limited pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

Out of the 1,983,673,177 long positions in shares and underlying shares,
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng is interested as (i) a grantee of options to subscribe
for 2,500,000 shares under the new share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 18 May 2011 (which were subsequently adjusted to
3,247,500 upon the completion of the Open Offer on 6 January 2014); (ii)
a beneficial owner of 1,320,782,118 shares of the Company; and (iii)
660,391,059 shares to be issued under the Open Offer.

Mr. Fu Shou Gang is interested as a grantee of options to subscribe for
2,500,000 shares (which were subsequently adjusted to 3,247,500 shares
upon the completion of the Open Offer on 6 January 2014) under the new
share option scheme adopted by the Company on 18 May 2011.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any other interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were otherwise required, pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to in
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Group had not issued any debentures
during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WITH DISCLOSEABLE INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company as disclosed above)
had an interest or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of
the Company

Number of shares/
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BREFES K AEIEGIEI52EREMAS
AZIEBIFTat B e A - SRR a1 2R £
RAIES. A6(5FTH EBITAESEITRS
AR TEIZE T A A0S A D &) KB X P 2 A fA]
HiERIORE - NEBRANFE AL
TEMAES -

EFERRERBRAD R AEBERKRD E
EREEZRPERINETHE
ZERERABZAL

RZZE—=F+"R=+—H  BKREIZH
NG ROIFEIBIERERNRBATFEZ
BrfftAraek - TIAL(EREXHEZ
EERARARDTERABRINRART]
Pty RAEBROEEEDIRAE

REQXFRGRAEBERG 2FR

Percentage of
Approximate
percentage of

Name underlying shares Nature of Interest shareholding
HE /LR RG,HHERDEE EENE ERBNBESHT
Ms. Zhao Xin (Note) 2,164,858,177 Interest of spouse 26.42%
M2+ () B #En
RHB OSK Securities Hong Kong 2,572,461,837 Underwriting 31.39%
Limited (Note 2) commitment
in the Open Offer
HEBEISERRT RAREBEEZ
(Pt 5E2) B G
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Short positions in shares of the Company
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REDBRMD KA

Approximate
percentage of

Name Number of Shares Nature of Interest shareholding

IR B4
=z R4 8 E ERME BoLt
RHB OSK Securities 1,250,000,000 Sub-underwriting 15.25%

Hong Kong Limited

MEBYEYESARAA

Note:

Ms. Zhao Xin (the spouse of Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng) is deemed to be interested
in her spouse’s interest in the Company which represent the same parcel of
shares held by Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng and Jumbo Lane Investments Limited or
which any of he/it is interested in pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no other person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under to section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Long Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” above and in the section “The Placing and the Subscription”,
and “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the Year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or minor children or chief executive or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

= Wy ¥ 1

arrangement with
sub-underwriter
HOBHEE L
DBEHLH

Hi i

RFELFRPEGRD - HRZ T (FEBELEZR
B BREARARREAELBEA #a  BhE
BBEEREERERRARSAREEMN T
a2 [ —H# i -

Br EXIEBEEIN - RIBRBFES RBAEEAE
B EARARRATIFECELMATE
8 MN-_EB—=F+-_A=+—0  WEH
AT (EEFSIERRZERITERAEBRIN R
RRARRGD RIEBRND T HEEERIOXE °

EERFTETRAEBEROH
(e A Fi

BEXTEEREZTRAEBREKN KIAH
Petn 2w R FRl R T X ERE RRBE] &
[FERRERT &I PrIEEE SN - MANFE AR ERA
B - SERTEMEFTXRESE ZERB
FARKFEFRAETBITRABBBEEAR
AR MESF 2 TEMES R 2 R -
WEIEITRAEMZFEN  RARFHE
ERMBARGER AL  BRESR
AREEEMEMEABERZZ SRR -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 18 May 2011, the
Company’s share option scheme adopted on 28 July 2003 (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) was terminated and a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) was adopted which will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of the New
Share Option Scheme and will expire on 17 May 2021. On 30 May
2011, the Board approved to grant options in respect of 258,300,000
ordinary shares to the Company’s Directors, employees and
consultants under the New Share Option Scheme.

There were no share options that had been granted remained
outstanding under the Old Share Option Scheme prior to its
termination.

For details of the New Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
circular of the Company dated 20 April 2011.

B IR T

RER_Z——FAA+\HBBENERR
BE - ARFAR_ZTZ=FELA-_TNBER
e BT S (TERBERT S 2 &R
1E - R BB 8 ([FrBRvERT 8l B
WRERA - A B R AT R R I - H
BARREER BR-_ZE_—FRA+tH
@ RZE——FHhA=+H " EFgH
ERBHERET SR TARRES - ER
N 5 o) R 0 s TS A A w2 % 258,300,000 % &
AL o

REBBETEIR LR  EEREEREE
R R AT 18 HO P A4 o

ERFBERES S ZFE - F2HAQFA
HA_Z——FNA-_+HZBEX-
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Information in relation to share options disclosed in accordance with

the GEM Listing Rules was as follows:
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RIRAIZRR ETARRIPTREE A BB AR e &
RHAT

Share price of
Cancelled/ Date of the Company
Name and As at Granted Exercised lapsed As at grant of Exercise Exercise as at the date
category of 1 January during the during the during the 31 December share period of price per of grant of
participants 2013 year year year 2013 options share options  share option  share options
i i NERE
It St E £ R Z3-Zf ERE ShHERR RiAH
SRENLRER -A-8 BRH Bfif  HE/&¥ tZA=t-A =l RRETES ke ALIRE
(HKS) (HKS)
(&7) (&7)
Executive Directors
#i7g%
Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 30/6/2011 30/5/2011-29/6/2021 0.49% 0.49%
TRBEE
Mr. Zhang Qing Lin
(Note (i) 2,500,000 - - - - 3062011 30/5/2011-29/5/2021 0.49% 0.49%
(Note (i)
RS (B i) (B 2 i)
Mr. Fu Shou Gang 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 30/6/2011 30/5/2011-29/5/2021 0.49% 0.49%
L b
Mr. Feng San Li 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000) - 30/6/2011 30/5/2011-29/5/2021 0.49 0.49
B4
10,000,000 - - (2,500,000) 5,000,000
Employess 39,740,000 - - - 42,240,000 30/6/2011 30/5/2011-29/5/2021 0.49% 0.49%
(Note (i)
€8 (B3 i)
Consultants 200,020,000 - - - 200,020,000 30/6/2011 30/5/2011-29/6/2021 0.49% 0.49%
HAER
Total 249,760,000 - - (2,500,000 247,260,000
oh

—z-=F5§
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Notes: B 5E

() Theterms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year are as ()  RAFERNFEZ FEAERMIEGOT
follows:

Number of Contractual
options Vesting conditions life of options
BREHE 5B R BRESHNEH
Options granted:
R AR
30 May 2011 215,220,000 Vest immediately 10 years
—E——FhA=+A BNEs 55 8 106
30 May 2011 43,080,000 Half on each of the first 10 years
and second anniversaries of
grant date
—E-——FRA=+H RE BBz E5ER 104F

E_EBFATR—F

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of options are as follows: (i)  HEMR#E 2 8B RiEFEHTEELT :

Weighted average Number of
exercise price options
MEFHTEE BREHE
HK$
Vo
Outstanding as at 1 January 2013 RZTE—=F—A—BXRIE 0.495 249,760,000
Granted during the year AERERE — —
Lapsed during the year AEANE KK 0.495 (2,500,000)
Outstanding as at 31 December 2018 MR_-T—=F+_-_F=+—HBKTF 0.495 247,260,000
Exercisable as at 31 December 2013 RZ-Z—=F+-A=+—HA17{# 0.495 247,260,000
The options outstanding as at 31 December 2013 had an exercise price R-E—=F+-_A=1+—BRTEERE>
of HK$0.495 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.4 1T#{EA0.495% 70 - INEF9E LTI FH
years. BTAFE o

(i)~ Mr. Zhang Qing Lin retired as an executive Director on 27 May 2013 but (i) REMAEENR -Z—=FH A - ++HEEH
remained as an employee of the Company. TEE  HEDEARRTHES -
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(v)

The following table sets out the details of the Company’s share options as
at 5 February 2014:

Total number of
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(v, TREJNEARAR-ZE-—NF_ARHZER
S

As at 5 February 2014
(immediately before adjustment*)
R-ZE-—NE-AEHA

share options BREAH (RERHEN
Granted B 258,300,000
Exercised 217 =
Lapsed/cancelled B R s iE 11,040,000
Outstanding RITE 247,260,000

As a result of the Open Offer, adjustment has been made, among
others, to the number of the share options to subscribe for Shares
granted and the exercise price of the outstanding share options
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme with effect from 6 February
2014.

After the aforesaid adjustment upon the completion of the Open
Offer, the total number of the outstanding share options has
been adjusted from 247,260,000 to 321,190,740 on 6 February
2014 and the exercise price of the outstanding share options
had been adjusted from HK$0.495 to HK$0.381.

© ARRIRE Y (e ) REMRET
BIE 2 TR 2 AR A B
ALY (TR EE LR =T
— = AN -

RARBERKEL LM FARE - K
TP BB AR AE R B2 Fh247,260,00017 F3
BER_ZE—WEF-_AFA B2
321,190,7401n « RITEERE 21T
BEE H0.495B LA E0.381/8 T °
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MAJOR TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS
Non-legally Binding Cooperation Agreement

On 28 February 2012, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) to cooperate with
Longmen Hui Cheng Investment Limited (REFPIERK R E B R A 7))
(“Longmen Hui Cheng”). By entering into the Cooperation Agreement,
the Company hoped to closely co-operate with Longmen Hui Cheng
in all areas and intended to form a strategic alliance with Longmen
Hui Cheng in China’s coalbed methane gas sector to form a vertically
integrated alliance to cover all the upstream, midstream and
downstream areas in the coalbed methane gas value chain (the
“Cooperation Project”). Both parties have agreed that a joint working
group will be formed immediately following the signing of the
Cooperation Agreement to push forward the subsequent signing of
a formal agreement. As at the date of this report, no binding
agreement in relation to the Cooperation Project has been entered
into and the Cooperation Project may or may not proceed. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29 February
2012.

The Placing

The Company and the placing agent, Vision Finance International
Company Limited (the "Placing Agent") entered into the placing
agreement on 14 March 2013, whereby the Company conditionally
agreed to place, through the Placing Agent, on a best efforts basis,
a maximum of 400,000,000 placing shares of the Company to not
less then six independent investors at a price of HK$0.25 per placing
share (the "Placing"). The net placing price, after deduction of placing
commission and all other fees and expenses was approximately
HK$0.24 per placing share. As at 14 March 2013, the market closing
price per share of the Company was HK$0.3. The Board considered
that the Placing represented a good opportunity to raise additional
capital for the Company to strengthen the capital base and enhance
the liquidity position for its future business developments.

The Placing was completed on 9 April 2013. The net proceeds from
the Placing of approximately HK$96.4 million have been used for
the drilling of wells and natural gas pipeline construction work and
general working capital. For details of the Placing, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 15 March 2013 and 9
April 2013 respectively.

FEXGRER
FRERNRINEEHZ

RZE——F-A=+/)\B ' "AFHEFEM
[ERIEEBR AT ([REPIERK]) FT A REER
BEFIEKETEIENERBZE ([&1EW
) o BAINEEWE - AARFHEHEER
EXEZEFAEEREGE  WitEIB P BEE
BRITENBRERE  HATEIRERE
FLEH - P T — B LR E 8K
([61EIEE]) - EF4HE - HEEHHEES
e BN RES T1EvE - HBREERH
BEaBELE BEARESABRILL - WA
GEEBEIENRNGZE - MAEIEEE &
IRAlBE R Al RE TN B ETT - B IBER2H
AAFBPA-_ZE——F_A-_t+hBEHR
o

T35

ARREEEREBEES 2MBIBRERAR]
(RReERE)R-_E—=F=A+MBETL
FeEHaE - Bt - ARR AR HEREER
fic & I 12 38 3 B % fid & £ % 400,000,000
BAEARRRERD FTTALRANBBILKRE
% BRESRMDIEE0.25% T ([BRE]) -
KHNBREEESURAMEEMBRARASLZ
FREENAEREERMN0.248T - K=
T—=F=A+WEA ' XARFBRBKRHAIK
MEROIET - EFERAREERARAQF]
ESTHINECRBERK - B ESER
MRS ES RN M E BB ERERE -

REER_TE—=FHNANBZEK - BEZ
TS5 B FEE 40 596,400,000/8 7 © B4 A
PITHERAREERRIEAR—REE
Ed o  BRAREFE  f20AR7EHY
AMAB_E—=F=A+AAK=_ZT—=FN
ARBZ -
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Finance Lease Agreement

On 21 May 2012, Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy Development
Company Limited (“Qinshui Energy”), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a conditional finance lease
agreement in relation to the sale and lease of equipments (the
“Finance Lease Agreement”) with CIMC Capital Limited (“CIMC”),
pursuant to which, (i) Qinshui Energy conditionally agreed to sell,
and CIMC conditionally agreed to purchase certain liquefied natural
gas equipment for a total consideration of RMB95,000,000
(approximately HK$117,284,000); and (i) Qinshui Energy conditionally
agreed to lease from CIMC, and CIMC conditionally agreed to lease
to Qinshui Energy, the said equipment for a total lease consideration
of RMB114,570,000 (approximately HK$141,444,000) for a term of
36 months by monthly installments inclusive of interest with a lump
sum handling fee in the sum of RMB950,000 (approximately
HK$1,173,000). The lease consideration may be adjusted according
to the floating lending interest rate to be promulgated by People’s
Bank of China from time to time.

As the applicable percentage ratios of the Finance Lease Agreement
exceeded 25% but less than 100%, the Finance Lease Agreement
constituted a major transaction on the part of the Company under
Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Finance Lease Agreement
was approved by the shareholders by way of ordinary resolution at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 27 May
2013. For details of the Finance Lease Agreement, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 21 May 2012 and 27
May 2013, and the circular of the Company dated 22 April 2013
respectively.

Increase in Authorised Share Capital

The Company increased the authorised share capital from
HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares to
HK$200,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares by the creation
of an additional 10,000,000,000 new shares by passing an ordinary
resolution by shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 18 June 2013.

For details of the increase in authorised share capital of the Company,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 24 May
2013 and 18 June 2013, and the circular of the Company dated
30 May 2013.

—z-=F5§
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Memorandum of Co-operation in respect of the
possible subscription by Beijing Enterprises
Holdings Limited and its cancellation

On 20 June 2013, the Company, Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited
(“BEHL”) and the Placing Agent entered into a memorandum of co-
operation (the “Memorandum of Co-operation”) pursuant to which
the Company conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing
Agent, 9,300,000,000 Placing shares of the Company to BEHL (or
its wholly-owned subsidiary(ies)) at a price of HK$0.26 per placing
share (the “Placing and Subscription”), and the offer period
commenced on 26 June 2013.

On 4 September 2013, the Company confirmed the cancellation of
the Memorandum of Co-operation by BEHL and thus there was no
Placing and Subscription and the offer period ended on 30 August
2013. On the other hand, the Company and Beijing Enterprises Group
Company Limited, the parent company of BEHL had commenced
discussions to explore possible ways of cooperation.

For details of the Memorandum of Co-operation and its cancellation,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 26 June
2013, 25 July 2013, 22 August 2013 and 4 September 2013.

Conversion of Convertible Bonds

On 4 July 2013, (i) 340,000,000 shares of the Company were issued
to Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (“Mr. Wang”), an executive Director, the
chairman of the Board and a substantial shareholder of the Company
and (ii) 479,230,769 shares of the Company were issued to two
independent third parties on exercise of their respective conversion
rights under the convertible bonds issued by the Company due on
12 July 2013. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 4 July 2013.
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SERSHEREBUHE

RIZE—=F"A-1+H AQ"R LR
BAERAR (MR kSR —
etk ([EERTER]) @ Bt - &Q
AE KGR EERE S RE R RITR
(EZ2EME A7) B %E9,300,000,0008%
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Settlement on contractual dispute

On 18 October 2013, the Company has reached a settlement
agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with China United regarding
a contractual dispute (the “Dispute”) in the supply of gas. The Group
may enter into supplemental agreement in relation to supply of gas
and further cooperation contract in relation to ant joint investment in
exploration and extraction of liquefied coal bed gas. As at the date
of this report, no such supplemental agreement and/or cooperation
contract has been entered into between the Group and China United.
For details of the settlement and possible joint investment, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21 October 2013.

Memorandum of Understanding in respect of the
possible subscription by Beijing Enterprises Energy
Development (Holdings) Company Limited and the
lapse of it

On 26 October 2013, the Company and Beijing Enterprises Energy
Development (Holdings) Company Limited (“BEEDH”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited,
entered into a memorandum of understanding (the “Memorandum
of Understanding”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue,
subject to the fulfilment of the conditions precedent contained therein,
9,000,000,000 to 10,000,000,000 subscription shares to BEEDH
at a price of HK$0.26 per subscription share pursuant to the terms
of a formal agreement the offer period commenced on 28 October
2013.

On 26 November 2013, the Company announced that no formal
agreement has been reached between the Company and BEEDH
within one month after the date of the Memorandum of
Understanding. The parties thereto did not extend the validity period
of the Memorandum of Understanding, and therefore it lapsed on
26 November 2013, and the offer period ended on 26 November
2013. For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 28 October 2013 and 26 November 2013.
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The Placing and the Subscription

On 20 December 2013, Mr. Wang and RHB OSK Securities Hong
Kong Limited entered into a placing agreement, and the Company
and Mr. Wang entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant to
which (i) RHB OSK Securities has agreed to place, on behalf of Mr.
Wang and on a best effort basis, an aggregate of up to 880,000,000
existing Shares (beneficially owned by Mr. Wang) to not less than six
placees at the placing price of HK$0.092 per placing share; and (ii)
Mr. Wang has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company
has conditionally agreed to issue and allot, the subscription shares
equivalent to the number of placing shares successfully placed at
the subscription price of HK$0.092 per subscription share.

The net proceeds from the subscription was HK$79 million,
representing a net subscription price of approximately HK$0.090
per subscription share. As at 19 December 2013, the market closing
price per share of the Company was HK$0.111. The Board was of
the view that the Placing and the subscription would enlarge the
capital base of the Company and would strengthen the financial
position of the Group.

The placing was completed on 30 December 2013 in accordance
with the placing agreement. An aggregate of 880,000,000 placing
shares have been successfully placed to not less than six placees
who are independent third parties, at the placing price of HK$0.092
per placing share.

The subscription took place on 3 January 2014 whereby 880,000,000
Subscription Shares were allotted and issued to Mr. Wang at the
subscription price of HK$0.092 per subscription share. The net
proceeds from the subscription were approximately HK$79,658,000,
and they have been used for (i) repayment of bank and other
borrowings, (ii) drilling of wells, (i) natural gas pipeline construction
work, and (iv) general working capital.

For details of the placing and subscription, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 22 December 2013 and 3
January 2014.
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The Open Offer

On 20 December 2013, the Board proposes to raise not less than
approximately HK$109,200,000 and not more than approximately
HK$131,700,000, before expenses, by an open offer of not less than
2,730,867,896 offer shares and not more than 3,293,247,896 offer
shares at the open offer price of HK$0.04 per offer share, on the
basis of one offer share for every two existing shares held on the
record date (the “Open Offer”).

On 22 December 2013, the Company has entered into an
underwriting agreement with RHB OSK Securities, pursuant to which
RHB OSK Securities has conditionally agreed to purchase, or procure
purchasers to purchase, on a fully underwritten basis, not less than
2,010,081,837 offer shares and not more than 2,572,461,837 offer
shares. RHB OSK Securities shall enter into sub-underwriting letter(s)
with independent third party(ies).

On 22 December 2013, Mr. Wang has provided an undertaking to
the Company and RHB OSK Securities, among other things, (i) to
take up and accept his full entitlement of offer shares under the Open
Offer; and (i) not to exercise his options on or before completion of
the Open Offer (the “Mr. Wang’s Undertaking”). On the same date,
Jumbo Lane Investments Limited has provided undertaking to the
Company and RHB OSK Securities, among other things, to take up
and accept its full entitlement of offer shares under the Open Offer
(the “Jumbo Lane’s Undertaking”).

On 6 February 2014, 3,170,867,896 offer shares were allotted
pursuant to the Open Offer. Pursuant to the Mr. Wang’s Undertaking
and the Jumbo Lane’s Undertaking, Mr. Wang and Jumbo Lane have
subscribed for all the offer shares each is entitled under the Open
Offer.

For details of the Open Offer, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 22 December 2013, 15 January 2014 and 6
February 2014 and the prospectus of the Company dated 15 January
2014.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the top five customers of the Group
together accounted for approximately 55.7% of the Group’s total
sales for the year while the single largest customers accounted for
approximately 21.2% of the Group’s total sales during the year.

The top five suppliers of the Group for the year under review together
accounted for approximately 77.5% of the Group’s total purchases
for the year and the single largest supplier accounted for
approximately 41.8% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or any shareholders
of the Company who owns more than 5% of the issued share capital
of the Company has any interests in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers above mentioned.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

() During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company filed
a claim with it %, Z B8 € (“Beijing Arbitration Commission”)
against China United, claiming for financial losses of
approximately RMB407,193,000 arising from insufficient supply
of coalbed methane under contract. In February 2012, China
United filed a counterclaim with the Beijing Arbitration
Commission against the Company, claiming for (i) financial
losses of approximately RMB155,336,000; (i) late payment
interest of approximately RMB3,771,000; and (iii) financial loss
arising from early termination of contract of approximately
RMB102,775,000. The Directors consider, based on the legal
advice obtained from the Company’s PRC legal counsel, that
the Company has a valid defence against the above
counterclaim and, accordingly, no provision has been made in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012 in relation to these proceedings. Details of
the settlement on contractual dispute are disclosed on page 53.
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(i) During the year ended 31 December 2011, a customer claim
against a subsidiary of the Group for compensation of
approximately RMB6,954,000 arising from alleged failure on
the part of the subsidiary to supply gas under contract. On 3
June 2013, Shanxi Province Higher People’s Court ruled that
the subsidiary of the Group did not violate the contract and no
compensation is required to be made.

AMOUNT OF CAPITALISED INTEREST

Save as disclosed in this report, no interest has been capitalised by
the Group during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particular of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

As at the date of this report, the Company had outstanding options
to subscribe for 321,190,740 shares under the share option scheme
adopted on 18 May 2011.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2013, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company nor any of its subsidiaries.
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Company are set out
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Shanxi Qinshui Perfecture
Chengrong Investment Limited (“Chengrong Investment”) has
provided financing to the Group in the sum of RMB48,000,000. As
Chengrong Investment owns 17% equity interest in Shanxi Wanzhi
Logistics Limited (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company),
Chengrong Investment is a connected person of the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules. As the financing is financial assistance
provided by a connected person for the benefit of the Group on
normal commercial terms (or better to the Company) where no
security over the assets of the Group is granted in respect of the
financial assistance, the transaction are exempt from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval under Rule
20.65 of the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Yangcheng Yangtai Group
Industrial Company Limited (“Yangcheng Yangtai”) has provided
financing to the Group in the sum of RMB29,000,000. As Yangcheng
Yangtai owns 20% equity interest in Huiyang New Energy, (a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), Yangcheng Yangtai is a
connected person of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. As
the financing is financial assistance provided by a connected person
for the benefit of the Group on normal commercial terms (or better
to the Company) where no security over the assets of the Group is
granted in respect of the financial assistance, the transaction are
exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval under Rule 20.65 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Save as
disclosed above, The Directors consider that those material related
party transactions disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements
did not fall under the definition of “connected transactions” or
“continuing connected transactions” in accordance with the GEM
Listing Rules during the year under review.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes or
may cause any significant competition with the business as of the
Group.

APPOINTMENT AND RETIREMENT OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 2 January 2013 and Mr. Zhang Qing Lin was retired as
an executive Director with effect from 27 May 2013.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Proposed refreshment of existing general mandate
to issue and allot shares

On 29 January 2014, the Board proposes to seek refreshment of
the existing general mandate (the “Existing General Mandate”) for
the Directors to allot and issue new shares not exceeding 20% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing of
such resolution by the independent shareholders of the Company.
An extraordinary general meeting of the Company has been convened
on 17 March 2014 and the proposed refreshment of the existing
general mandate was passed by ordinary resolution.

For details of the refreshment of the Existing General Mandate, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 29 January 2014
and 17 March 2014, and the circular of the Company dated 28
February 2014.
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Proposed change of domicile, proposed change of
Company name, proposed cancellation of share
premium account and proposed capital
reorganisatiion

On 3 March 2014, the Board proposed the following changes, subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting to be held on 9 April 2014

(1) to change the domicile of the Company from the Cayman
Islands to Bermuda by way of deregistration in the Cayman
Islands and continuation as an exempted company under the
laws of Bermuda (the “Change of Domicile”);

(2) to reorganise the share capital of the Company by (i)
consolidation of every 10 issued existing shares into one issued
consolidated share; and (i) capital reduction of the issued share
capital of the Company through a cancellation of the paid-up
capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.09 on each of
the issued consolidated shares such that the nominal value of
each issued consolidated share will be reduced from HK$0.10
to HK$0.01 (together referred to as the “Capital
Reorganisation”) upon the Change of Domicile becoming
effective;

(8) subject to the approval of the Registrar of Companies in
Bermuda being obtained, to change the English name of the
Company from “China Leason CBM & Shale Gas Group
Company Limited” to “China CBM Group Company Limited”
and the Chinese name of the Company from “F B Bt 2% 1 [& 5=,
BEREXEBEARAT to “PRERERERBABR AT upon
the Change of Domicile and the Capital Reorganisation
becoming effective; and

(4)  to cancel the share premium account and transfer credits arising
from such cancellation to the contributed surplus account of
the Company.

For details of the above proposals, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 3 March 2014 and 12 March 2014, and the
circular of the Company dated 16 March 2014.
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AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013 was audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will
expire upon the annual general meeting. A resolution for the re-
appointment of HLB Hodgson Imprey Cheng Limited as the auditors
of the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Wang Zhong Sheng
Chairman

28 March 2014
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Bl #F &<t 6 % /% AF R A 4

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

To the shareholders of China Leason CBM & Shale Gas
Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Leason CBM & Shale Gas Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 65 to 214, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2(b) to the
consolidated financial statements which indicates that the Group
incurred a net loss of approximately RMB278,761,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2013 and, as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB361,372,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainly that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Jonathan T. S. Lai

Practising Certificate Number: P04165
Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Ay R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

2013 2012
—g—-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®TR ARET T
Turnover 1] 5 187,184 183,834
Cost of sales S5 6 P AR (211,469) (212,295)
Gross loss EH (24,285) (28,461)
Other revenue and net income H b e BOF WA 6 4,686 55,661
Distribution costs 73 S8 P AR (2,333) (2,003)
Administrative expenses TERAX (49,686) (47,249)
Other operating expenses HigERx (4,578) (4,861)
Finance costs MBER 7(c) (27,657) (7,214)
Fair value loss on HMemEE
other financial assets NFEFHE - (17,051)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 15 (163,000) (2,339)
Impairment loss on intangible assets 2 & &R (E &5 18 18 (25,000) =
Loss before taxation BRIRAIGE 7 (291,853) (53,517)
Income tax credit/(charge) iR e,/ () 8(a) 13,092 (7,945)
Loss for the year XEEER (278,761) (61,462)
Attributable to: THIEL -
Equity shareholders of the Company 782 &) #E 25 A% B (271,440) (55,130)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR i A (7,321) (6,332)
(278,761) (61,462)
RMB RMB
AR AR
Loss per share SRER 13
— Basic — B (5.61) cents % (1.40) cents?>
— Diluted — e (5.61) cents® | (1.40) cents?
The notes on pages 74 to 214 form part of these consolidated FE74BHE2148 2 MK It F47 4 B 53R
financial statements. FKEFPEM, -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A v 1 2t B A 2 i WA %

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —FE—=F+_HA =1+ —HILFE

2013 2012
—E—-=% —E-——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Loss for the year EEEER (278,761) (61,462)
Other comprehensive XEEHM2EASX
expense for the year
ltem that may be reclassified HEeenBEREY R
subsequently to profit or loss: EH
Exchange differences on translation #8359 ¥ % 81 %
of financial statements WMECEREZRE
of foreign operations (1,636) (22)

Total comprehensive expense FXEEEMBAXER
for the year (280,397) (61,484)

Total comprehensive expense THEREZEMANZEE :
attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company 7~ /2 &) 25 i% 3 (273,076) (55,152)
Non-controlling interests e AR A 2 (7,321) (6,332)
(280,397) (61,484)

———

The notes on pages 74 to 214 form part of these consolidated F74BHE214H 2 MisH4ARK It F47 4 B 53R
financial statements. FKEFEH, -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B W B IR DL AR

At 31 December 2013 R=ZE—=F+_H=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= N O
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TR ARBTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Goodwill GRS 15 104,298 267,298
Property, plant and equipment M - S RERE 16(a) 782,941 601,503
Prepaid lease payments for land KEROTENLHES
under operating leases 17 33,499 34,309
Intangible assets B EE 18 309,988 365,231
Deposits and prepayments HESSENNECE 19 67,055 53,485
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 30(b) 141 152
1,297,922 1,321,978
Current assets mEBEE
Prepaid lease payments for land KEBATENIwES
under operating leases 17 810 810
Financial assets at fair value through QA FEFABZRZ
profit or loss TREE 21 200 200
Inventories FE 22 7,875 5,949
Trade and other receivables FEYER R R Efb U ZRIE 23 180,208 187,387
Tax recoverable B qEE R 30(a) 2,000 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESFED 24 17,656 29,437
208,749 223,783
Current liabilities nE AR
Trade and other payables ERERR R MBI ZRIE 25 357,163 280,191
Bank and other borrowings due —FREEBZRITR
within one year HEMERK 26 162,751 110,600
Obligations under finance leases BERERE 27 33,106 4,747
Provision 2] 28 3,430 2,507
Tax payable FERTBIIE 30(a) 13,671 22,253
570,121 420,298
Net current liabilities REBAERSRE (361,372) (196,515)
Total assets less current liabilities #EER R E & 936,550 1,125,463
~—
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 5 W85k DL A

At 31 December 2013 R =—E—=F+_H=+—H

2013 2012
-2—= —E-CF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AER®Tx ARETF T
Non-current liabilities EREBAR
Bank borrowings SRITRE 26 3,000 5,400
Obligations under finance leases &R &R IE 27 30,400 1,405
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAG 30(b) 82,401 95,955
115,801 102,760
Net assets BEESE 820,749 1,022,703
Capital and reserves EEXR G
Share capital g 7 31(b) 47,333 34,828
Reserves B 758,094 965,232
Equity attributable to equity RAFIERREEGER
shareholders of the Company 805,427 1,000,060
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR 4 2 15,322 22,643
Total equity HiEgs 820,749 1,022,703

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
March 2014.

Wang Zhong Sheng
E B
Director

EF

The notes on pages 74 to 214 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.

EEgR T -WF=A-+N\BHERK

T -

Kwok Shun Tim

SR#lTE
Director

EF

FT4EE2148 2 MK LS4 6 BE TR
REFIG o

68 CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
W85 R DL

At 31 December 2013 R=ZZE—=F+=-A=+—H

2013 2012
-2—= —E-CF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT AREBFT
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - HESRERE 16(b) 1,395 688
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIEE 20 614,517 879,550
615,912 880,238
Current assets e B B E
Trade and other receivables JEURBR R M E M FE U ZRTE 23 238,353 146,858
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEEED 24 4,176 455
242,529 147,313
Current liabilities mE AR
Trade and other payables ERERR R AL B ZRIE 25 6,805 8,751
Other borrowing due —FREE M ER
within one year 26 43,351 -
Tax payable FETBIIE 30(a) 26 42
50,182 8,793
Net current assets B E R E 192,347 138,520
Total assets less current liabilities M EERTHEE 808,259 1,018,758
Non-current liabilities EREBARR
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 30(b) 3,189 2,548
Net assets BESRE 805,070 1,016,210
Capital and reserves BEXER
Share capital (&N 31(b) 47,333 34,828
Reserves Gk 31(a) 757,737 981,382
Total equity HEs 805,070 1,016,210

EZgR T mF=A-+/N\BHERK
RETIE -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
28 March 2014.

Wang Zhong Sheng Kwok Shun Tim

FEH FB 1R
Director Director
BF EF
The notes on pages 74 to 214 form part of these consolidated $ 748 2148 2 i EAK LS4 4 M IS5 H
financial statements. RER I -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
s 3 B ot 5 W) ¢

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 —E— =4+ _A=1+—HILF/E

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARRRRERN
Share Convertible Non-
Share Share General Translation option bonds  Accumulated controling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
—# TR FER
e RiaE L RERE  EREER EREE 2iER Eh & 4y
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AR®TR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2012 #=E-—E—f-RB&# 34,828 878,366 1,523 1,528 28,376 241,209 (133,408) 1,052,422 28975 1,081,397
Loss for the year TEEBE - - - - - - (55,130) (55,130) (6,332) (61,462)
Other comprehensive FEEEBRARY
expense for the year - - - 22 - - - 2 - (22)
Total comprehensive AEERERLAE
expense for the year - - - 22) - - (65,130) (55,152) (6,332) (61,484)
Equity-settled share based  HIRELENRHBER 2
payments B - - - - 2,190 - - 2,790 = 2,790
Lapse of share options ~ EERRIE M - - - - (403) - 403 - - -
Transfer to general reserve BB Z—RE#E - - 889 - - - (889) - - -
Balance at RE-ZF
31 December 2012 TZR=t-H 34,828 878,366 2,412 1,506 30,763 241,209 (189,024) 1,000,060 22,643 1,022,703
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FARRERRMS
Share  Convertible Non-
Share Share General  Translation option bonds  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
-# BE L Fik
k* khER 1] BARE  BREGH RERH RHER @it g e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTE  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ABRTRT  ABRRTR  ABRTR  ARNTR  ARRKTR  ARRTR
Balance at 1 January 2013 #=E-=F—-f-RB&# 34,828 878,366 2,412 1,506 30,763 241,209 (189,024) 1,000,060 22,643 1,022,703
Loss for the year FEEBE - - - - - - (271,440) (271,440 (7,321) (278,761)
Other comprehensive FEEEB2ARY
expense for the year - - - (1,636) - - - (1,636) - (1,636)
Total comprenensive AEERERLAE
expense for the year - - - (1,636) - - (271,440) (273,076) (7,321) (280,397)
Issue of new shares ETHRH
— Share placement —RiEE 3,227 77,454 - - - - - 80,681 - 80,681
— Conversion of — BATARES
convertible bonds 9,278 231,931 - - - (241,209) - - - -
Transaction costs BOTROEERSKE
attributable to
issue of new shares - (2,830) - - - - - (2,830) - (2,830)
Equity-settled share based  DARELE LR BEE 2
payments 5 - - - - 502 - - 502 - 502
Lapse of share options B IRIELH - - - - (506) - 506 = = =
Transfer to general reserve EEZ—REE - - 2,682 - - = (2,682) = = =
Balance at R-2-Z§
31 December 2013 tZAZ+-BER 41,333 1,184,921 5,004 (130) 30,849 - (462,640) 805,427 15,322 820,749

J

The notes on pages 74 to 214 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B Bl AU AR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & — &

—=F+A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—=%f —E—CF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®TTT ARETF T
Operating activities BEER
Loss before taxation MR AT E 1B (291,853) (53,517)
Adjustments for: MTYZIERAE
Depreciation of property, M - BB RRETE
plant and equipment 38,341 29,165
Amortisation of prepaid lease ETRL) TR L
payments for land under e
operating leases 810 810
Amortisation of intangible assets mEESE 30,243 30,243
Impairment loss on goodwill EESNEREY SR 163,000 2,339
Impairment loss on intangible assets & & EREE B 25,000 —
Interest income F 2 WA (47) (44)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, ﬁ%%% - HBE MR
plant and equipment /Eﬂﬁ (2,148) 35
Recognition of equity-settled EEW L/k Hﬂiﬁ ﬁl% A% 17
share based payments %%%Zﬁ 592 2,790
Impairment loss on trade FE W BR R EZEﬁEFWﬂZ
and other receivables FIBZREEE 3,843 2,940
Reversal of impairment loss on oAt JlE Y
other receivables FRIB 2 BB E RO (1,050) —
Fair value loss on other HhemEEL
financial assets NFEEE - 17,051
Finance costs MBER 27,657 7,214
(5,612) 39,026
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
Increase in inventories FE EJJ (1,926) (3,352)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and & 8 B K B HL it B LKL
other receivables mlﬁﬁz 2 / (3% hn) 4,386 (51,569)
Increase in trade and other payables  JEfTERFX
,Eﬁﬂré H X IE 1 AN 54,323 64,423
Increase in provision for I?kiﬁéﬁi‘jﬁ]
production safety 923 2,507
Cash generated from operations EEZEEBEEEZHS 52,094 51,035
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BT EPEMSH (11,033) (6,582)
Net cash generated from BEEXBEEZ
operating activities R&Ra 41,061 44,453
Cash flows from BRETHEEZ
investing activities Haeneg
Payment for purchase of property, ﬁ%&?@% i TN
plant and equipment (B (152,979) (106,800)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMXE  #MBERREL
plant and equipment Fri5 5818 5,413 654
Increase in deposits paid for acquisition HZEE ¥ 3 - =R
of property, plant and equipment BNyl (13,570) (19,803)
Interest received 2 F 8 47 44
Net cash used in investing activities B EFHFFAZHELEH (161,089) (125,905)
——

72 CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
50 Bl R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE
2013 2012
—E—-=% —E—CF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AER®Tx ARET T
Cash flows from financing activities M EEZEHEEZCHERE
Proceeds from issue of new shares BT 2 FT1S 3KI8 80,681 —
Transaction costs for issue of BITHRMD 2 R B
new shares (2,830) —
Proceeds from new bank and FIgRITREMERZ
other borrowings FT 5 3k 18 137,174 66,000
Repayment of bank
and other borrowings EBEEITREMER (87,423) (12,900)
Interest paid on bank and RITREMBERZ
other borrowings AR (15,010) (6,268)
Other borrowing costs paid BT E A E SR A (970) —
Capital element of finance leases R ERL 2 B AL D 57,354 (4,100)
Interest element of finance leases &ML 2 K 2 EH (11,677) (946)
Change in other payable b T RIBE B (47,425) 47,425
Net cash generated from MEEFEREEZ
financing activities H&RE 109,874 89,211
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRRE&EFED
and cash equivalents (RD), BmBE#E (10,154) 7,759
Cash and cash equivalents ®W—A—HZ
at 1 January HeRAESEED 29,437 21,698
Effect of foreign exchange EfgmzieE
rate changes (1,627) (20)
Cash and cash equivalents ®W+=-A=+—HZ
at 31 December ReRBEEFED 24 17,656 29,437
~_

The notes on pages 74 to 214 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bos 5 YA 265 A 25 Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 —E— =4+ _A=1+—HILF/E

74

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Leason CBM & Shale Gas Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 15 July 2002 under
the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the
Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the
“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the “Corporate Information” section in the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the business of
exploitation, liquefaction production and sale of natural gas in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

—REH

TEBREEREEREESEAR
RE([ARRR_EE_F+ A+
TARERESEHEAREZERERS
HMRLAEREERAT - NAH
ZHROREBBARZHBERAR
([BE2 AT ) ) B EAR ([RIZEMR]) ET7 -
AAGadMtEEREEEEME Y
ik HEBRERIDABER] —

£l e

ARRIEBEHERRREER - K
REIREMBAR (R [AKE]) E
2REPEARKIME ([FE])FAR
ERARFR  BRIELLEERBEER
% o

FTESFEE
(@ FERH

tFE A M B MR IVIRAEER
ZEEMEHREER ([FRMK
BELEQRE - FEMHRE
HAUBEBLEGFHAE ([FE
SEAE]) R ZAAEERZ
BRI BB HREER - FEEG
AAER(THEEER]) k&
B BEELERMZERAIA
REBRBGHZEEBRE @ I
RREZGHE - WEHEPBR
RIVE TR FTRIERES £
BMAN(TRIER EHARR) 2@
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis, except those disclosed otherwise in the accounting
policies below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

_i__ﬂziiﬁ Ep. yrum %
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bos 5 YA 265 A 25 Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

76

(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

Going concern

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
RMB278,761,000 during the year ended 31 December
2013 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB361,372,000. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and that the Group may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

2. EESHEE@®)

(b)

REMBBRREREE (@)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak Y 205 8 e M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 —E— =4+ _HA=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

Nevertheless, the directors of the Company had adopted
the going concern basis in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group based on
the following factors:

(1)  Other borrowings of RMB77,000,000 disclosed in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
were due for repayment within 12 months in
accordance with the loan agreements entered into
between the Group and non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries of the Company (note 39). However,
prior to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, these borrowings had been
rolled over for a further 12 months and will be due
for repayment after 31 December 2014. Up to the
date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries of the Company have not indicated their
intention to withdraw the credit facilities granted to
the Group;

(2) Mr. Wang Zhong Sheng (“Mr. Wang”), a substantial
shareholder, the chairman and executive director of
the Company, has confirmed to provide continuing
financial support to the Group to enable it to continue
as a going concern and to settle its liabilities as and
when they fall due in the foreseeable future;

(3) Management is formulating, and will implement, cost
saving measures to improve the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows;
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bos 5 YA 265 A 25 Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

78

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

)

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013

As detailed in note 40, subsequent to the end of the
reporting period and in relation to the top-up placing
and subscription, 880,000,000 subscription shares
were allotted and issued to Mr. Wang at the
subscription price of HK$0.092 per subscription
share pursuant to the subscription agreement dated
20 December 2013. The net proceeds from the
subscription are approximately HK$79,658,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB62,707,000); and

As detailed in note 40, subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, an aggregate of 3,170,867,896
shares of the Company were alloted on 6 February
2014 pursuant to an open offer of 3,170,867,896
new shares of HK$0.01 each on the basis of one
offer share for every two existing shares held on the
record date at the open offer price of HK$0.04 per
offer share. The net proceeds from the open offer
are approximately HK$123,405,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB97,160,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak Y 205 8 e M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 —E— =4+ _HA=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

(o)

financial statements (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

Provided that these measures can successfully improve
the liquidity of the Company, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. According, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis. Should
the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and
liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBER®

80

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with the accounting policies in note
2 depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

(Continued)
(¢) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests ) MBARIRFERER &)
(Continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(¢)) or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(j)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Business combinations and goodwill

(i) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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2.

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBER®

(Continued)

(d) Business combinations and goodwill (d) ¥BEHREE B
(Continued)
(i) Business combinations (Continued) i)y XEBKaot(#E)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 —E— =4+ _HA=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESEHABER®

(Continued)

d) ¥BE0REE &)

(d) Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

84

(d) Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

(i

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESEHABER®

(Continued)

d) ¥BE0HREE (4

(d) Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control)
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy
above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTBER@®

(Continued)

d) X¥EXESHEEE (®)

(d) Business combinations and goodwill

86

(Continued)

(i) Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

(e) Other investments in debt and equity

securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses
only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2ETBER @)

(Continued)

2. £E

(e) Other investments in debt and equity (e) NMEBRRAES 2HMIIR

securities (Continued) (&)

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as REFEERZREIRF2REHDSR
current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are HMERBEE - Eﬂf{ﬁ 25,
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each FAREEREBERANER - AF
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any TEH’\ﬂiE:‘:HH?Ei%ﬁd‘E il
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Sz EMAEINNIED AR
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not R RNBEABRZBEFAT

include any dividends or interest earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2(t).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-
maturity securities are stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
As an exception to this, investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note
2(j)). Dividend income from equity securities and interest
income from debt securities calculated using the effective
interest method are recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2(t). Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of debt securities are also recognised in
profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

88

(e)

®

(g)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (Continued)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(j)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(j)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note
2(v)).

2. FESHEHE ®
(&) RERRBRAES > HMR

®

(g)

& #®)

ZEREDEERIERAE (R
MaE2() B - RiERSER 2 Bt
WakEEENDEERR - &
ERAEEAZBEAHERE
FREERE AR BUH®

=7
Eo

TTEEMTA

?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁlﬂ%ﬂﬁé?ﬁ”&?ﬁﬁ@
R o N ER G ERE HRERH
T8 MFHZ EAIEE R BN
RIBRANER EFERERE
P ET R IR S EIHIE N ERF
TQEZ@TEIEEAE%HEE—%%

SEM BB < MR R AR TP
/’:PIE\ BZ2HEEMmME o

Y5 > MERRE

W EBENEE(EEIRER
AN B AR 2 5HT B MR BB 1B
HIBR (R BTsE2() -

BEYE  #EREREEE ZK
REFEYRKA - BESTK
A~ FrE R B IA B AR IRTETR
BTN R 2 A 2 M fhat
(HE) MBS EERT
&R MEERA (RHFE2(V) -

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk 5 Y 55 i 30 Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 —E— =4+ _HA=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESEHABER®

(Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (@ Y HBRFHE A

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits/accumulated losses
and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings held for own use  Over the shorter of
unexpired term of the

leases or 30 years

— Leasehold improvements 2-5 years

— Pipelines 5-20 years
— Plant and machinery 3-10 years
— Computer equipment 3-5 years

— Furniture and equipment 3-10 years
— Transportation and 4-10 years

motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation
and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Cost includes the costs of construction of the
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery and interest
charges arising from borrowings used to finance these
assets during the period of construction or installation
and testing. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until such time the relevant assets
are completed and are available for their intended use.
When the assets concerned are brought into use, the
costs are transferred to other property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy
as stated above.

Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion
of infrastructure facilities such as platforms, pipelines and
the drilling of commercially proven development wells but
do not include geological and geophysical costs which
are expensed directly to profit or loss as they are incurred,
is capitalised as coalbed methane development costs
within construction in progress. Coalbed methane
development costs are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. Coalbed methane development costs
are classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation on these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Tangible assets acquired for use in well drilling works of
ground drainage activities are classified as property, plant
and equipment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see note 2())).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they are available
for use over their estimated useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the
useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed
annually to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment
for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance
with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets with
finite lives as set out above.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

92

()

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases,
except that land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 2(g). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 2(j). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

94

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges (Continued)

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property
is classified as an investment property or is held for
development for sale.

(j) Impairment of assets

(i

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESEHABER®

(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued) () EERE#@)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity () REBERBRAZFSZRER

securities and other receivables (Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in associates and joint
ventures accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial
statements, the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 2(j)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note

2())(ii).

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

96

)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESEHABER®

(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued) () EERE#@)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity i) REBRRAZFZFZREKR
securities and other receivables (Continued) HAibEWRIE 2 BE (&)
—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative — HBAHLEEZFSM
loss that has been recognised in the fair value CERA ?Tﬁ f#
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The EEWZE%J‘J%TEEE
amount of the cumulative loss that is MOoBEERZE - N8
recognised in profit or loss is the difference nHERZ RTEES
between the acquisition cost (net of any R (IR
principal repayment and amortisation) and fAIEEARE R &

current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-
sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

98

(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)
Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— goodwill;

—  property, plant and equipment;

— prepaid lease payments for land under
operating leases;

— intangible assets;

— deposits and prepayments; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives,
the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBER®

(Continued)

() EERE®#E)

(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued) (i) HiEERE E)
—  Recognition of impairment losses BRREERE

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or BEEESEMBRS

loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the EEXBN REER

cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
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to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) EEReEEEL (3
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the B AR 2 E B

other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
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individual fair value less costs of disposal (if BEZERAE HE
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—  Reversals of impairment losses B EREEE

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an REEUINZEEM

impairment loss is reversed if there has been a = 0 WA AEE AT Uk

favourable change in the estimates used to SREZMMFTHEA
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determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.
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A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to BEEE 2 BB AR
the asset’s carrying amount that would have BEFE I EIERR
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impairment losses are credited to profit or loss BEEE BB AR
in the year in which the reversals are REZERLCEEZ

recognised.
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(Continued)

o)

(k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year (see notes

2()(i) and (ii).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the
fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period, or
in any other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

102

(k)

()]

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 2(j)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

(m) Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of any entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk 5 Y 55 i 30 Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 —E— =4+ _HA=1+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESEHABER®

(Continued)

(m) Convertible bonds (Continued) (m) ATRRES &)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using
the effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised,
in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible bonds, the balance recognised in equity will
be transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
recognised directly in equity in the convertible bonds
reserve. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability component and are amortised over the lives of
the convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

104

(n)

(o)

(p)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(x), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

(n)

(o)

(p)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(q) Employee benefits

(i

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance and mandatory central
pension schemes organised by the local government
of the PRC government are recognised as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as incurred.

Share-based payments

Share options granted by the Company to
employees of the Group in an equity-settled
share-based payment arrangement

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Binomial option pricing model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total
estimated fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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(q) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013

Share-based payments (Continued)

Share options granted by the Company to
employees of the Group in an equity-settled
share-based payment arrangement (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to the retained profits/
accumulated losses).

Share options granted to consultant in an equity-
settled share-based payment transactions

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at fair values of the goods or
services rendered, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the goods or
services received are measured by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of goods or services received are recognised as
expenses immediately, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets. Corresponding
adjustment has been made to equity (share option
reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

n

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9,

108

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

n

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 —E— =4+ _A=1+—HILF/E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
() Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013 = — &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

®

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of liquefied coalbed gas and piped
natural gas

Revenue from sales of liquefied coalbed gas and
piped natural gas are recognised when the gas is
delivered and title has passed. Revenue excludes
value-added tax and is after deduction of any goods
returns, trade discounts and business tax.

Income from provision of gas supply
connection services

Revenue from provision of gas supply connection
services is recognised when the relevant
construction work is completed and connection
services are rendered.

Income from provision of liquefied coalbed gas
logistics services

Revenue from provision of logistics services is
recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

112

®

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net less payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Value-added tax and other tax refund
Value-added tax and other tax refund are recognised
when the acknowledgement of refund from the PRC
Tax Bureau has been received.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

®

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(vii) Government grants (Continued)
A government grant that becomes receivables as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the entity with no future related
costs shall be recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which it becomes receivable.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”).
The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars (‘HK$”) and the presentation currency is RMB. The
reason for using RMB as a presentation currency is that
the functional currency of the principal entities within the
Group is RMB.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

_i——ﬂiﬁiﬁ EP. yrum %

2. TE8

)

(u)

Ak Y 205 8 e M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 — & —

=FFT A=+ —HILFE

SR (@)

Wy = W BT ()

(vii) BUSERL (B)
EREA 2 A BB
Bk AT BIRERN I BIR
Bl 2 e YLK A 32 B 40 A8 SR 2R
KA - EREREAR
BRER o

HEEBRE

AEBEEBCMBRRTAE
‘BZBEE - HERBERERER
PrEc EBEBERRZEHE ([
REEE])EITHE - REMBR
RIAARE (AR 251 -
ARmRlzNeeE¥ RBT (8
T MEREERARYE - £
ARBEREREE 2 RALK
SENETEEBZHRERTR
AR% -

FAUINEEE 2 XG5 THIERR 5
EHZERBE o PINEFEZ
BEREERAE BRBEHR
ZERIRE o B H W REETY
RIBz AR ©

R SE AT B R ASMNESIHE 2
FEBEEREE  NERRS
BRIz ERGE - IMNESIEL
BAFEIRZIFEREERA
& ARNFEAFEERZE
KI|E -

REEREXRKEEERLF 113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bos 5 YA 265 A 25 Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & — &

—ZE+-ASH—AIEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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(u) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

)

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1
January 2005, are translated into RMB at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the translation reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

)

(w)

(6%

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHBER®

(Continued)

(x) Financial guarantee contracts (Continued) x) BMEEREHN &)
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are AREEFBEIT M BEERE DY
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated FIRAERNTEE - B IEE
as at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently EREAFERE=YIE - RIFE
measured at the higher of: BIEATZBEETE :

— the amount of the obligation under the contract, as —
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

— the amount initially recognised less, where —
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition policies.

RIBF B G ERFEI75 &
EZEHBEEEZR R

VT HERZ SRR (T8 FH)
RIBU S R BUR TR 2 R
RE-FER

(y) Related parties (y) BAEAL

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, (@)
is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b)
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESEHABER®

(Continued)
(y) Related parties (Continued) (y) BEAL #E)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (o) fHFFE THEMGEE - BNE
conditions applies: (Continued) REASESHE: (B)
(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of i) —HERRES—ER

the other entity (or an associate or joint venture M Z N FHE % e

of a member of a group of which the other ¥ E—EBARKE

entity is a member). NAIZEEETKE
ARAZEEREIHE
ERZE) o

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MEEBHARE—
party. ZHAREERE -

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —HEBARE=FE
and the other entity is an associate of the third BHEERE M5
entity. —ERBRZFE=-FE

BoEE AR o

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan v) BERASASEENHENR
for the benefit of employees of either the Group SEE#HECEEH
or an entity related to the Group. & B F| 55 8% 3 7Y B B

‘rapErEl -

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by vi) ERXZ@MER AL
a person identified in (a). 2 ) 3 X FE R 1l o

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (i) K@) ATHE
influence over the entity or is a member of the BEEATENIEB
key management personnel of the entity (or of ZER (jZ;A =15
a parent of the entity). AR EFEEBRENK

E o

Close members of the family of a person are those EARTBRKEK B g

family members who may be expected to influence, ZERETR SRR

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with 2 FXZEATENRE

the entity. X8 o
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation
of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Revised HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 — 2011
Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Impacts of the adoption of new or amended HKFRSs are
discussed below:
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of Iltems
of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments require entities to present separately the items
of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to
profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from
those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The
presentation of other comprehensive income in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
these consolidated financial statements has been modified
accordingly. In addition, the Group has chosen to use the new
titles “statement of profit or loss” and “statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income” as introduced by the
amendments in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated
and separate financial statements relating to the preparation
of consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12
Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It introduces a single
control model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has power over
the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power
to affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to determining
whether it has control over an investee. The adoption does not
change any of the control conclusions reached by the Group
in respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1 January
2013.

3.

SETBERNES &)

ERETERNE IR BT
HMBEHRRZZH — A2 EHK
wHE 225

ZEBITRAETERBZ2INEMEE
Wik 2 HB D R EEmE S TR
THEABHHIBERHEZHEAE &
HZEXKBRIEEH O BRERRZRA
B - NEEDEHRUEMBERR 2L
FHEGAEMEERERTEMERE
etz 2FEHAREE o) - &K
SEERLEREMBHRREZLH
AFERBIAZHIEEBRER] KB
mMEMEmKER] -

BRMBHREERNE105 - 75
M %

B BRELEAZI0RBRELS
AHERIE27SR - ARG AMBERR L
R RERBUMBEHRERER —
FHRREZEE —RES12RFE —
BHEAERZRTE - ZERSIAE
—EHIERN - NEEERSHRIRE
NAEEAR T2RTERRSH
BIERIWIRERF - e BE2HEER
BERBIRGMAERRKAEERSE
K ARESERERNUATZE
ZELHREH -

RERMF BT HREERF105R %R -
AEEERETERLEENRKRER
ANEEGHHR ML EEE
EAAREERER -_T—=F—H—
B2 HH (B B8 S 2 P R

A
A ©

“ECFFR PEEBREBRESREXSEERRAF 119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bos 5 YA 265 A 25 Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 —E— =4+ _A=1+—HILF/E

120

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31, Interests in joint ventures,
divides joint arrangements into joint operations and joint
ventures. Entities are required to determine the type of an
arrangement by considering the structure, legal form,
contractual terms and other facts and circumstances relevant
to their rights and obligations under the arrangement. Joint
arrangements which are classified as joint operations under
HKFRS 11 are recognised on a line-by-line basis to the extent
of the joint operator’s interest in the joint operation. All other
joint arrangements are classified as joint ventures under HKFRS
11 and are required to be accounted for using the equity method
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed as an accounting policy
choice.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures required by
HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than those previously
required by the respective standards. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has
provided those disclosures in note 20.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS
13 also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair
value measurements for both financial instruments and non-
financial instruments. To the extent that the requirements are
applicable to the Group, the Group has provided those
disclosures in these consolidated financial statements. The
adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material impact on
the fair value measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities.

Revised HKAS 19, Employee Benefits

Revised HKAS 19 introduces a number of amendments to the
accounting for defined benefit plans. Among them, revised
HKAS 19 eliminates the “corridor method” under which the
recognition of actuarial gains and losses relating to defined
benefit schemes could be deferred and recognised in profit or
loss over the expected average remaining service lives of
employees. Under the revised standard, all actuarial gains and
losses are required to be recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income. Revised HKAS 19 also changed the
basis for determining income from plan assets from expected
return to interest income calculated at the liability discount rate,
and requires immediate recognition of past service cost,
whether vested or not.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-201 1
Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments to
five standards with consequential amendments to other
standards and interpretations. Among them, HKAS 1 has been
amended to clarify that an opening statement of financial
position is required only when a retrospective application of an
accounting policy, a retrospective restatement or a
reclassification has a material effect on the information
presented in the opening statement of financial position. The
amendments also remove the requirement to present related
notes to the opening statement of financial position when such
statement is presented.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new
disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32, Financial
instruments: Presentation and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that covers similar financial instruments and transactions,
irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact on
these consolidated financial statements because the Group has
not offset financial instruments, nor has it entered into master
netting arrangement or similar agreement which is subject to
the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during the periods presented.

The directors consider that other than the additional disclosures,
the adoption of the new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs
has no material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a few amendments and
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2013 and which have not been early adopted in
these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Hedge Accounting and
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39 amendments to HKFRS 9,
HFKRS 7 and HKAS 39°

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  /nvestment Entities’
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities"

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets:
Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets’

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
earlier application permitted.
3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be

determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions.

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for
adoption.

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application but is not yet
in a position to state whether those amendments and new
standards would have a significant impact on the Group’s or
the Company’s results of operations and financial position.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

(@) Sources of estimation uncertainty

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i

Estimation of impairment of goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units (“CGU(s)”) to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 December 2013, the carrying amount of the
Group’s goodwill was approximately
RMB104,298,000 (2012: RMB267,298,000). Details
of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed
in note 15.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, an
impairment loss of approximately RMB163,000,000
(2012: Nil) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss resulting in the carrying
amount of the coalbed methane exploration and
development, natural gas liquefaction and liquefied
natural gas (“LNG”) distribution CGU being written
down to its recoverable amount.

ECE—=FF+ A=+ —HILFE

CEgs] PSSR

HE R AF R R B TEER M EMRE
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HIRREIR) (EL AT -
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Ft T HEEE 2 T2RRAT ¢

(i)

PR E 2 [AE
ErmEft LR AEZRRN
TRESEEECReELS
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HMEZEABENAARK
104,298,0007L (=T — =
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

126

(@) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i

(ii)

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013

Estimation of impairment of goodwill
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, an
impairment loss of approximately RMB2,339,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss resulting in the carrying amount of the
piped natural gas CGU located in Guangxi being
written down to its recoverable amount.

Estimation of impairment of intangible assets
The Group performs annual tests on whether there
has been impairment of intangible assets in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
2(j). The recoverable amounts of CGUs are
determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future
operation of the business, pre-tax discount rates,
and other assumptions underlying the value in use
calculations. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amount of the Group’s intangible assets was
approximately RMB309,988,000 (2012:
RMB365,231,000).

An impairment loss of approximately
RMB25,000,000 (2012: Nil) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2013 resulting in the carrying
amount of the piped natural gas CGU located in
Guangxi being written down to its recoverable
amount.

4.

BT A R A E (@)

(@ fEsFAEEMNZHR (&)

(i)

(ii)

BB E 2 d5 (&)

HE-ZT——F+=-A=+
—HIFE  RireBmER
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FEREEMURE TR E S
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At B EERE
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EEBA 2 AR E S RRIRE
REBZFEMEE - %%
STERAEEEBRBRER
LB RRBRIAREM{EZ
fhet R - AREMEE
ERABERAEZRE - R
—E—=F+-_B=+—
B AX&EBEFEECER
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T(ZE—ZF : AR%
365,231,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 4. STHHER M @)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(@) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (@ HEFTBEMEZRIR (&)

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives
and residual values for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(g). The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different from previous estimates, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment was
approximately RMB782,941,000 (2012:
RMB601,503,000).

Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 2(h). The
determination of the useful lives involves
management’s estimation. The Group re-assesses
the useful life of the intangible assets and, if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the amortisation in the year
and the estimate will be changed in the future period.

_i__$$$|§ EP. yrum %
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STATEMENTS

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 4. SntH R A @)

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(@) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (@ HEFTBEMEZRIR (&)

(v) Estimation of impairment of trade and other (v)

receivables

The policy for recognising impairment on receivables
of the Group is based on an evaluation of the
collectibility and ageing analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each debtor. If the financial conditions of the Group’s
debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairment may be required.

(vi) Net realisable value of inventories (vi)
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined
on the basis of the estimated selling price less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale. Management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. As at 31 December 2013,
the carrying amount of the Group’s inventories was
approximately RMB7,875,000 (2012:
RMB5,949,000).

(vii) Valuation of share options granted (vii)
The fair value of share options granted to employees
were calculated using the Binomial option pricing
model involving estimates including estimated life
of share options granted, future dividends and
volatility of share price.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 —E— =4+ _HA=1+—HILFE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 4. SntH R A @)

ESTIMATES (Continued)
(@) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (a)

(viii) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set-up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying (b)
the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following critical accounting
judgements:

(i) Renewal of gas business operating permits

The Group holds certain gas business operating
permits with licence period of 1 to 5 years at date of
issue which will be expired in year 2014 to 2018
and the renewal of which is subject to the approval
by the relevant PRC authorities. In the opinion of
the directors, taking into account legal opinion from
the Company’s PRC legal counsel, there are no legal
impediments for the Group to renew its gas business
operating permits upon expiry.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

130

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Renewal of gas business operating permits

(Continued)

If the Group were unable to renew these permits
upon expiry, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
goodwill and intangible assets of approximately
RMB104,298,000 (2012: RMB267,298,000) and
RMB309,988,000 (2012: RMB365,231,000)
respectively might be significantly reduced, and the
Group might increase amortisation charges of those
assets where their useful lives are less than
previously estimated, or it might write off or write
down the carrying amounts of those assets.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied and
services provided to customers, which excludes value-added
tax and is after deduction of any goods returns, trade discounts
and business tax. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

4. SEHHER MG @

(b) HEEAREESBRK
B2 EXREEHE (@)

() RAREBLEHIENE
5 (&)
B NEB AR ZETA
FEHARER - AIAREER
EREFVEENEREED A
# A\ R #104,298,0007T (=
L — — £ AR &
267,298,0007T) & AR
309,988,000 (ZE— =
F : AR¥365,231,0007T)
AREERIEBMRE - MASKE
AR MERFHRINZ
AEFT R EEENREE
FA - kAT B S S MUR % 5
BEMKEME -

EXBRATPRMAS MR ZH
EE BIBEEER - WK EMR
RE BEINMREEN - FARE
FEERZEHEEAMRERN BN
T~

2013 2012
—2—= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Sales of liquefied coalbed gas  BILEERIEE 132,560 131,843
Provision of liquefied coalbed RABRAC K B R IR 15
gas logistics services 6,830 18,470
Sales of piped natural gas BEBRARHEE
(including provision of gas (BREREEHAER
supply connection services) AR 75) 47,794 38,521
187,184 183,834
——
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 6. Hitlzz R IWAFREE
2013 2012
=% —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Interest income from |ITIHF R F B WA
bank deposits 47 44
Net foreign exchange gain SN WY a5 SRR - 79
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - WS REEL
plant and equipment Wz 2,148 =

Rental income He A - 3,830

Government grants DT 2 Bh

— PRC Enterprise Income — RBEPEMETERD
Tax refund (note 8(a)) (Bff3E8(a)) - 821

Reversal of impairment loss on  H {th fE U k18

other receivables 2 BRI B E 1,050 —
Other income (note) H A (B5E) 1,441 50,887
4,686 55,661

———

Note: Included in other income for the year ended 31 December 2012 M =T ——F+-_A=+—HLHF
was a compensation income of approximately RMB50,750,000 to EMEMBABERNFEERSEERL
compensate for the shortage of electricity supply in the industrial LHRETXRENHEHERROFEEK
zone where the Group operates. There were no other specific A# AR #50,750,0007T ° @ EIL
conditions attached to the compensation and, therefore, the Group mU A EMERIEYS - Bt AEE
recognised the compensation income in profit or loss for the year REBE_T——_F+_-_A=+—HI
ended 31 December 2012, FEBHERARIBEANER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

132

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BRB A& B

BRIAEIES MR AT SIR

2013 2012
—T—=% —T-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®ET T
(a) Staff costs (@ BIREF
(including directors’ and (BIEMEoPAY
chief executive’s ERRTHER
emoluments in note 9) o))
Salaries, wages and e IEBR
other benefits E b 48 A 23,543 20,087
Retirement benefit RRE A ET B
schemes contributions 3,231 2,838
Equity-settled share-based VA B # 45 & LARR 19
payment expenses REWR 2 NHREAX 394 1,909
Total staff costs BB TR 27,168 24,834
(b) Other items (b) HMIEAH
Cost of inventories FE 2K
(note 22(b)) (M sE22(b)) 88,900 95,734
Auditors’ remuneration A% B % B
— audit services — ZER® 1,437 1,466
— non-audit services — IERREBRTE 163 —
Depreciation of property, VI - HES AR
plant and equipment e 38,341 29,165
Equity-settled share-based HLE T RA 2 B AR A
payment expenses in Bz AREEE
respect of share options VARRAD A 2
granted to consultants NRFEX 24 105
Amortisation of prepaid KAL) TIEN T
lease payments for land T 85
under operating leases 810 810
Amortisation of intangible | A EESH
assets (included in cost (FFASBERKA)
of sales) 30,243 30,243
Impairment of trade and JFE Ui R 5K B EL i FE s
other receivables FIBZBIE
(included in other (FrFAH e
operating expenses) ) 3,843 2,940
Net foreign exchange loss HINGEE &5 15 )% 58 291 —
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  HEXR
plant and equipment Bl e
(included in other (FFAE A&
operating expenses) F %) = 35
Operating lease charges in T REF
respect of land and KEBHHE R
buildings 923 898
——
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # %2 — & —

7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: (Continued)

7. BRBAIEE &

=Ff+-A=

T—HIEFE

BRIATEBEDS AT R : (8)

2013 2012
—2—= —E-——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%®TR ARETF T
(c) Finance costs (c) ®WERF
Interest expenses on BARAFAZH
bank and other B8 2 IRITREAM
borrowings wholly BERzF BRI~
repayable within
five years*® 15,010 6,113
Other finance cost H b gt & B AR 970 1565
Finance charges on BMEROEREZ
obligations under MEEH
finance leases 11,677 946
Total interest expense on I IR N FEFTA
financial liabilities Bmzer
not at fair value through BEZMERE
profit or loss B 27,657 7,214
~—_

Interest expenses on other borrowings paid to non-controlling

shareholders of subsidiaries amounted to approximately
RMB4,170,000 during the year (2012: RMB3,943,000).

—ECFFHR TEBEBREBRESRERSE

* TR BAKIBA R EERIRAEM
BERZFERAZL A ARY4,170,000
T(ZE—Z=F : AR¥3,943,000

JT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

8.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

represents:

8.

REBEBERRNZFAEH

HAEBERANZHIALE

2013 2012
—E—=% —T—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Current tax — PRC Enterprise EJHIiRIE — th &
Income Tax (“EIT”) LEMRSBR
(T&XmB{MI)
Provision for the year REZEE 424 15,283
Under-provision in respect BEFERETR
of prior years 27 683
451 15,966
Deferred tax ERERIE
Origination and reversal of TREFELER
temporary differences o (13,543) (8,021)
Income tax (credit)/charge FIS® E%) X H (13,092) 7,945

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Company Law of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly,
is exempted from payment of the Cayman Islands income

tax.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for the year ended
31 December 2013 (2012: 16.5%). No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group has no
estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:

Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

8. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents: (Continued)

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
countries.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

A PRC subsidiary, namely At JEZEEER B R A A
(transliterated as Hebei Shuntai Energy Resources
Company Limited) (“Hebei Shuntai”) is entitled to a
preferential EIT refund treatment, the refund is equal to
20% of the EIT paid to the PRC State Bureau of Taxation
for the period from January 2011 to December 2013.

“ECFFR PEEBREBRESREXSEERRAF

8. MEBERRAZEBH @

REBBRRAZHEAR : (A)

TSI B A R R B IR T 1R AE R B
FETEABERTE -

RETFEBARERMABRAE
(TEERMBBIA] REERAEHR
EEIGD - EMBARE =
FZENF-A-—BEZBREXR
25% -

BB QB IEZREEIRA R
~m (DAdbIEZR ) ZAEEMEF
BURBLFFE  RUBR-F——
F-RE_Z—=F+_-HAHH
AE R R A EAFHRA
20% °
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8.

136

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8. MEBERRAZMEH »©
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/charge and (b) RERABEFTEZEH (EE)
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: SXHBASTERZEERT ¢
2013 2012
—Z—=F —ET-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Loss before taxation B T4 Al S5 18 (291,853) (53,517)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, 1% #8855 7] A 4
calculated at the rates applicable  EERH R E
to the tax jurisdictions concerned BT AT ET 1B & & 18 (72,064) (13,392)
Tax effect of non-deductible TAHNBRASZ cBIETE
expenses 47,215 10,041
Tax effect of non-taxable income  HBERFHEUWMA Z FHIBZ (262) —
Tax effect of tax losses AR B R IBE IR 2
not allowed for tax deduction g2 11,547 10,578
PRC withholding tax FEITENEL 641 369
Utilisation of tax losses previously BN LRI AR 2 HiIEE R
not recognised (196) (334)
Under-provision in respect of BAFEREDNRE
prior years 27 683
Income tax (credit)/charge FTSf (Ee) S (13,092) 7,945
(c) Pursuant to the EIT Law in the PRC, from 1 January 2008, ) WBERBEGEMSHE BRZZ

ZFET=A=

T—HIEFE

non-resident enterprises without an establishment or
place of business in the PRC or which have an
establishment or place of business in the PRC but whose
relevant income is not effectively connected with the
establishment or a place of business in the PRC, will be
subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10% (unless
reduced by tax treaty) on various types of passive income
such as dividends derived from sources within the PRC.

FNF-A—RBEE EFERA
KRR ~ HAT > REHET
BIRARIEE - SAERFZ
YA BB AR B AR Y P AR B

BRAEERBEZERD
% BARSEHEFIA QR
FEBIRAZ BE) 2 10%H E (B
FERTAI A TE R 2) BN TR
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(c) (Continued)

Pursuant to the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement
and the related regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax
resident will be liable for a reduced withholding tax rate
of 5% on dividends from a PRC enterprise if the Hong
Kong tax resident is the “beneficial owner” and holds 25%
or more of the equity interest of the PRC enterprise. A
withholding tax rate of 5% is applicable to entities held
by a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2012:
eight) directors and the chief executive were as follows:

RERBERAZAES @)

()

(&)

RETEEEHR LR EBR
T HEAANERSTEAE
MIEREAEA]l  XRHEZTE
BE25%HA EIRAERE - A&
REBHNERES B LFIRM
H RS BIA] Z B R E TR B AR
R5% o AERBEMAIL < KB
RABEZERZAARER
5% o

9. EERFETHRAEME

BENSHEMNE(ZZE—=F : N\F&)
EENTETRASZHMESHOT ¢

-

Salaries

Fees emoluments

ek

and other Discretionary

fie EfFEH  BRTEC
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000

Equity-
Retirement settled
benefit share-based
scheme payment 2013
bonus contributions  Sub-total  expenses Total
NRE&ER
afRd NEREBER —3-Z%

iR Pt ZHRRX #it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR ARBTR ARWTR ARRTR ARRTR ARWTR ARRIR

Executive directors WiTES

Wang Zhong Sheng B - 1,042 12 1,054 - 1,054

Kok Shun Tim (Note () A (H3E() - 160 - 160 - 160

Shi Liang Hi% - 116 17 133 - 133

Zhang Qing Lin (Note (i) ok (B aE ) - - - - - -

Fu Shou Gang OEL - 275 - 275 - 275

Independent non-executive ~ BIAFHTEE

directors

Wang Zhi He A 87 - - 87 - 87

Luo Wei Kun BEE 40 - - 40 - 40

Pang Yuk Fong ¥in 40 - - 40 - 40
167 1,593 29 1,789 - 1,789
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERFETHAENE

EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)
Equity-
Retirement settled
Salaries benefit share-based
and other  Discretionary scheme payment 2012
Fees  emoluments honus  contributions Sub-total EXDENses Total
RS
#eR RIEH KR REE —T--%
e HEBEM O RERL HEHEX Nt ZRFREX h

RVBOOO  RMB'OO0  RMBO00  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMBO00  RMB'O00
ARBTL  ARBTR  ARETR ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Executive directors BiTEs

Wang Zhong Sheng Bl - 1,059 - 15 1074 - 1,074

Feng San L (Note (i) =7 (W25 - % - - 9 - %

ShiLiang it - 3 = 11 47 = 47

Zhang Qing Lin (Note (i) B (W) - 122 - - 122 - 122

Fu Shou Gang OEL - 58 - - 528 - 528

Independent non-executive ~ BAFH{TES

directors

Wang Zhi He T 47 - - - 47 - 47

Luo Wei Kun BEE 9% - - - 9 - 9

Pang Yuk Fong 291 4 - - - 4 - 4

183 1,838 - 26 2,047 - 2,047

Notes: B 5T -

()  Appointed on 2 January 2013. i) RZZE—=F—FA-HEZF-

(i)  Retired on 27 May 2013. i) MZTZ—=FRA=-F+tHEFE-

(i) The chief executive officer of the Company Mr. Feng San Li, was (i)  ANDRITHAAZFT=AEETA/ART
also a director of the Company. Mr. Feng San Li was retired on 26 B B=FEAER=ZT—Z=F+—A8
November 2012, Z+RBRE-

During the year ended 31 December 2013, since the Bz =%+_-_A=+—HIt#F

appointment of the chief executive officer of the Company B ARARTHMAREZETEHEAE -

remains outstanding, no emoluments were paid to the chief WM AR RITHAR IS -

executive officer of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Neither the chief executive officer nor any of the directors waived
any emoluments in the year ended 31 December 2013 and
2012. No inducement payments to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office were paid or payable
to any director or the chief executive officer for the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
three (2012: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

9.

10.

EERFETRAEME

(&)

REBEE-E—=R-_FT——-F+=-H
=+t—BIEFE - SIETREeRRE
MEEREAMNMNE - REBEE=_F—
=k —FE——F+-_A=+—HIHF
E - WEREREFSRITHRAER N
HEMEMIMAREB S MAREE
o SBE S B AE o

REFAL
AEBALAZEHFALF £ (R

——F:MB)/EF  KEZMER
FIFEOmEE - bR (ZF——4F -

other two (2012: three) individuals are as follows: ZH)ATZMESREERNT ¢
2013 2012
—$—= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥ « TE& K EbEF 400 520
Retirement benefit schemes IRRAE A ET B K
contributions 9 24
Equity-settled share-based VARR #E 45 S LARR D R BB 2
payment expenses HRAX - 204
409 748
~—_
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10.

11.

12.

140

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments of the two (2012: three) individuals with the

10.

BEaH AL @

ME(CE-——F: ZR)BRBHFAL

highest emoluments are within the following band: ZHENFUATEHE :
2013 2012
—E—=%F —E-=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AB AEL
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 7T £1,000,0007 7T 2 3

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 includes
a loss of approximately RMB14,877,000 (2012:
RMB35,101,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been proposed or declared by the directors
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

11.

12.

RAREERREAEE

B T—=F+-_A=1+—HItHF
B ARaE=RREGEEEERR
FERARRVBHREEE ZBELD
AR¥14,877,000C (ZFE——F : A
R #35,101,0007T) °

Hﬁ /%\

HE-_ZE—=F+-A=1+—HItF
B BEBZVERZRMNIEREE (=
T——F:E) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BEREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share AARERRREGERERNRES
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is based BB TRIE T Y SURTE

on the following data:

2013 2012
—2—= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Loss BiR

Loss for the year attributable to 5 & &R A K& #5# 518
equity shareholders of i P /NIy
the Company for the purposes AR 5 E(E F N &R
of basic and diluted loss

per share (271,440) (55,130)
2013 2012
—2—-=5 —F—=
’000 ‘000
TFBx T %
Number of shares B
Issued ordinary shares R—A—BzZBB{TLER
at 1 January 3,942,505 3,942,505
Effect of issue of shares BRBRMNEEBETRND 2 FE
by share placement 292,603 —
Effect of conversion of ARl EHEER 28
convertible bonds 602,523 —

Weighted average number of HEEREAR B EEIER
ordinary shares at 31 December HAZR+-A=+—HZ
for the purposes of basic TR INE I
and diluted loss per share 4,837,631 3,942,505

~——o
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13.

14.

142

LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

Diluted loss per share attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012
is the same as the basic loss per share as the effect of dilutive
potential ordinary shares from share options and convertible
bonds are anti-dilutive.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group’s operating segments are determined based on
information reported to the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM”), being the Company’s board of directors, for the
purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment.
The CODM reviews the Group’s internal reporting, assesses
the performance and allocates the resources of the Group as a
whole, as all of the Group’s activities are considered to be
primarily dependent on the performance of exploitation,
liquefaction production and sale of natural gas in the PRC.
Therefore, the CODM considers there is only one operating
segment under the requirements of HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments. In this regard, no segment information is presented.

Additional disclosure in relation to segment information is not
presented as the CODM assess the performance of the sole
operating segment identified based on the consistent
information as disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

The total segment result is equivalent to total comprehensive
expense for the year as shown in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the total
segment assets and total segment liabilities are equivalent to
total assets and total liabilities as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

13.

14.

BRERE ®

HE_ZT—=FR-_FT——F+=A8
=+ —HLEFEARQREDREEMN
BREEEHERSREABBMRAR
RESERERITBRKRES CBEE
EEBRERREELE -

okt

f 2 2

AEBNEEDBIRBEAEEZE
REN([EREERRA] - AIARF]
EEQ)ERDEMKRBANEMER
MERMERE - BRAKENMERE
FHRSETBERBERNETEAR &
fEEEMRBERARNKRE - BFE
BRBEANEBE LRI ARENA
MER  AEARENRRE D EA
SEER - Hit - BFREERRAR
RBEEBYBREERFESHKLED
HRRE  AEEHERA -—ELZED
e BUtmE - AWENDEEFR

i)

HREFEEERRAREBRE M H R
RPFEN—EERMAZE B
E—REDIMIRE AL EZ5
BB BERNBEINEE -

DHRERBERERN A EEBRR
IR ANEE 2 HEF AR - MoH
BEREBNRDBABEBEIEFINE
BUBRAKRMTANBEEERESR

f& -
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14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 14. 7 EEHK @)
(@) Geographical information (a) ihIB &R
The Group principally operates in Hong Kong and the REBTEABFAERPRALESE
PRC. % e
The Group’s turnover from external customers and AEEZMEGE S D HIRE S
information about its non-current assets by geographical HBREFHEEBRIERBEEN
locations are detailed below: BERFFAT -
Turnover from
external customers Non-current assets*
REMBEFRMERE FRBEE
)
2013 2012 2013 2012
—Z2-= —T-—F | Z8-= —E-C-F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE | ARBTT | ARWFR | ARE T

Hong Kong BE - - 304 170
PRC H 187,184 183,834 1,297,477 1,321,656
187,184 183,834 1,297,781 1,321,826
EE—————
* Non-current assets excluding deferred tax assets. * IRBDEETBREERIESE
E °
(b) Information about major customers b)) FEEEHER
Turnover from customers of corresponding years MEFEEL EERANREE A
contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group is as F10%MEFIT -
follows:
2013 2012
—E—Z=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFIT
Customer A EPFA 32,567 N/A 38 A1
Customer B =FB N/AFE A" 20,176
Customer C EPFC 39,764 N/A 38 A1
Customer D =FD N/AFE A" 24,237
72,331 44,413
1 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of U MR RBAN R EEE
the total turnover of the Group. FEHI10% ©
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15.

144

GOODWILL 15. B8
The Group rEH
RMB’000
AR®TRT
Cost: 5% 4
At 1 January 2012, RZE——F—HA—B 28—k
31 December 2012 and 2013 —E—=F+ZHA=+—H 344,100
Accumulated impairment losses: REtRERS :
At 1 January 2012 RN-—ZE——F—HF—H 74,463
Impairment loss BB E 1B 2,339
At 31 December 2012 RZZE—=—F+ZA=+—8HK
and 1 January 2013 —E2—=%—H—H 76,802
Impairment loss A EE 163,000
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+=-A=+—H 239,802
Carrying amount: REE :
At 31 December 2013 W-—E—=%+-"H=+—H 104,298
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-A=+—H 267,298
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 = — &

15. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill
and intangible assets

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes
to the following groups of CGUs:

%Aﬁﬁ%ﬁ%l‘ﬂ%“i

=FFT A=+ —HILFE

15. B8 (©)

BERHEREFEEZRSELE
B 2B E R

HESETHESEAEMALETR
BRI -

2013 2012
—2—= —T—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Piped natural gas UREAHNEERAR
located in Guangxi - =
Coalbed methane exploration BRERMEEAE  RARRLER
and development, natural gas BAERAR D 8B
liquefaction and
LNG distribution 104,298 267,298
104,298 267,298

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and
their major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

Coalbed methane exploration and development, natural
gas liquefaction and LNG distribution

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
value in use calculations with reference to an independent
professional valuation. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculations are those regarding the discount rate and
growth in revenue and direct costs during the year. Management
estimates the discount rate of 20.88% (2012: 20.73%) using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. Changes
in selling prices and direct costs are based on past experience
and expectations of changes in the market.

FPRREEF Sz RO EEE
MEMBEEZREMALNT

HERBFEERE XAKRIERRE
{ERAR 78

AEEELEM A KREE %ET;%%
BYBEGHERBERAEEBTHE - £
AEEFEBRINIEHAFE ZAE
K WARRREERAZBRE - &
BEfEr - BhIRE R20.88% (ZE—=
F :20.73%) * TH{ERAREE B E B
MEEsMEHRASELESENY
BERRZBRBANE EEREE
RA 2 BB T AR MG LR ks
TEHE B AEE o
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15.

146

—ZE+-ASH—AIEE

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill
and intangible assets (Continued)

Coalbed methane exploration and development, natural
gas liquefaction and LNG distribution (Continued)

The value in use calculations are derived from cash flow
projections based on the most recent financial budgets for the
next 5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period have been extrapolated using a steady growth
rate of 3% (2012: 3%) per annum which is based on industry
growth forecasts.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors have
reviewed goodwill for impairment testing purpose. Based on
value in use calculation at 31 December 2013, the recoverable
amount of this CGU was found to be less than its carrying
amount. Accordingly, impairment loss on goodwill allocated to
this CGU of approximately RMB163,000,000 (2012: Nil) has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Piped natural gas located in Guangxi

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
value in use calculations with reference to an independent
professional valuation. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculations are those regarding the discount rate and
growth in revenue and direct costs during the year. Management
estimates the discount rate of 22.60% (2012: 20.45%) using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. Change
in selling prices and direct costs are based on past experience
and expectations of changes in the market.

The value in use calculations are derived from cash flow
projections based on the most recent financial budgets for the
next 5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period have been extrapolated using a steady growth
rate of 3% (2012: 3%) per annum which is based on industry
growth forecasts.

15. B8 (©)

BEBHEREFNEEZRSELE
BN ZRERNR &)

HERB R
ERRR D (&)
EREEAENREREEEELE
ZEHMARKSFHBTREFEB RS
METER - BEsF R REeRER
ARRZFERERI%(ZE——F:

RARRBAL R

3%) HE  ZFERETIATRIERTA
B REE -

BHE_ZT—=F+_A=+—HLHF
B rEFEHRBENRENEEE
EITRY - ERE-T—=F+=A
=+—RETZEREAETE R
ARGELEBENZANESBERE
REE - At "EEERBREELS
A EBREBEHNARE
163,000,0007C (ZF—=4F : &) 2R
BHEZZT—=F+-A=+—HLHF
EZireBmR AR o

NREANEBEAAR

AESELEBENZAIKREEREIZE
BYEXHEREBEERAEENEE
EoFREEFECEERRNIEY
REEZHBAER - WABRREEK
AzB& -EREMG BWEEXA
22.60% (ZZ— =4 : 20.45%) * J3fE
ARMEEYREERE TS
MRS ELBEMNZFERRZBRIA
FlE EEREEKRAZEB TG
AMBERETISEASEEHEE -

EARBEFEDNDREREEEE]E
ZERMARSFHBEEMESZHE
METRA - BEasFHE RS REF

AR FERRIN(ZT—_F
3%)HE  ZFERETINTEERRE
B RELE o
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15. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill
and intangible assets (Continued)

Piped natural gas located in Guangxi (Continued)

Based on value in use calculations at 31 December 2013, the
recoverable amount of the piped natural gas CGU located in
Guangxi was found to be less than its carrying amount.
Accordingly, the Group recognised impairment loss of
approximately RMB25,000,000 (2012: Nil) in relation to
exclusive right for piped natural gas operation in Beiliu City
allocated to the CGU of piped natural gas located in Guangxi
during the year ended 31 December 2013 (note 18).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, impairment loss on
goodwill allocated to the piped natural gas CGU located in
Guangxi of approximately RMB2,339,000 has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2012. At 31 December 2012, the goodwill
allocated to the CGU of piped natural gas located in Guangxi
was fully impaired.

15. B8 (©)

BEHEREREECRSELE
Bz BENR @

NRERNEBERAR (&)
BE-_ZT—=F+-A=t+—RHzf
AEENE  LREANEERAR
ReELBENAMKBSBERAED
B-RAl AEBREBEE_Z—=
+TZ A=+ BLEFERSE TR
BRMEERARRESELEMMNIL
MMEBRAREB 2 BRENER
BB BB 4 A R ¥25,000,0007T (ZF
—=—F : &) (fffsE18) ©

BEe—_T——F+-_A=1+—HItF
B pRETFUREANEERARE
PELAEVNEEREBSEOARY
2,339,000t ERBE_ZT——F+=
A=T—BUHEFEZHEBRRNE
ReRE—Z-—F+ZH=+—8 -
PETUREANEBERARRSE
EENUMEEEZEME -
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=
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% - WBERRE
(@ The Group () &x&KEH
Buildings Furniture  Transportation
held for Leasehold Plant and Computer and andmotor  Construction
ownuse  improvements Pipelines machinery  equipment equipment vehicles  in progress Total
fitraR K1
B REREIE EE  RERER RERE  KERER RAE BRIE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRTT  ABRFR  ARRTR  ARRFT  ARRTR  ARRTR  ABRTR  ARRTR  ABRTR
Cost R
At1 January 2012 W_2-2£-f-B 80,540 175 36,804 180,999 299 2548 40671 189,082 532,708
Additions R - - 12 6,585 kil 266 2582 140,117 150319
Transfer fiom construction in progress~ {EER TR E 37,360 - 552 3,848 - - - (73,760) -
Disposals & - (389) - - 3) (125) (672) - (1,239)
Exchange adjustments Ei@E - 3 - - - - - - 3
At 3t December 2012 RZF-Z%+Zf=1-AR
and 1 January 2013 Z5-Z6-F-8 17,900 39 37678 2343 %83 2,689 42,581 256,939 681,791
Additons RE 13,740 265 78 3,906 Il ) 1,606 202,700 203,053
Transfer fiom construction in progress {EAR TREH - = 124,363 29452 - - - 373815) =
Disposals & - - - 21) - - (7,545) = (7,566)
Exchange adusiments Ejige - (18) = = ] ] @) = %)
At 31 December 2013 W-F-=8+-f=1-B 181,640 636 162,724 476,769 ] 212 36,640 85,84 897,253
Accumulated depreciation AHFERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2012 n-%5-"£-f-A 8,755 214 4,988 21,584 7 1,13 8,918 - 51,668
Charge for the year KER 391 w 2,087 16,290 5 3 7,159 - 29,165
Disposals & - (154) - Q) 6) (110) (278) - (50)
Exchange adjustments EiRE - 5 - - - - - - 5
At 81 December 2012 RZF-ZF+2R=1-AR
and 1 January 2013 5-Z%-f-8 1278 287 1,075 49812 126 1402 15,794 - 80,288
Charge for the year KERRH 583 216 2174 28215 5 3% 5,851 = 3834
Disposals ik - - - (1) - - (4,285) - 4301)
Exchange adjustments EiRE - (1) - - 1) ) 1) - (16)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=12R=1-A 18571 1) 9849 66,071 181 1,789 17,39 - 114312
Carrying amount BiE
At 31 December 2013 RZE-Z5+2A=t-H 113,069 144 152,875 410,698 12 938 19,281 85,824 782,941
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZE+Zf=1-R 105,168 102 30,503 180,560 157 1,287 26,787 256,939 601,503
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(@) The Group (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

The buildings held for own use are situated on land held under
medium-term leases in the PRC.

The pipelines of the Group are located in the PRC.

At 31 December 2013, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
pipelines pledged for the Group’s bank borrowings were
approximately RMB26,605,000 (2012: RMB28,397,000).

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s building held for own use
and plant and machinery with carrying amount of
approximately RMB68,566,000 (2012: RMB58,884,000) and
RMB108,240,000 (2012: RMB118,753,000) respectively were
pledged.

The carrying amount of the Group’s assets held under finance
leases at 31 December 2013 of approximately
RMB108,240,000 (2012: Nil) was included in plant and
machinery and approximately RMB1,892,000 (2012:
RMB10,754,000) was included in transportation and motor
vehicles.

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s building held for own use
with carrying amount of approximately RMB8,925,000 was
subjected to guarantee in relation to the arbitration
proceedings between the Group and a CBM supplier.

“ECFFR PEEBREBRESREXSEERRAF

16. 1% - WBREHE @

(@) X&EH @)

Wi

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

FrEB M2 B FALE+ Bk
MOBAEZ L E -

REEZEEUNTHE -

R-ZE—=F+-A=+—8 "
AAEBERITERMEE 2 ANE
BEBsEEENABARE
26,605,0007C (ZF— =% : A
R #28,397,0007T) °

RZB—=F+=ZA=+—8 -
REBMBIEERAZEFURIKES
MWz REED RO ARE
68,566,0007C (ZZF— =% : A
R¥58,884,0007T) K AR ¥
108,240,000 (Z & — =4 :
118,753,0007T) I o

RZB—=F+=ZA=+—8
AEEREMEREGZEEZR
H{EX A R¥108,240,0007T (=
T——F BT AKERK
W #AR#1,892,0007T (ZF
——% : AR#10,754,0007T)
SFAEHITARAE -

W_E——F+-A=+—H"
AEBEEAENAARE
8,925,000t 2 FHEE A2 EF
DERE BN EEEEE R MtRE
Az ERHREEFOER -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

150

16. 1% - WBREHE @

(Continued)
(b) The Company b)) EAFH
Furniture
Leasehold ~ Computer and Motor
improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HEREIE TEBR WERER RE &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTT AERTR AR%TR ARRTRT AERTR
Cost R
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—F-7-H 386 187 155 2,141 3,469
Disposals i+ - - - (304) (304)
Exchange adjustments iR A% 3 - - _ 3
At 31 December 2012 R=F-#+-A=1-H
and 1 January 2013 R=E-=F-H-H 389 187 155 2,437 3,168
Additions AE 265 - - 1,356 1,621
Disposals e - - - (2,437) (2,437)
Exchange adjustments EHRE (18) ) ) 2 (25)
At 31 December 2013 RZB-=#+-A=+-H 636 186 151 1,354 2,301
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  EHTER# &
At 1 January 2012 W-E--%-F-A 72 70 3 1,760 1,940
Charge for the year AEEYH 210 37 64 371 682
Disposals HE - - - (147) (147)
Exchange adjustments [E 8% 5 - - - 5
At 31 December 2012 RZB-Z#+ZA=1-H
and 1 January 2013 k=F-=F-F-H 287 107 102 1,984 2,480
Charge for the year AEERH 216 36 40 182 474
Disposals e - - - (2,006) (2,006)
Exchange adjustments K] (1) ) () (1) (16)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-Z£+-A=1-H 492 142 139 159 982
Carrying amount ]
At 31 December 2013 RZE-Z¥+ZF=1-A 144 44 12 1,195 1,395
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—£+-A=1-H 102 80 53 453 688
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 —E— =4+ _HA=1+—HILFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR LAND

UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The carrying amount of the Group’s prepaid lease payments
for land under operating leases is analysed as follows:

REHNTEN LS

AEEZLLEHOTRN MBS 2K
EEDHWT

The Group
*5KE

2013 2012
—Z—=F —ET-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 35,119 35,929
Amortisation for the year PG X (810) (810)
Carrying amount at 31 December W+ —=-A=+—H ZRHE 34,309 35,119
Less: Current portion B BNERER 9 (810) (810)
Non-current portion JEBNER B (4 33,499 34,309

The prepaid lease payments in respect of land under operating
leases are held under medium-term leases and situated in the
PRC.

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s prepaid lease payments
for land under operating leases with a carrying amount of
approximately RMB20,229,000 (2012: RMB20,684,000) were
pledged.

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s prepaid lease payments
for land under operating leases with a carrying amount of
approximately RMB8,561,000 were subjected to guarantee in
relation to the arbitration proceedings between the Group and
a CBM supplier.

The amortisation charges for the year ended 31 December 2013
of approximately RMB154,000 (2012: RMB154,000) and
RMB656,000 (2012: RMB656,000) are included in cost of sales
and administrative expenses respectively in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

—EC-FFHR PEEBREERE

GEBHT 2B LM E TR S
BHRE - BN -

RZE—=F+="RA=+—H ' K&
EgefoTEN LS ZRmE

AR #20,229,0007T (ZT—— 4 :

AR #20,684,0007T) & EHE I -

W-F——#+-A=+—A %%

BEEBOTEN LIRS Y FEE
4) AR 158,661,0007C THE A A A S8
52 4 B SR A T 2 B AR A
R -

HE-_T—=F+-A=+—HLHF
E# T HHAR154,0000T (ZF
——F : AR¥154,0007T) R AR
656,000t (ZE—=—F : AR%
656,0007T) D RIREEE Bk ZHE
A RATH A YR o

EREXEEBRATF 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BIL&EE
The Group rE
Operating
Exclusive license for
right for liquefied
piped natural coalbed gas
gas operation logistics Total
BEXRRRE RILEER
ZEREH PREELR it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TT AR®TTT

Cost RE
At 1 January 2012, RZE——-%—f—H"

31 December 2012 and 2013 ZE-ZERZIE-=F

+-A=1+—*H 334,811 97,300 432,111

Accumulated amortisation and R HBRAE

impairment
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——%—Ff—H 8,258 28,379 36,637
Amortisation for the year AEFHH 10,783 19,460 30,243
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE-—#+-A=+—H

and 1 January 2013 k=ZE—=5—H—H 19,041 47,839 66,880
Impairment loss HEER 25,000 = 25,000
Amortisation for the year AERHH 10,783 19,460 30,243
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+ZRA=+—H 54,824 67,299 122,123
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2013 R-E-Z=#+-H=+—H 279,987 30,001 309,988
At 31 December 2012 RZE——%+-A=+—H 315,770 49,461 365,231
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Exclusive right for piped natural gas
operation in Beiliu City

It represented the exclusive right to operate in gas pipeline
infrastructure and provision of piped natural gas in Beiliu
City, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC and
is amortised as cost of sales on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of 45 years.

As at 31 December 2013, the recoverable amount of the
exclusive right for piped natural gas operation in Beiliu
City was assessed by the directors with reference to an
independent professional valuation and an impairment
loss of this exclusive right of approximately
RMB25,000,000 (2012: Nil) was charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 15).

Exclusive right for piped natural gas
operation in Ruyang County

It represented the exclusive right to operate in gas pipeline
infrastructure and provision of piped natural gas in Ruyang
County, Luoyang City, Henan Province, the PRC and is
amortised as cost of sales on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of approximately 28.5 years.

Operating license for liquefied coalbed gas
logistics

It represented the operating license for liquefied coalbed
gas logistics in the PRC and is amortised as cost of sales
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
5 years.

“ECFFR PEEBREBRESREXSEERRAF

18. BEEE ®)

(a)

(b)

(c)

EERTEEEERARE
BeARER

ZIENBERBEERALRBRR
b 7 T AR & A RV B A R AR A A
RHUHEBRARZBREN - X
WE RERENEET R (A FHI45
FIERHERAEH

RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—H"
BEELSERTEXMEREIL
MMCEEBRRREBZBR
TEF| 2 AT U Bl & BRI TRTAE -
ZERENZBEBRBRHARE
25,000,0007T (=& — % : &)
BEELGEGBERAME (M=
15) °

ErEREEEBERRRRE
BeBRER

A% RE R FE 1 B R A R R TR
BREEMREBERREME
HEBRARZBREN Wik
EREERGAIERFHLD
28 5FVERIHE R A -

Ty

RACKEBRYREEHR

Z

A

ZHREETEEERIERER
MR EERR - WIREREE
RfEET R E A F s FRERHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

19. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

19. Al & R A KIE

The Group
*xKE
2013 2012
—ET—=f —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥ET T
Warranty money paid for MRMERELHET
the acquisition of equipment WEREIN 2
under finance lease RED (BEEG)
arrangements (note (i) 18,733 6,566
Other deposits paid for R EBERESZ N2
acquisition of equipment HmzT€ 35 2,285
Other deposits paid for acquisition U & + it i 25 = 1+ 2
of interests in land (note (ii)) HAnET & (B X)) 10,462 10,462
Prepayments (note (iii)) TE AT kI8 (B 5 (i) 37,825 34,172
67,055 53,485
~—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 —E— =4+ _HA=1+—HILFE

19. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

The balance represents the warranty money paid for the acquisition

of equipment under certain finance lease arrangements.

On 2 December 2010, certain subsidiaries of the Company, as
lessees, entered into finance lease arrangements with certain
suppliers and a lessor named F &I E T & AR A A (transliterated
as CIMC Capital Ltd.) (“CIMC”), pursuant to which the suppliers
agreed to manufacture and supply LNG tanks, gasified system and
equipment, LNG trailers, towing vehicles and LNG refill stations
(collectively, the “Finance Lease Assets”) at a total consideration of
approximately RMB79,155,000. CIMC agreed to lease the Finance
Lease Assets to the Group for a total lease consideration of
approximately RMB95,461,000 payable within the term of 36 months
by monthly installments, with an option for the Group to purchase
the Finance Lease Assets at the end of the lease term at a
consideration of approximately RMB7,000. The total lease
consideration would be adjusted due to the floating lending interest
rate to be promulgated by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”)
from time to time. Pursuant to the agreements, the Group agreed
to pledge the Finance Lease Assets to CIMC, whilst /&[5 JIE F1 8E &
AR AT (transliterated as Luoyang Shunhe Energy Company
Limited) (“Luoyang Shunhe”) entered into guarantees in favour of
CIMC to secure the due payment of the outstanding lease
consideration by the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2011, Luoyang Shunhe became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company upon completion of the Group’s acquisition of the
Wealthy Talent Global Investments Limited and its subsidiaries. The
Group agreed to provide a total sum of approximately
RMB15,831,000 to CIMC as warranty money, which is repayable
at the end of the lease period. These finance lease arrangements
constituted a very substantial acquisition on the part of the Company
under the GEM Listing Rules. The resolutions approving these
finance lease arrangements were duly passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 14
February 2011.

19. ;ST £ RFEFRIE (&)

ZAERIE R ERE TR TR
X zRER -

R-T—ZTF+-A-R  ARFET
MBAR (EAEMA) BE THER K
—REBEAREREREFR AR ([F
EDFTVRMERER - B - HES
REREREERERARER - Rt
R REE  RIERARIES - E5|=
EBRIERARME (AR MEREE
El) - BRERHARKTI,155,000
T FERERAAEBEAREREER
E - BHEEREARHNARIES5,461,000
T v BR36EARIZA S BN - A%
ERHESHERIEAEZUAREBEHNAR
B7000THBEREMERE - #HE
REBREPERARRT ((PEARR
TN TRAGHZBEER RELH
B REZZWE  A5EREERE
HEEERMTHE - MRBIEMEEIR
BIRAR(EREIEF]) IREFTSZ AR &E
BZHANRE  BASEZEXNAR
EEEERERMER REE-Z—
—%+-A=+—BILEE - KBIEM
AR B ST U Wealthy Talent
Global Investments Limited 5 £ Fff B 2~
AIBRBANRNEELZENB AR
AEEREMNFERHEBBBHOARE
15,831,0007C 2 IRFESE * ZRFL AR
TSRS RIFRIE - RIBEIZER LR
Al ZEERETHERANR I
BEAWEEE - ARAFRBREER=Z
——FZA+HBARTZRIERFINAE
FFRBBEZSRERS R 2R

=3
Eﬂ?% °©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 —E— =4+ _A=1+—HILF/E

19. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

156

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i

(i)

(Continued)

On 21 May 2012, IHFELKIBEZRBEIRZER B R QA (transliterated
as Shanxi Qinshui Shuntai Energy Development Company Limited)
(“Shanxi Qinshui”), a subsidiary of the Company, as lessee, entered
into a conditional finance lease agreement in relation to the sale
and lease of equipments with CIMC, pursuant to which, (i) Shanxi
Qinshui conditionally agreed to sell, and CIMC conditionally agreed
to purchase certain liquefied natural gas equipments for a total
consideration of RMB95,000,000; and (ii) Shanxi Qinshui
conditionally agreed to lease from CIMC, and CIMC conditionally
agreed to lease to Shanxi Qinshui, the said equipments for a total
lease consideration of RMB114,570,000 for a term of 36 months
by monthly installments inclusive of interest with a lump sum handling
fee in the sum of RMB950,000. The lease consideration may be
adjusted according to the floating lending interest rate to be
promulgated by PBOC from time to time. Shanxi Qinshui agreed to
provide a total sum of approximately RMB14,250,000 to CIMC as
warranty money, which is repayable at the end of the lease period.
This finance lease arrangement constituted a major transaction on
the part of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. The finance
lease arrangement was approved by the shareholders by way of
ordinary resolution at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 27 May 2013.

The balance represents deposits paid by the Group for the
acquisition of interests in land located in the PRC which will be held
for own use under operating leases.

Included in prepayments as at 31 December 2013 was an amount
of approximately RMB36,091,000 (2012: RMB32,255,000)
representing prepayment for the finance lease payments of the
acquisition of equipment under the finance lease arrangements
mentioned in note (i) above.

19.

Al RBEMNRIE @)

e (&)

(i)

(i

(i)

(&)

R-ZB——FRA=-+—08 ARQFZ
M@ AR FKIEREERERER A
A (MFRK]) HEREMEA) BRER
A ERREDE REENE KR
BRERZE - B () LFEILKRE RS
RELERTERKHEREBEETR
ERARBICEESRE  BREAAR
#95,000,0007T + K (i)l Fab KA 1§14
RERFPEER  MPEEKRERZER
IFEL K HTE Fll e - MAERES
AE#114,570,0007T © AHI36ME A (&
ASHBNR - BEFE)  R—28BF
BEASHARKEIS0,0007T - HERE
AARIER B A RIBIT B AHANZENE
EFRELFERE - ILFVKAERSE
RftEEELH AREE14,250,0007T 2 (R7E
T ZREBFESERNHEREREFRE -
BIRBIZER ETRA - ZmEHRELH
BRARRZEIERS - BRRERZZE
—ZERA-+HBABRTZARRBRE
FrRIRE LA mRRRILEZRE
SR

ZEEHRIE R R BB WAL P B L3
a2 E - IR BRER
BHOKIEEA -

—E-—=F+_A=t+—HZEMNKE
BIE LMl EREREET
IREE R 2 B E A 2 BN FRIBL
AR#36,001,000t (ZF—=4F : A
R#32,255,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 —E— =4+ _HA=1+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20. RfIBRARIZRE

The Company

b 3/

2013 2012

—_ET—= —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TR AR¥ET T
Unlisted shares, at cost LMD - WAA 887,517 879,550
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (273,000) —
614,517 879,550

An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted investments
with carrying amount of approximately RMB887,517,000
(before deducting the impairment loss) because these

subsidiaries have been making losses for years.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at

31 December 2013 are as follows:

AR BB R RRFRESER -
e BEREE L A RES887,517,0007C
(HMBRREEER) o2& TIELTERE

FERRIRE ©

R-E—=F+_-_A=1+—HBAXQTA
FEWMBARZFEBAT :

Proportion of

ownership interest

i3 1:4:]
Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ and paid-up share/ Group’s
establishment/ registered effective
Name of subsidiary operations capital interest Direct Indirect Principal activities
EfsL/ BBITR
st Ve #tRE/

HELARRE BEHE BMEFES FEAERER EE Mg  XERE

AR IERERER PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% —  Investment holding
BRAF (transliterated as H HK$85,000,000 RAER
Shanxi Yangcheng Shuntai Energy #H6& 485,000,0005 T
Development Company Limited)

(“Shanxi Yangcheng Shuntai”)
(notes (a) and (g))

(MR IER])
GEEE)

Shanxi Qinshui PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% = Manufacture and sales
(notes (a) and (d)) i HK$150,000,000 of liquefied coalbed gas
VRIS £t &7150,000,000% 7T EERHERILEER
(W& (@) R(d)

Sino Treasure Global Group Limited  British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - Investment holding

(BVI) 1 United States dollar REER
RBRAHES (USS)
IREBIET SRk
Allied Rich Management Limited BVI 3,000 ordinary shares of 100% — 100% Investment holding
BEERARLA EBRAHES US$1 each REER
3000 BRABIETLZ
Lak

AN EEERBERAA PRC Registered capital of 100% = 100%  Investment holding
(transliterated as Shanxi H RMB5,000,000 REER
Allied Rich Services Limited) & AR ARES5,000,0007

(note (a))

(A& (a))

“ECFFR PEEBREBRESREXSEERRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

158

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at

31 December 2013 are as follows: (Continued)

20. RffB AT 2RE (&)
R-_E—=F+_-_A=1+—HARQA
TEWBARZHENT © (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

3 :47)
Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ and paid-up share/ Group’s
establishment/ registered effective
Name of subsidiary operations capital interest Direct  Indirect Principal activities
EmEL/ BRTR
i/ HftREx/

NGRS BEHE BEMEFEE FRAERER EE Mg ERE
ERLABRERAR PRC Registered capital of 97.5% - 97.5%  Sales of piped natural gas
(transliterated as Guangxi Beilu RMB20,000,000 and provision of gas
Gas Company Limited) HRER supply connection services

(note (b)) AR#20,000,0007 HEEBRRRRRL
GE) HRES R
Hebei Shuntai (note (a)) PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% = Sales of liquefied
3t B (RT3 (a) i RMB87,280,000 coalbed gas
HER BICEERHE
AR 87,280,0007C

EXREERAT BV 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% —  Investment holding
(transliterated as Million ldeas ~ EBEREE of US$1 each REARR
Investments Limited) 100 ERAEBIET

LERR

LAESEEREERAR PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(transliterated as Shanxi Wanzhi & RMB500,000 RE#R
Business Services Limited) HER
(note (a)) AR 500,0007
(Rt @)

LWEBSMRERLT PRC Registered capital of 83% - 83%  Provision of liquefied coalbed
(trangliterated as Shanxi Wanzhi RMB60,000,000 gas logistics services
Logistics Limited) FHER RERCEERDTRE
(“Wanzhi Logistics”) (note (c)) AR #60,000,0007C
(TE#Fmir)) (Wak(e)

Wealthy Talent Global Investments BV 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% = Investment holding
Limited ERETHS 1REE1ETZ ERR RE#R

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 —E— =4+ _HA=1+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

20. RMIB AR ZRE &)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at RZE—=F+-_A=+—HBZAXRQA
31 December 2013 are as follows: (Continued) FTEMBRARIZFHRBOT : (8)

Proportion of
ownership interest

3 :47)
Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ and paid-up share/ Group’s
establishment/ registered effective
Name of subsidiary operations capital interest Direct  Indirect Principal activities
EmEL/ BRTR
i/ HftREx/

NGRS BEHE BEMEFEE FRAERER EE Mg ERE

Hong Kong Chung Wo Energy Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% - 100% Investment holding
Investments Limited Bk IRARIET LRR REER

ERRAEREERAGRAA

Luoyang Shunhe (note (b)) PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100% Sales of natural gas

R IE R (2 (b)) i HK$60,000,000 RARHE

HER
60,000,000/ 1T

GREEEHEEARAA PRC Registered capital of 60% = 60%  Exploration, development
(transliterated as s RMB30,000,000 and production of
Yangcheng Huiyang HER coalbed methane
New Energy Development AK#30,000,0007 B REREERER
Company Limited)

(“Yangcheng Huiyang”) (note (b))
(TBmERG]) (M)

BHGEZEHEERRAR PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100%  Gas distribution
(transliterated as i RMB10,000,000 AARA
Yangcheng Shun An HER
Gathering Pipeline AK%10,000,0007
Company Limited) (note (a))

(fff3E(a))

BERIRRERAR PRC Registered capital of 100% - 100%  Sales of liquefied
(transliterated as Xian Country s RMB1,000,000 coalbed gas
Lun Shun Energy Development FEA AR #1,000,0007 RILEERHEE
Company Limited) (note (a))

(fft3E(a))
“E-=EFR THEREERESREESERRAA 159
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 & — &

—=F+A=+—HIFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

160

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2013 are as follows: (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Notes:

(a)

Registered under the laws of the PRC as a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise.

Registered under the laws of the PRC as a limited liability enterprise.

Registered under the laws of the PRC as a Sino-foreign equity joint
venture.

The registered capital of Shanxi Qinshui was HK$150,000,000, of
which HK$150,000,000 (2012: HK$140,000,000) has been paid
up as at 31 December 2013.

The registered capital of Shanxi Yangcheng Shuntai was
HK$300,000,000, of which HK$85,000,000 (2012: HK$85,000,000)
has been paid up as at 31 December 2013.

The Group had no subsidiaries which have material non-
controlling interests for the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012.

20. RfIBRARIZKE &)

R=F—=#+-A=t+—AAAA
TEHBAAZHENT ()

EERR LM RRINBRARIREE
TEAEERXESEEE - EEFR
B REEMHBARZFEEENR
RIEBRILE °

B &E -

(@) REBPEARKMBEDEEEMAINGE
A% -

(o) BEPEARANMBEEEZIMAERE
(ESTE

© BEPEARKMBEDEZEZMATING
B -

(@) WPk Z M E A &150,000,0007#
7T+ HF150,000,0008 7T (=T —=
£ : 140,000,000 7) ERZT—=%F
+=ZA=+—RH&-

e WEBHIERZZME XA
300,000,000% 7T + H # 85,000,000/
JT(ZZ——4 : 85,000,000/ 7T) E R
ZE—=F+ZRA=+—B& -

AEERBE_T—=FK_
FT-A=1+— EIJLEEZEI?%%%?E
E g Sl )= NC]
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

21. RAVPEFABRZEZERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E

=
The Group
r. 3.
2013 2012
-2—= —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEMAEBRZSREE
through profit or loss:
— Unlisted investment fund ~ — &BUIINKR ETHREES
outside Hong Kong 200 200
22. INVENTORIES 22. Z&
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial @ REEVBRRAEAZTFESR
position comprise: =
The Group
*x%KE

2013 2012
=5 —T_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥ET T
Raw materials R K 4,276 3,443
Finished goods YR o 3,599 2,506
7,875 5,949

(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

(b)

EERSMAXAFTAREZFE
TR

The Group
xEH
2013 2012
—E—-=% —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT ARET T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEZKA 88,900 95,734
—E-=FFH THEREEREEREESEERAA 161
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. FE W AR R I H 2 FE U =R IE

162

The Group The Company
5@ r /NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—2-=F | —_T-—f| Z8-=§F | _T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR | AR®Tx | ARBTRE | ARETR
Trade and bills receivables JE W BR JX I R W R 4 17,880 14,918 = =
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts & : FERE & (5,562) (1,913) - =
12,318 13,005 - —
Amounts due from subsidiaries g ENGIE e
(note 39(b)(iv)) (B 5E39(b)(v)) - - 224,739 133,915
Amounts due from directors EREERIEA
(note 39(b)ii)) (B 539 (b) i) - 945 1,795 1,361
Other receivables Hth fE Y5008 6,425 61,325 478 742
Amounts due from related e BE N A 3R IR
companies (note 39(b)(i)) (B E39(b) (1)) 13,525 16,247 - =
Loans and receivables R R YA 32,268 91,522 227,012 136,018
Advances to suppliers [m) £ 72 B 5K 2,076 1,163 - =
Prepayment relating to HERRAXEHL
construction expenses B e 123,373 71,068 = =
Other prepayments HAth A58 16,935 20,166 11,341 10,840
Other taxes recoverable H b AT U B F 18 5,556 3,468 - =
180,208 187,387 238,353 146,858
[ —

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

T8 HA P B I W Bl o B L A MK
R—FARAREHER R °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

23. EWERA R EMEWRIE &)

(a) Ageing analysis () BRERZ#T

FE AR & R W R iR (IR B R B B R4
BRARIRBUE) N ERRZ Rk D0

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of the trade and bills receivables, based on invoice date

and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: ™
The Group
x5E
2013 2012
—E—Z=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TR ARET T
Within 1 month 11 A N 4,810 5,587
More than 1 month but less 11& A 218318 A K
than 3 months 3,144 4,408
More than 3 months but less 31E A & {861 A A
than 6 months 1,076 2,986
More than 6 months but less 61& A& /B 1218 A X
than 12 months 3,288 —
More than 12 months 1218 A& - 24
12,318 13,005

The Group generally allows credit period of 30 to 180
days to its customers. The Group may, on a case by case
basis and after evaluation of the business relationship and
creditworthiness, extend the credit period upon the
customers’ requests.

AEE— KRB TEPIEIBREE
B AKERRBEMREE IR
AEEBREREER  BEPEX
EREEH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 —E— =4+ _A=1+—HILF/E

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EWIRAR K HMEWFIE @)
(Continued)
(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables b) BUWERRRHEMEKRREZ

164

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors directly
(see note 2())).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts for
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

]

J%H&EE%XZ?WEE?EE%%H%%&%
RRADER - HEZAS SR B1E M = 5K
E’J—Iﬁb R BRER SN - UL

ORERBRE R EERERS Tvlﬂ
ﬁ% (RHEE2()) -

FARKER Z REBRBEZED
mr

The Group
xEEH

2013 2012
—=—= —ET—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
At 1 January R—A—-B 1,913 —
Impairment loss recognised & 2 2 J8 (B &5 18 3,649 1,913
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 5,562 1,913

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately RMB5,562,000 (2012: RMB1,913,000)
were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers that
were in financial difficulties and management assessed
that the receivables were not recoverable. Consequently,
specific allowance for doubtful debts were recognised.

Impairment loss on other receivables of the Group of
approximately RMB194,000 (2012: RMB1,027,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2013. The individually
impaired other receivables of the Group relate to other
debtors that were in financial difficulties and is not
expected to be recoverable. During the year ended 31
December 2013, RMB1,050,000 (2012: Nil) of the
impaired other receivables in previous years was
recovered and reversed.

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8 "
REBEZERRERODBARK
5,562,000t (ZZE——F : AR
#1,913,0007T) J5 & 5Bl E 7 AR
1B ° &R E 2 & W R IE B R A
MR EFEM - BERE
AEt B AEWFIEAKE - B
It BB RREEREF RIS -

AN £2 (B A R WK IR 2 R B S 18
HAR¥194,000L (=T ——
& AR¥1,027,0007T) E R E
2T —=F+ZA=+—H1
FEZREBERRAER - AE
I (& A1) ek 1B 2 L Ath 8 UK I8 B R
)\Hﬁ‘xli‘EZﬁfrﬁlﬁﬁ&}\ﬁFﬂ
TR EBRIE AU E - BZE
T—=F+-_A=+— E|JJ:$
g - BAEFEARK1,050,0007T
(ZE——F : ®) ZEREEM
FEUWR SRIE B U Bl K B o) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(b) Impairment of trade and other
receivables(Continued)

The Group do not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement over their other receivable balances.

(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not
impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

23. EWERA R EMEWRIE &)

(b)

(c)

FE Wt B ok e HL Ath B WK TR 2
mAE (&)

REBES EHRZFEMEWFE
A IMERRSEMEE
WRTHE o

REEEWRRRERREE
R R A (B Bl K 2k R (E O FE 1R

R R ERRRE 2 BRI D0
T -

The Group
*xEM
2013 2012
—Z—=F —ET-C_F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBET T

Neither past due nor AR MR OB
impaired 9,030 12,981
Less than 1 month past due # 8V 711E A 3,288 —
1 to 3 months past due B E1 2= 318 A - —
Over 3 months past due 61 HREB 18 31E A - 24
3,288 24
12,318 13,005

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believed that no impairment allowance was necessary in
respect of this balance as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

AR R ARORE B R IE S
REEP  REEPROYVER
RECEE °

£ 181 (B = R OBUE < B M kIR L
RAKERER RIFERRLEZE
VEFER RESELER &
BEMEHAREEERLEEXN
25 HERGHRDEE/AN 2
2k - MBAME BESRIEL
BB - AEBIY B L FE
Byr A EERm -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 —E— =4+ _A=1+—HILF/E

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

166

24. RERBREEED

The Group The Company
F5E . /N
2013 2012 2013 2012
~P-=fF | _T-—_5| ZB-Z¥ | _T_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR | AR®Tx | ARBTRE | ARETR
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESFED
— Cash at bank and in hand — RITRFERE 17,656 29,437 4,176 455
-~

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately RMB11,496,000 (2012: RMB26,998,000). RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

RIRTTZ RS RBRITE B FFHA =X
BIFBMERBAME o RITERFR
PS8 R4 N SOl 3 8 3 /R R 8% HD R

7 o

RBEMR  AEBUARKETERN
BekReZEEVWHNARARE
11,496,000t (ZT——F : ARK
26,998,0007T) ° AR A B HK
PRE M B - BREPE 2 IMNEEE
BRBIFIAEE - EERSESERTE -
REBEEEBEREHEITINEER
ZIRITEAREE MK EMER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B v W 05 e o0 Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. B ERMR EMESRE
The Group The Company
FEME /N
2013 2012 2013 2012

~P-=fF | _T-—_5| ZB-Z¥ | _T_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTn | ARBTR | ARETR

Trade payables FE R BRSX 83,748 76,621 - =
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERP B RIFUB

(note 39(b)(iv)) (K 5£39(0)(iv) - - 3,074 3,274
Amounts due to directors ENESEHKE

(note 39(b)(iii) (Ff E39(b)(iii)) 12,113 514 911 778
Amounts due to non-controling ~ ERHIBARZ

shareholders of subsidiaries R E I

(note 39(b)(iii) (Fft E39(b)(iii)) 1,569 1,979 - =
Accrued expenses and FERHF Y Rk

other payables HA R KA 29,213 55,753 2,277 4117
Payables for acquisition of W - EER

property, plant and equipment FREER TR 215,783 131,372 - =

Financial liabilities measured at BBRERATEY

amortised cost TRBE 342,426 266,239 6,262 8,169
Deposits received from customers A& P U EET & 13,374 12,531 = =
Other taxes payables H A ST IE 1,363 1,421 543 582

357,163 280,191 6,805 8,751
-« ~
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 25. FE{+ BRI H 2 FE A RRIE (%)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of the REER - BRI ZBRER 247 a0
trade payables, based on invoice date, is as follows: T(RBEZRAH) :
The Group
xEMH
2013 2012
—E—=% —ET-——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT ARETF T
Within 1 month 11E A N 21,955 19,306
More than 1 month but less 1@ A& E3EAR
than 3 months 8,570 958
More than 3 months but less 3f& A1 186E A A
than 6 months 20,837 15,989
More than 6 months but less 618 A&E12( A
than 12 months 6,724 12,946
More than 12 months 1218 A & 25,662 27,422
83,748 76,621

The trade and other payables are expected to be settled or FER AR R E b FE SRIBTE BRI AS P —
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on FARBEIERBBRANEIZRERKE
demand. g o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE
26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26. BITRHMMER
As at 31 December 2013, the bank and other loans were RZF—=F+_A=+—8 " EE
repayable as follows: BHRITREMEROT -
The Group The Company
x5E e 3N
) )
2013 2012 2013 2012
—2-=f | T | ZB-=§  _—T-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE | ARBTx | ARWTR | ARETR
Secured bank loans repayable: BEEEERRTEN
Within 1 year or on demand 1ERRBREKEE 22,400 30,600 - =
After 1 year but within 2 years 1% E2FR 3,000 2,400 - -
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FRELER - 3,000 - -
After 5 years 5% F - - - -
25,400 36,000 - —
Unsecured other loans repayable:  7BEEEEFLME
Within 1 year or on demand 1ERRARERER 140,351 80,000 43,351 -
165,751 116,000 43,351 -
Less: Amount due within B mBAET
1 year shown —ERNFB2HE
under current liabilities (162,751) (110,600) - —
Amount due after 1 year shown ERBEET—F#
under non-current liabilities B8z A 3,000 5,400 43,351 =
-« ~
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(Continued)

170

Notes:

(a)

Secured bank loans bear interest at variable interest rates ranging
from 7.20% to 9.98% (2012: 6.60% to 9.98%) per annum.

Included in unsecured other loans of the Group of RMB77,000,000
(2012: RMB80,000,000) represent loans due to non-controlling
shareholders of PRC subsidiaries of the Group and bear interest at
fixed rates ranging from 5.69% to 11.50% (2012: 5.69% to 11.50%)
per annum. The other unsecured loans of the Group of approximately
RMB63,351,000 (2012: Nil) bear interest at fixed rates ranging from
15% to 36% per annum.

As at 31 December 2013, bank borrowings of RMB5,400,000 (2012:
RMB6,000,000) were secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with carrying amount of approximately RMB26,605,000
(2012: RMB28,397,000). The remaining bank borrowings of
RMB20,000,000 (2012: RMB30,000,000) were secured by the
pledge of certain plant and equipment of & 15 (Bt $%)
B TRRM A AR AR (transliterated as Nopin (Xian Country)
Engineering Material & Machinery Co., Ltd.) (“Nopin Engineering”).
Nopin Engineering is a company owned by Mr. Wang.

The unsecured other loan of the Company of approximately
RMB43,351,000 (2012: Nil) bear interest at fixed rate of 15% per
annum.

26. SRITREMER &)

fi i

EERRTERENTEEF7.20%%
9.98% (ZZ——4F : 6.60%%29.98%)
ZZEF RS o

AEEBEER2AEMERARE
77,000,000 (ZFE——F : AR¥
80,000,0007T) ‘82 ¥& 45 Ik 7 £ [ /R B fff
BARHERBRR 2 ER - BN TEF
569%E11.50% (=T —=F :
5.69%%E11.50%) < EEFEEE o
AEBHEMEEBERHNARE
63,351,0007C (ZZF—=4F : 8 ENT
BF15%E36% 2 BEEMEGTE ©

R=F—=F+=A=+—8 ' R17E
KARES,400,000C (ZF—=4F : A
R#6,000,0007T) A ANEBRABEL A
AR¥26,605,000C (ZE—=F : A
R#28,397,0007T) 2 W13 - #as ik
BIEER - HHBRRITERARK
20,000,000t (ZE——4%F : AR
30,000,0007T) J3 LA 15 (BRER) i T
BMBAERAR ([FEE]) 28 Ti#E R
BEERER c BEATEEREZA
aj °

ARARERBZHEMBERNOARE
43,351,000 (ZF—=F : )R8 F
15% 2 B EFEE B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 27.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had obligations under finance

leases repayable as follows:

BB RE

n=

Z-—=F+-_A=+—8 K&

BEB AT RENNBEBRLAE

The Group
F%E
2013 2012
2= —E-CF
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHASR REHES =EHEE HEHEE
HRORE ARETF TRORE SRESE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TRE AR®BTR ARETT ARETR
Within 1 year 1F R 33,106 38,868 4,747 5,182
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F#ZE2FN 29,145 30,935 1,256 1,304
After 2 years but within 5 years 212 {1B5F R 1,255 1,267 149 151
63,506 71,070 6,152 6,637
Less: Total future interest expenses & : 7 2& %l &
i 4% (7,564) (485)
Present value of lease obligations 8 49 & #EHY IR (& 63,506 6,152

"

J

The Group leases certain equipment for its operations under
the finance lease arrangements as detailed in note 19. These
leases are classified as finance leases and have remaining lease
terms ranging from 1 to 25 (2012: 13 to 27) months.

“ECFFR PEEBREBRESREXSEERRAF

AEEREREROTHEESE TH
HERAREREE  FBEHRWE19-
ZEMOIDERBMEMRY - FsrHE
HMNF1EAZE25EA (ZT—=4F -
13 A E27@A) 2/ »
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

28. PROVISION 28. #1E
The Group
xEH
2013 2012
—Z—=F —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

At 1 January n—A—H 2,507 —
Provision for the year F N 1,950 2,694
Amount utilised for the year FANEAHZHIE (1,027) (187)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 3,430 2,507
The provision for production safety has been determined by SEREBREBIHESETE - UKE
the directors to meet the production safety standards. HEEREEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 —E— =4+ _HA=1+—HILFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 12 July 2011, the Company issued HK$ denominated zero-
coupon convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) due 11
July 2013 for aggregate principal amount of HK$499,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB413,621,000) as
consideration for the acquisition of Wealthy Talent Global
Investments Limited and its subsidiaries in 2011. The
Convertible Bonds have a maturity period of 2 years from the
issue date and are (i) convertible at the option of the bondholder
into 1,919,230,769 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
capital of the Company at any time from 12 July 2011 to 11
July 2013 at a conversion price of HK$0.26 per share; and (ii)
redeemable at the option of the Company at any time from 12
July 2011 to 11 July 2013 at 100% of the principal amount.
The Company is not required, upon the maturity of the
Convertible Bonds, to redeem or pay any outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds.

The equity component of the Convertible Bonds was recognised
at fair value on initial recognition, whose fair values are
determined by the directors with reference to an independent
professional valuation and are presented in equity heading
“convertible bonds reserve”.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, all the remaining
Convertible Bonds with aggregate principal amount of
HK$291,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB241,209,000) were converted, resulting in the issue of
1,119,230,769 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital
of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.26 per share.
No conversion of the Convertible Bonds was exercised during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

“E--FFHR PEBERE

29. W IR (& 3

ERN ZF —— FUYHE Wealthy Talent
Global Investments Limited &z E i B A
AIvRE R-_TE——&+A+—
H X2RBTASRLRESR
499,000,000 T (FHERH AR
413,621,0007m) 2 T EABRKRES
([T ES]) - ZETRKRESFN
BT EERR _ZT—=ZFtA+—8
AR - ATMRES B BIT AR
FHH - B)UHEEHFFEARZE—
—Ft+A+_HE_E—=F+HA+
— B AR ER R - RER0.268 T
F AR B & 51,919,230, 7690 A A
BIRA AR SRR E{E0.018 7T 2 EiBA
R ATRARRERER T —F A
+-RAE=—E—=FtA+—HEH
REMERE @ RASEE2FEED - K
NEIBERITRRES D R ER K
IR BRBEFHEINREELRS

A3 AR 75 2 B 2 AR 4D I )R e w2 B
BRAVERR  BRDAEZRLL2E
BUYBXRMGHEET  L2IIRERA
Z A E SRR

HEZZT—=F+-A=+—HLHF
€+ "% 42%85291,000,0007% 7T (18
BN H AR #241,209,0007T) Z FiE
TR R (ESH B 1R TAR0.267 LAY IR
feEssitn - BEE1T1,119,230,7690%
ARATRAFEREEC.01B L, LB
fFeoBz—E——F+-_A=1+—H
IEFE - JaRESMEREER -

RERAEREXEEBRATF 173



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 5 S 205 9 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

174

(a) Current income tax recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position and the movements during

the year is as follows:

30. FEMBMRRRAZ BB

(@) HABBHRENERZ BB
BREEFREHNT

The Group The Company
E3 . | /N
2013 2012 2013 2012
~2-=% | _T-_%| ZB-Z¥ | _T—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE ARETT | ARBTRE | ARETR
PRC EIT RELEMRER
At 1 January n—A—H 22,253 12,869 42 56
Provision for the year AEERE 424 15,283 244 217
Under-provision in BEFERBEIR
respect of prior years 27 683 13 =
EIT paid for the year AEEBHNTE
i3 (11,033) (6,582) (273) (231)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—AH 11,671 22,253 26 42
Income tax recoverable Riz & M BARRENA
recognised in WR 2 e REH
the consolidated
statement of
financial position (2,000) — - —
Income tax payable NSNS
recognised in FBARRERA
the consolidated/ RZENER
Company statement
of financial position 13,671 22,253 26 42
Net tax payable eI F R 11,671 22,253 26 42
| — |
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30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 30.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised

The Group

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as follows:

Fair value

adjustment on

Fair value prepaid lease

adjustment payments for
on property  land under
plantand  operating

equipment leases
#BENT

LERE EfttH
Rz g

LFEREE  ATERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR  ARRTR

mEMBIRRERAZFHEHR
()

b) ERIELEHAEERER

REHE
ARA FISARR R T R AR
HEE/ (BB 280 RERF

NEEEEH T AT
Fair value
adjustment
on
intangible ~ Withholding
assets tax Others Total
ELEEL
ATERE R Hft an

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTT ARRTT AERTRT ARBTR

At 1 January 2012 R-Z-—£-F-H 134 (668) (98,368) (2,435) (1987)  (103,824)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss ERVACIENE -t (20) 14 7,561 (369) 835 8,021
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-fA=1+-HE

and 1 January 2013 “2-=£-8-R 114 (654) (91,307) (2,804) (1,152) (95,809
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss ERVACIENE 4 14 13,810 (641) 356 13,543
At 31 December 2013 RZB-Z£+ZA=+-H 118 (640) (77,497) (3,445) (796) (82,260)
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30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised (Continued)

The Group (Continued)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

30. mEMBMRR XA ZTEHR

(&)

b) ERIAECEHREEREE

(&)

REE (B)

TOIRHLR 5 S 5 HEER

for financial reporting purposes: BB O
2013 2012
—ZE—=F —ET-C_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Deferred tax assets Réra M BIRRAER
recognised in BRCBELEHIBEE
the consolidated
statement of
financial position 141 152
Deferred tax liabilities A R R A
recognised in RZIBEERIEEE
the consolidated
statement of
financial position (82,401) (95,955)
(82,260) (95,803)
———
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30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised (Continued)

The Company

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the statement of financial position and the movements
during the year are as follows:

30. MEMBMRRERAZFEHR

(&)

b) ERIAEEHBEBEERERE

(&)

ZNNE
R AR SR M T RR BV IR A7 1R
BESORERFRANESHT
(N

Withholding tax

mmn

RMB’000

AR®TT

At 1 January 2012 RN-—_E——F—A—H (2,179)
Charged to profit and loss B AEB= R (369)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=ZHA=+—H (2,548)
Charged to profit and loss EPNEEl (641)
At 31 December 2013 Bn-—E—=%+"H=+—H (3,189)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 31 December 2013, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
carried forward of approximately RMB11,461,000 (2012:
RMB22,357,000) is due to expire within 1 to 5 years under
the current tax legislation for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the Group in which the losses arise. The
cumulative tax losses have not been recognised as a
deferred tax asset as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

(c)

HARBRZBELEHAEE

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8 "
REBEWARERELEE RFFHIA
B8 (BB E RIPUE R ELE
BZ—EZRFREE - LUIKEA
SEBZZERTRT) AR
11,461,000 (ZZE——4F : AR
#22,357,0007T) B FAREER IR
BE - R HIEEBI R ER
RIELERIEEE - JIRRERR
MG REER REEB T ARG
A SEBIIRE B 2 R R E R R
F o
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31.

178

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 31. EXKfRE
(a) The reconciliation between the opening and closing () AEBELREEDSBEERIIHR
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated FURFREBZHREANREGRE
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes BmEEERNA - ARAMER#ER
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s RN EVIRFR 2 EEF
individual components of equity between the beginning BET T
and the end of the year are set out below:
Share Convertible
Share option  Translation bonds Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ERES
BhaE BREEE - AHEH 1 | 2HER ax
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARRTR ARRTR ARMTRT ARWTT ARWTR
Balance at 1 January 2012 W-B--f-F-Bl&H §78,366 28,376 86 241200 (106151 1,042,626
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (63,974) (63,974)
Other comprehensive expense for the year  REREEH2 AR - = (60) = = (60)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEE2EF LS - - (60) - (63,974) (64,034)
Equity-settled share-based payments ~ MABRIEEE LR BER 2 (45 - 2,790 = = = 2,790
Lapse of share options BREX K - (403) = = 403 =
Balance at 31 December 2012 RIB-Z£+-A=1-Rk
and 1 January 2013 “E-Z5-f-Ru&H §78,366 30,763 766 241200 (169722) 981,382
Loss for the year T5EEE - - - = (287,879) (287,879)
Other comprehensive expense for the year A E i 2% - - (1,704) = = (1,704)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFE2ARYAE - - (1,704) - (287,879) (289,583)
Issue of new shares BTHRA
— Share placement - BirRE 77,454 - - - = 77,454
— Conversion of convertible bonds - BATRRESR 231,931 - - (241,209) = (9.278)
Transaction costs attributable to RONRHEERARA
issue of new shares (2,830) - - - - (2,830)
Equity-settled share-based payments ~ MIRIEEE MR AEE 25 - 502 - - - 592
Lapse of share options BRELK - (506) - = 506 =
Balance at 31 December 2013 RZB-ZE+ZAST-RZER 1,184,921 30,849 (939) - 7098 757,737

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2013
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31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continueq)

(b) Authorised and issued share capital

31. EXRKfRE @
b) EERBEEITRA

The Group and the Company

FEERFLT
2013 2012
—E-=§ —E-CF
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
BRH®E g ] BHEE G|
’000 RMB’000 000 RMB’000
Tk AR®TTE T ARETT
Authorised ordinary shares #E — SREE
of HK$0.01 each: 0.01 Tz &iEA :
At 1 January w—A—H 10,000,000 94,610 10,000,000 94,610
Increase in authorised B0EE A
share capital (note (i) GED) 10,000,000 79,454 — —
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 20,000,000 174,064 10,000,000 94,610
Issued and fully paid = E®TRERE
Ordinary shares of — BREE
HK$0.01 each: 0.01 8Tz &iEA :
At 1 January n—A—H 3,942,505 34,828 3,942,505 34,828
Issue of shares by FERRMHEE
share placement (note (i) 1T (R EE(ii) 400,000 3,227 = =
Issue of shares ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁ BB ES
upon conversion BT (B3 Gii)
of convertible bonds
(note (ii) 1,119,231 9,278 - -
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 5,461,736 47,333 3,942,505 34,828
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TRRF/EAGRESTREIR
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled Z B RRART] é\%ﬁt?ﬁ

to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.

.
il

—EC-FFHR PEEBREERE

B—RZREE - AT BRRY
ARBZRBREEDZFAREE
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31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continueq)

180

(b) Authorised and issued share capital

(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Increase in authorised share capital

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 18 June 2013, the Company’s
authorised ordinary share capital was increased from
HK$100,000,000 to HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB174,064,000) by the creation of
an additional 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each, ranking pari passu with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company in all respects.

Issue of ordinary shares

On 9 April 2013, the Company allotted and issued a
total of 400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the capital of the Company at a placing price
of HK$0.25 per placing share by way of placement
to independent investors. The net proceeds from
the placing amounted to approximately
HK$96,492,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB77,851,000).

Conversion of convertible bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Convertible Bonds with aggregate principal amounts
of HK$291,000,000 were converted into the
Company'’s ordinary shares at a conversion price of
HK$0.26 per share. As a result of the conversion,
1,119,230,769 ordinary shares of the Company were
issued.

31. EXRKfRE @

EEREBITRE @)

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013

188 055 FE B AR
BEARNRBRENR =T —=
E£XA+NBRITZRER
MRS BBIFRIAZESR -
RABZEE L BIRAER
18 2% 554N 10,000,000,000
KERAEEC.OIBITZ LR
A% H#3100,000,00078 JT 1% AN
Z200,000,0007 7T (FHE R
#) AR #174,064,0007T) -
ZEROES FEEARQR]
WAL ERARSHA -

BITEZBER
R-Z—=FPWANE ' &
RE)BBRABLIREELE
ZAR  UABREER®D
0.258 7T 2 (BIR L% R 31T
A $£400,000,0008% A~ 2 7]
EARRGREE.ONETLY
@A - BLE S RIEF 5
#17/596,492,0005 7T (A&
R AR®77,851,000
JT) °

B ] R AR fE 5
BHE-_E—=F+=-A=+
—BLEFE AeBEA
291,000,000/ 7T 2 7] #2 J%
&% RER0.26B TR
REESRARARLER -
BT - NARIAE
7 % B KR = 3
1,119,230,7690% °
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31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continueq)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
share premium is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of share premium if (i) it is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital account.

General reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC, each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to appropriate at least 10% of its after-tax profit (after
offsetting prior years’ losses), based on the PRC
statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) and financial regulations
applicable to PRC enterprises, to the general reserve
until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of the
PRC subsidiary’s registered capital. Thereafter, any
further appropriation can be made at the directors’
discretion.

The general reserve fund can be utilised to offset
the prior years’ losses, or be utilised to increase the
capital on the condition that the general reserve shall
be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital after such increase.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the portion of
the grant date fair value of unexercised share options
granted to executive directors, employees and
consultants of the Group that has been recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share-based payments in note 2(q)(ii).

“E--FFHR PEBERE

ECE—=FF+ A=+ —HILFE

31. EXKREE @

(c) fHE2]

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

RERAEREXEEBRATF

T E N B

gD =
REREBHSARIE - KD
BRI DR T ARBRR
HE e (1) 20 I By B EL 1R R
EEEZMEE  KMHEBEE
AEREERMIRERARE
MEBTRAR 2 4£5 - Al
ARBPIBEIRSGKALE
SR D (B R R A
i e

— R B
BETPREBEERER
BEHRBENEARREERT
FEEER  ASARER
AREFEL ([AREFHE
A)) kP RESEER B
RORE 2 i BUAE B 753k
= BEHEBRERMNELR
PIORER—REE B2
BEov B EITREWEA
AlEMEARZ50%A1E - &
% ERTMBERAEELE
R EINEE K o

— BB T AER B
FRERIA RN E
A AR - — R
BRERFTORNEMERL
25% ©

BRERE

BREREBRERTASE
WITES - BB RERAK
ITEERENR L BERAF
BB - %3 D EREM
2(0)) (i) PT L 5 DA BR 15 75 B it
B AT A B & 5T R T
T AR ©
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31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continueq)

31. EXRKfRE @

182

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(u).

(v) Convertible bonds reserve
The convertible bonds reserve represents the value
of unexercised equity component of convertible
bonds issued by the Company. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2(m).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

© REZHEERBEN @)

(d)

(iv) BEHE
REREREMERERN
¥BUBRREECERZE
B o MERBRRHTE2)
8z estBRER -

(v) FHRREZS R
AR ESFEEIE AR A E
TR AR B2 M R T T(E
mEp D 2 BE - ZRHEIRE
B FE2(m) P 80 H & 5T IR BE
B o

EXRERE

AEEEREAZTERERME
RARERFELLEZ/EN - LA
BREERE®R  TEFREER
BBEAREE SRR -

AR EEERI F Bt kI EEE
BAGRE  WEZARESBR
[B] ¥ B2 72 2 & AR A AR 2 B
SEEKF2HEGEFE - XA
EREBRLEERHENEIBIE
HAEAE - RERKABRERE
B AEETRAEIRNTRR
ZEREER  BITHRIHLEER
EAREETR
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31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continueq) 3. EXRf#E

(d) Capital management (Continued) d) EXEE (%)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt
comprises the Group’s bank and other borrowings and
obligations under finance leases less cash and cash
equivalents as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Adjusted capital comprises equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position

REBUBEBEHEABRERL X
ERHEBANERE - L ERIRFE
ERUNEABEARTE - FAE
BREASEZRITREAMERIA
MBBEHOEAERRE KRS
BY (WEREMBRRKRAT) ©
KABREARBIEARNRAERRE
FEAE#E s (Q0AR A B AS AR R R P
T INFEE -

plus net debt.

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as at 31 December RIE—=FR_T——_F+=
2013 and 2012 are as follows: A=1t—BZ B EHKRARE
REEEMT -
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-CF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T ARET T
Bank and other borrowings 817 K E b & X 26 165,751 116,000
Obligations under BhE LA
finance leases 27 63,506 6,152
Less: Cash and cash B BekBReEEY
equivalents 24 (17,656) (29,437)
Net debt FERE 211,601 92,715
Equity attributable to RArE=RREGRER
equity shareholders
of the Company 805,427 1,000,060
Adijusted capital Kl PN 1,017,028 1,092,775
Net debt-to-adjusted FAREY B =
capital ratio 20.81% 8.48%
———

—EC-FFHR PEEBREERE
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32. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 2. UREAEURGAER 2
TRANSACTIONS 5

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 18 May 2011 and will remain in force for a
period of 10 years. The purpose of the Scheme is to attract
and retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), directors,
consultants and advisers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no new share
options were granted to eligible participants under the Scheme

(2012: Nil).

(@ The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

AnElm BT 8 ([xaTEl)) TR
BARARER-_Z——FHA TN
Elgﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁ#—irﬂllﬁAtLiﬁjt‘ R
BERM - XHRN T FHEAFER
xJI Zat B MRRS|I RIRB B
ABE MASENEE (2B EE
B) - BF - dAEARE REREREEREI
BRE > WIREANKEEBKKY

BE_ZT-—=F1+-_A=1—HL#HF
B BEREBZAENAERSEE
RoFBERE(CTE——F: §) -

@ BHEXRREHEDAT

Number Contractual
of options Vesting conditions life of options
BEREsA 5% B8 1% £ BEEaVED
Options granted:
EREBRE
30 May 2011 215,220,000 Vest immediately 10 years
—E——%HA=+H BN 55 8 T+
30 May 2011 43,080,000 50% are exercisable at any time 10 years
after the expiry of 1 year from
the date of grant up to 2 years
from the date of grant; and 100%
are exercisable at any time after
the expiry of 2 years from
the date of grant up to 10 years
from the date of offer.
—ET——FAA=+H S50%AI A H B IR M1FE T
R B E R M2 E BB R TT(E
K 100%F] A #X H B B e ET M2 F &=
ZX A B M10F EAREBE R 1T o
Total share options
granted
BB AR A S 258,300,000

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013
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32. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:

Ak 5 Y 205 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

2. UREEEURGAER

R5 (@)
(b) BEAREZ 8 A RANETHITEE

The following table discloses movements in the
Company’s share options under the Scheme during the

mF

TERRBBE-T =417
=+ ALEERH AT LA

year ended 31 December 2013: NEEREZE
Number of
Period during Exercise  Outstanding  share options Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
which share price  at1dJanuary granted during during during at 31 December
Date of grant options are exercisable per share 2013 the year the year the year 2013
R28-ZF
RZS-=% FhiH +ZA=+-B
BN RRETTESR SRiTER -A-DXfT& <WEERKA ERERE EREXN X
HK$
&
30/6/2011 30/6/2011-29/5/2021 049 215,220,000 - - (2,500,000 212,720,000
30/6/2011 30/6/2012-29/5/2021 049 17,270,000 - - - 17,270,000
30/5/2011 30/6/2013-29/5/2021 049 17,270,000 - - - 17,270,000
249,760,000 - - (2,500,000 247,260,000
Exercisable at the end of year
RERTTHE 247,260,000
Weighted average exercise price (HKS)
mETHiRE (En) 0495 - - 049 0495

“ECFFR PEEBREBRESREXSEERRAF
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32. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

186

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

32.

L/L HJ'L *E n\l:l
Rz @)

BURODAERZ

(b) FEREZEB RINEFHITEE

share options are as follows: (Continued) wmr (&)
The following table discloses movements in the TEREBBHZE-_T——_F+=A
Company’s share options under the Scheme during the =+—BHUEFEZFEBETI AR
year ended 31 December 2012: NEEBREZE
Number of
Period during Exercise Qutstanding ~ share options Exercised Lapsed Qutstanding
which share price at1January  granted during during during  at 31 December
Date of grant options are exercisable per share 2012 the year the year the year 2012
RZ2--F
RZF-Z% Emgitiz T-A=t-H
it A BRENTES RTRE —-A-BAE ERERA EREfE ERBRR AfTfE
HKS$
BT
30/5/2011 30/5/2011-29/5/2021 0495 215,220,000 - - - 215,220,000
30/6/2011 30/6/2012-29/5/2021 0495 19,245,000 - - (1,975,000) 17,270,000
30/5/2011 30/5/2013-29/5/2021 0495 19,245,000 - - (1,975,000 17,270,000
253,710,000 - - (3,950,000 249,760,000
Exercisable at the end of year
RERTTHE 232,490,000
Waighted average exercise price (HKS)
mETHiRE (En) 0495 - - 0495 0495
No share options were exercised during the years ended BHE_Z——FR-_ZF—=%F+=-A

31 December 2012 and 2013.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had an
exercise price of HK$0.495 (2012: HK$0.495) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.4 (2012:

8.4) years.

=+ BULEFEREBREREITE -

R-B-—Z=F+ZA=+—HZRIT
{FERARIEZITEER0.495B T (ZF

— & :0.495%70) - #R TN Z INEF
HELNFHRABTAF(ZE——F : 84

F) -
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32. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(©

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted
to the directors and employees is measured based on
the Binomial option pricing model to reflect the impact of
vesting period, exit rate and exercise pattern on the option
value.

. L/(HJ'L *E II\I:I

BURAER
RS (&)

() BEREZAFENMRR :

BT EERIESNBRIES it
ATFETRE-IEA T EH
R B URBBEE - RiHE
DR E R R EEE Y

Fair value at measurement date R ERBZATE
Share price at measurement date Rt =B RE
Exercise price 1B
Expected volatility REKIE
(expressed as a weighted average (RE BB
volatility used in the modelling under
the Binomial option pricing model)
Option life
(expressed as a weighted average life
used in the modelling under
the Binomial option pricing model)

FR I HE
(R IR HHE

Expected dividends BERE
Risk free interest rate EEBR M=

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility due to publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

The fair values of the share options granted to employees
amounted to approximately RMB394,000 (2012:
RMB1,909,000) has been recognised as an expense in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

—EC-FFHR PEEBREERE

é o
2011
—E——%
HK$0.21418 7T — HK$0.3122/8 7T
HK$0.4957 7T
HK$0.4957 7T

EBEEAMA g RIEST)

85.43-88.13%

EBRAMA 2 EFHFHHIR)

10 years F
Nil Z
0.468-2.368%

TR U8 TR IE LR e (R B E SR T
ZIEFEFERAE) RREERH - X
R & 2 B B # 3L R SOR B) 2 (X (] TR
@Eﬁ%bﬁﬂﬁk BHRETIRBEZ
RER/ELERFEH -  TEMERRR
“E)JTEK%Q"AﬁEWﬂaJr

RTEEMNEREZ AFESEOA
AR¥394,000C (ZFE—=—F : AR
#1,909,0007T) ' EREBE=ZT—=
F+-_A=+—HLEFEZHEEGER
RANERAE—BHRAX -
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32.

33.

188

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Fair value of share options granted to consultants

The Company measures the fair value of share options
granted to consultants by reference to the fair values of
services rendered. The fair values of the share options
granted to consultants amounted to approximately
RMB198,000 (2012: RMB881,000), of which
approximately RMB24,000 (2012: RMB105,000) has been
recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2013
and approximately RMB174,000 (2012: RMB776,000) has
been recognised as other prepayments in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31
December 2013.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to June 2012). Contributions
to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC participate
in a mandatory central pension scheme organised by the PRC
Government for certain of its employees, the assets of which
are held separately from those of the Group. Contributions
made are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The
employer’s contributions vest fully once they are made.

2. UEKELEEUROAERZ

R (@)
O BT HmERN BRE 2 ATE

KRR EMRHERE 2 AFE
SAERTHEABERZBEREZA
TE o HTHABERNERE L
NFESELHAARE198,000
T(ZE——F : AR¥881,000
JT) R AR24,0007T (=
T——F : AR%105,0007T) B
REBE-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—
HIEFEZHRABRRANERS
—IHAX  HARK174,0007T
—T——F: AR®776,000
TEER-_ZE—=F+_"A=+
—BZEEMBRARAERE
HMIB A -

33. ERE AR AT

REBREANRBBERFBIEOISES
BvEE  REFERHELESE
EMEFIR R FIEATES B ([8FE
©rrEll) - BESFEIIEHRBILIET
ABIE 2 EREIURAKE S - BIER
BeitE  BEXREEBESAEKRE
BAEBRA Z5%MAEES FHE{EH &
# 5 AR ZHEBKA LR A25,000%
T (ZE—Z—F /X AR A20,000/%
TL) o BRESEEIHRERNEEREE

P e

ARARRABEKLZMERAR SRS
TREREZ2E b EBNTEN 28 1%
RREKREEE - ZAtB2BEERAR
SE2EESHRTE - REZTEZ
FA - AEBREEREBEZFH DL
REH MR AR FE A R & 3
B o BEHRFNELRIANZHER
BEFME -
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33. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLAN (Continued)

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of existing and
retired employees are payable by the relevant scheme
administrators and the Group has no further obligations beyond
the annual contributions.

The aggregate amounts of employer’s contributions by the
Group in respect of retirement benefits scheme dealt with in
profit or loss for the year are disclosed in note 7(a) to these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for its
employees in respect of the subsidiaries outside Hong Kong
and the PRC. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2013 in respect of the retirement of its
employees (2012: Nil).

—EC-FFHR PEEBREERE

33.

Ak 5 Y 205 e B

=Ft A=+ —HIFE

RINEHE (@)

ERHERER

Rig EaliEt S - REMERKER 2R
KEMBERETEEREABRESN
AEERESFHINILEEMEA -

AEBBERKBMEIEL ZBEH
REBERFAZBRTREE  TER
WEHEEMBRERMET (@ HE -

REBWEREELPEAIMER
A Z B BRI AEREME RSB -
RRAREBEERR RF—=F1=
A=+—RB AEEVETFAEHHE
BERARZEARXABE(ZT—=
FE) -

EREXEERRAA 189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bos 5 YA 265 A 25 Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 4. cRIAESE

190

CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REBRREHRANEEEMIAY
instruments of the Group as at the end of the reporting period BREEMT -
are as follows:
The Group
x5E
2013 2012
=% —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBF T
Financial assets eMEE
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEHABRR
through profit or loss ZEmEE
Held for trading BIEER 200 200
Loans and receivables B &R
Trade and other receivables JE LS AR SR % HL At e U SRR 32,268 91,522
Cash and cash equivalents BehRESEEY 17,656 29,437
Financial liabilities eMER
At amortised cost LA S5 K AR 7)) BR
Trade and other payables JE <1 BR R % HL b FE 5 5B 342,426 266,239
Bank and other borrowings RIT R HMER 165,751 116,000
Obligations under finance leases &l & & #IE 63,506 6,152
~—_
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments of the Company as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

4. cMIESE @

ARFRBERRNEREMTAL
PREEMT :

The Company

b /N |
2013 2012
—E—Z=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREETIT
Financial assets EMEE
Loans and receivables B R ZER G TE
Trade and other receivables JE W BR R N H b fE W FRIE 227,012 136,018
Cash and cash equivalents BeEBEEEED 4,176 455
Financial liabilities eMmAR
At amortised cost LA#E 85 5k AN 51| BR
Trade and other payables JE AT BR SR N H Ath FE A5 5K IB 6,262 8,169
Other borrowing H i ER 43,351 =
~—_
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35.

192

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, bank
and other borrowings and obligations under finance leases.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk arises in the normal course
of the Group’s business. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. There has been
no change to the types of the Group’s exposure in respect of
financial instruments or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risks.

(a) Credit risk

()  As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s and the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the consolidated and company statements
of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance.

(i) Inrespect of trade and other receivables, in order to
minimise risk, the management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations
of its customers’ financial position and condition are
performed on each major customer periodically.
These evaluations focus on the customers’ past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customers
operate. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets. Trade debts are usually
due within 30 to 180 days from the date of billing.

Bb.EMIBEZHBERABREER

AV

REBZTESRTARTERATE
AAABRmZEREE  BURREHE
W HIE - REe KRS FEY &
° BR R R B At FE AN FRIR - SRTT R HoAh
EBRARMERERE - @RITAEZ
HBERESAMENE - Z2F2RT
AZHARRERASEEREERR
BRTPELZEERR  RBHESRA
@ MERER - ERERNEMER
Rk  EREERREAZEZRAR -
AREREENKBREEZEMEE ©
AEBEReRIAZARAISHE
EENAERR TALEES -

@ FERB

() M-_ZE—=F+-A=+—
B AEBRARFZEAN
SERBRALRE RARMK
MRARAZTES B EELN
BREMBEREERED
g -

(i) AERIEEBERREAM
EWFIEZ Rk - EEED
R —IEEEER - WHA
BEERMETRHERLR -
AEBEEETHHEEIERP
2R NG EITEER
A o REEHEE /A
FXEIERIBE B KRB
Al Teeh - WEREP
REERREPEEMEL
BEIRBCER - AEBEFH
CRIEET T EREBIKE
me BES5EK—REMER
HEAAE302 180H W EIHE o
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND /. TR T ACHBREREER
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DNE @)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued) @)
(i) (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and country
in which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group has certain
concentration of credit risk as 94.71% (2012:
90.51%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s five largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s and the Company'’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade and other receivables are set out
in note 23.

(i) The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

(b) Liquidity risk (b)

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
board to directors’ approval. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term. The Group relies on bank and other
borrowings as a source of liquidity.

_i__ﬂziiﬁ Ep. yrum %

1§§H PR \ﬁW)
iy (&)

zl&%lﬁﬂzﬁff REZ

REREP ZER) \!ﬁ'?&; o
BPEE ZITEREBE
ZBERZEARRITEHER

ERAEFE  BREERK -
ﬁAqﬁ&iHﬁE rEEE—F
EEMNEESEHTRR  RA
EREUAEBRAARFEZIE
WERFE £ B 294.71%
(ZZE—Z=F :90.51%) °

ERAEERAARIREE
AR FR R H A R IB 2 (=
ERBzE—FSENHES
KT EE23 o

(i) BARHFHTHLEBRKREER
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EEZEZHEER  PiER2
BHZEPRERERET AR
TR EF R WEAEESS
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

194

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Also as mentioned in note 2(b), the Group (i) has
successfully rolled-over its other borrowings of RMB
77,000,000 for 12 months; (ii) obtained undertaking from
Mr. Wang to provide continuing financial support to the
Group; (iii) subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
and in relation to the top-up placing and subscription,
880,000,000 subscription shares were allotted and issued
to Mr. Wang at the subscription price of HK$0.092 per
subscription share pursuant to the subscription agreement
dated 20 December 2013. The net proceeds from the
subscription are approximately HK$79,658,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB62,707,000); and (iv)
subsequent to the end of the reporting period, an
aggregate of 3,170,867,896 shares of the Company were
alloted on 6 February 2014 pursuant to an open offer of
3,170,867,896 new shares of HK$0.01 each on the basis
of one offer share for every two existing shares held on
the record date at the open offer price of HK$0.04 per
offer share. The net proceeds from the open offer are
approximately HK$123,405,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB97,160,000). All of the above steps
have been enable the Group to mitigate its liquidity risk.

The following tables set out the weighted average effective
interest rate and the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:

3/B. e TAECHERBREER
RAFE @)

(b)

REBETERE (@)

SHN - anbEE2(0) AT - ANER (i)
B I #8 A R #77,000,0007T,2
HMERZ EFMLERI12ER
(NS ERERAEBIRBIFE
IS iR 2GS ¢ ()P s
R RFEERNEE KR ﬁ%
ARARERBAHR-Z

+ —A=+—RZREWHZ E
R (E SRR B 0.092/8 LA
2% K 3£77880,000,0000% 2 B A% 19
TELAE - RESHEZMEHIE
SREAA) /79,658,000 7T (FHE
# AR ¥62,707,0007T) ¢ K(iv)
RBEBRERE - ARFIERZ
T—HF - ANBRERGTEAR
HEHFEMRREROEE R
BERNHCEE  RAREEE
BREERMCAETARAEE
8,170,867,896/% & JX A {E0.017%5
T Z R MH - B EEH
3,170,867,896/% %10 - AFEEE
Z B R IEFREODA
123,405,000 7T (FHERHAR
#97,160,0007T) o LiltfEpEsa]
/)3@$<«$%.Z/}|LQ,§$H "“ ©

TREINAEERARTZIEDT
£ BB ERRSEIRZ INEF
BERMERBNEOH - HE
MEHNARMRBSR (BRERE
IR (30 B) BB EHR
ZBITHM IR BZMENF) kA
SERARBATEEZRFA
HmERE :
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits and bank and other
borrowings and fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed rate bank and other borrowings.

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting

© HN=EEp

3B[b. TRMTECHBRRBREER
NEE @

AEEmH 2R REMNEER
Y B M RIRITIF A RRITR
H A (& 5KAER - A FERN KR
i I 8 [ TE A R 2 $R1T S LA {8

SRARRE -

(i)

R REER
TRANAREBEFTNRE
HIR 2 M RBER

period:
The Group
F5E
2013 2012
—Eg-= —E—_F
Weighted Weighted
average average
effective effective
interest interest
rates rates
miEFy g1
BR#=E BRI =
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
AR®TT ARETF T
Fixed rate FE A E K

borrowings:

Other loans HER 14.06% 140,351 8.58% 80,000
Floating rate FEFRER

borrowings:

Bank loans RITER 7.79% 25,400 7.16% 36,000
Total borrowings Biam 165,751 116,000
Fixed rate borrowings & & Fl| R & sk 4

as a percentage of  EBHZ AL

total borrowings 85% 69%
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND B.eMmITAEZHERBEER
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL AFE @
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) © F=ERER &)
(i) Interest rate profile (Continued) (i) FI=Z=LR (&)
The Company
/N
2013 2012
—Z2-=K —E——F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates rates
BERf® BERA=
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
AR%TR ARETT
Fixed rate EMEER
borrowings:
Other loan Hi & 15% 43,351 | N/ATEA -
Total borrowings BER 43,351 —
Fixed rate borrowings  [El7E FI 3 f& 5 42
as a percentage of  EBHZAESL
total borrowings 100% N/A i
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND B.eMITAZHERBEEER
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL AYE @
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) ) FZERpk (&)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BRED
The entire bank and other borrowings of the Group AREBRKRRARIFAERITR
and the Company which are fixed rate instruments ﬁ HEFRHEEEFEXT
are insensitive to any change in interest rates. A C ENREMEE R ET
change in interest rates at the end of the reporting ﬁ RS EAR 2 I =R & &)
period would not affect profit or loss. HEDTHENTE -
At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general R_E—=F+=A=+—
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest AETRER SR EASKT
rates, with all other variables held constant, would 5%1001%%5 AT E A
increase or decrease the Group’s loss after taxation EREREEE B2
and accumulated losses by approximately SERMEBERZFTER
RMB254,000 (2012: RMB360,000). Other Mk > HARKE
components of consolidated statement of changes 254,0007T (ZF—=F : A
in equity would not change in response to the general R #360,0007T) ° 4ra#Em
increase or decrease in interest rates. SERANEMAK PO
B ) 3 i sk T Bk i 2
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined LI BURE D AT T RER T R
assuming that the change in interest rates had SRR MERARBEEINE
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had AR B FEERZENFIZRIE
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for PTHE S BT AR N =R
floating rate non-derivative financial instruments in EE ° 10018 E 2 &Y 73k
existence at that date. The 100 basis points increase THRDARREEZEEEEAN
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk HERF R - RKRER
internally to key management and represents EBEAEREET — @RS
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible HRM B S ER seE E M
change in interest rates over the period until the end st e ZOMIRE_T——
of the next reporting period. The analysis is FZERIEEHELT -

performed on the same basis for 2012.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

200

(d) Currency risk

(i

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013

Exposure to currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB
must take place through PBOC or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rate adopted for foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by
the PBOC that would be subject to a managed float
against an unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance
of earnings outside the PRC, are subject to the
availability of foreign currency (which depends on
the foreign currency denominated earnings of the
Group) or must be arranged through the PBOC with
government approval.

The group entities collect most of the revenue and
incur most of expenditures in their respective
functional currencies. The directors consider that the
Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange is
insignificant as the majority of the Group’s
transactions are denominated in the functional
currency of each individual group entity. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exposure should the need arise.

5. emMIBECZHREREER
NEE @
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amounts of the Group’s major monetary assets
denominated in a currency other than the functional

3B[b. TRMTECHBRRBREER
NEE @

EWERE (@)

() EXREpmEEE)
RS ER - ANEBE LA
SEERNEERUINEY
B FEEMEENRE

currencies of the relevant group entities are as (EROENE
follows:
The Group REE
Exposure to foreign currency
b s R B K 2
2013 2012
—Ee—= —E—_F
Hong Kong Hong Kong
dollars dollars
& B TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
Cash and cash RekBEeFEY
equivalents 6,137 2,278
———
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s loss after taxation and
accumulated losses in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period.

3Bb.2RMITECHBERRBREER
NEE @

) E¥ER &)

(ii)

HRAE DT

TRIHA  RBEHR - K
SERBRE R RFTEE
R A& B AR EKE B
ErER SIREEE M
EEXZHOES -

The Group
2013
—Z-=K
Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss after

in foreign taxation and
exchange accumulated
rates losses

HExRE&

ExL#/ BRRRH
(TE) BRzZEE

rEE
2012
—E-—fF
Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss after

in foreign  taxation and
exchange accumulated
rates losses
HERBLE

BxLf,/ BERZH
(Tk) EBRzZYE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

Hong Kong dollars BT 5% (307) 5% (114)
(5)% 307 (5)% 114

J
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 —E— =4+ _HA=1+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND B.eMITAZHERBEEER
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL AYE @
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) ) E¥Rk (&)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the Group’s exposure to
currency risk for financial instruments in existence
at that date, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on each of the group
entities’ profit/loss after taxation. The stated changes
are used when reporting currency risk internally to
key management and represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the end
of the next reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2012.

(e) Other price risk

Oil and gas price risk

Apart from the financial instruments disclosed above, the
Group’s activities expose it to market risk relating to oil
and gas price risks.

The Group is engaged in a wide range of gas related
activities. The global oil and gas market is affected by
international political, economic and global demand for
and supply of oil and gas. A decrease in the world prices
of cruel oil and gas could adversely affect the Group’s
financial position. The Group has not used any derivative
instruments to hedge against potential price fluctuations
of crude oil and refined and gas products. The
management will consider hedging oil and gas exposure
should the need arise.

(i) BBEDN (&)
I RRE AT TR E
BERIREHRD L - I
EEARASERZBELE
ZERMTAEREZEER
b2 - BREFMBEMEH
(CEEMR) g EmeE
E o EREVNZHOMBERR
REASESERBGRE R
M EREEBYE . bt
SRR EEEEEANIBE
HEBRBEER KXE
BEEHEXREET —@ER
SHRIFHR 2 A REBESE
B E - B@ESTIRES
T F AR EAEHET -

(e) HE®EREKE

R R AR B R

BEXHBEEEBITASN - K
SEZEBERBCAEE AT A
HRERRRBEIT SRR -

AEEREERRAARBER
%o RIRAMERARTIEX 2
RBOA ~ KBERERAMBERA
RESKFARE - RANMNKARLZ
EIRER TR S AR E 2 5
ARRERTHIFE - REEIW K
ERERTETE - $#h R -
RIEREm M RARERZEE
ERRD - WERER  EHEE
& B h R ER R
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND B EMIECHHAEBEER

204

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL NEE &)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

P Fair value measurement ® LFETE
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at BRAVEFTEZEREERSRH
fair value afE
Fair value hierarchy NEEER

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

TREJNRFERARIEZLEEEE
R EZAERSHMTIAZNTF
B ZEATEREEVHRE
EAFE1SR A FHEFEREZ =
BAFEELRNE - AV EFE
OB EMERMNAFERZ
MABBCABEEREZENE
T

o FIMEHE: EUE1HE@A
gt E 2 ATE - BILASE
UEEXBENFTEREE
BMEBER 2 AFAERE

=
= -°

o FORIHE : B2 WA
& EITFEE1HR 2 AT ER
BAHIK FTE - BTER
BARZAAE R AR 2
NF{E o T B AR
AEFEGSHEEMSEE Y
o A BUE -

.« EIREE: EAEAZT
THRERAME B2 AT
=
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group

Recurring fair value measurements

3/5. TM T AU BEREER

-

Fair value measurements

RZB-ZE+ZAZ+-054

as at 31 December 2013 categorised into

NEE &)

®» 2DAFEFE B

BAVEEZEREER SR
&8E &)

RNFEFHR (E)

F&ME

ERELATHEEE

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2012 categorised into

RZE-ZF+-A=t-R%E

DTENZATENHE WTERz ATERE
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
NEE 18 %28 EAT AT 18 £24 23
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 | RMB'000 RMB'000 RVMB'000  RMB'000
AERTT ARMTT ABMTR ABMTR | ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Assets BE
Financial assets BATE
at fair value through iTAB&
profit or loss LEHEE 200 200 - - 200 200 = =

(.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

REBmZEECEMTAZR
FERBERE MR TS RE
g o

BE—_Z-—=%1t_-A=+—H
IEFE - BB RBR A E
R - TEAARA LI 2B
o ARBZBRERNEREH
RERAFEERKF 2 2H
g o
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36. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 36. TEFHREXRS
During the year ended 31 December 2012, additions to BHE_ZT——-F+-_A=+—HILHF
property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB2,576,000 B AEBYWE  BBEREEHOARE
were financed by the finance lease arrangements. 2,567,000 T T @t & T E e HE IR e
ig\ o
37. COMMITMENTS 37. A
(@) In addition to the finance lease arrangements and the (@) PBRMIFE1OM20FTFRF Mtz MERE
capital commitment to the registered capital of a PRC Pk R AN &R B AN — A R B U
subsidiary payable by the Group as detailed in notes 19 RNAFMER 2 BARALEIN
and 20, the Group had the following significant capital SEREZEEMBHREREFTHHER
commitments contracted but not provided for in the BB ERERNFAERNT :

consolidated financial statements:

The Group
EME
2013 2012
-2—= —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Acquisition of property, BB 2 - W25 R B
plant and equipment (BIEERIRE)
(including construction
in progress) 100,629 222,645

~——o

206 CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B v W 05 e o0 Wk

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

37. COMMITMENTS (continued) 37. E&iE
(b)  Atthe end of the reporting period, the total future minimum (b)) RBEHR - BERAEMEZ
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases TR HEHEEHAEN 2 AR R
in respect of office premises are payable as follows: EESERBREAT :
The Group The Company
*5E . 3|
2013 2012 2013 2012

=5 | —_E—-F| ZB—-Z=Zf | ZT—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTRE ARETT | ARBTR | AR®TX

Within 1 year 15R 576 444 576 444
After 1 year but 1F%B5FR
within 5 years 96 — 96 —
672 444 672 444
[ —
The Group leases a property held under operating lease AEBZLEERNEEYSE - HEA
with lease term of two years. The lease does not include MEF - BEBLHL M B TR A
contingent rentals. & o
38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. EEEKH
As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s 93.33% (2012: 100%) R—ZZB—=F+-A=+—8 ' &%
shareholding in Shanxi Qinshui were pledged. Details of the BRI 7KA993.33% (ZF——4F ¢
Group’s pledge of other assets are included in notes 16 and 100%) IREE /EE M - KEE 2 Bt
17 respectively. BERBDRENME16K17 -
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39.

208

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30. ERBEEALTRS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed in BRAGRE M B mEREME DR
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group MR P REEHIN  KEBEBFTZ T
entered into the following material related party transactions. ERFEALRS
For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the directors HE-_ZT—="FR-FT—Z-F+=A
are of the view that the followings are related parties of the =+—HBLEFE ESERAETNIEH
Group: RASBE ZHEANT :
Name of party Relationship FR&ESRE ME
WK BR BRI & Effectively owned 17% equity 07K B B ER—RKB A A
EREMEAA interest in Wanzhi Logistics as HEBR ZIHEEBRBRRE
(transliterated as a non-controlling shareholder BEERF] MR &L
Shanxi Qinshui of a subsidiary and provided ([EmEE]) RE17%RARE
Prefecture Chengrong financing to the Group = REAE
Investment Limited) of RMB48,000,000 as REESARY
(“Chengrong Investment”)  disclosed in note 26. 48,000,0007T (ZA
MizEo6RTH FR) ©
e ACES - Effectively owned 20% equity k5 9 §4 (5 2= EB—TEK B QA
BRAT] interest in Yangcheng Huiyang EEEX ZIEERKRRE
(transliterated as as a non-controlling shareholder ER AT R E B 15 9 E
Yangcheng Yangtai of a subsidiary and provided (53 F5ZR]) BB HI20%AR N
Group Industrial financing to the Group = RAAKE
Company Limited) of RMB29,000,000 as REESARK
(“Yangcheng Yangtai”) disclosed in note 26. 29,000,0007t, (A
BiEo6PTH: FR) o
BN B K RE R ETARFE  Effectively owned 20% equity EMEKEER (ER—HEWREBARA
BRAT] interest in Yangcheng Huiyang 9t AR 75 ZIEERKRRE
(transliterated as as a non-controlling shareholder BR AT R B B5  E
Zhengzhou Zhengcheng  of a subsidiary. (IBMEK]) BHE20%KRAH#
Energy Technology o
Service Company
Limited) (“Zhengzhou
Zhengcheng”)
CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30. ERBEEALTRS @

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of significant transactions between the Group (a) BE-_T—=FK_FT——F+
and the above related parties for the years ended 31 “A=+—BHLFE  AEEHE
December 2013 and 2012 are as follows: FIREAT 2RETZERR

SHEBWT
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2013 2012
REALTEE ZHMHE —E—= —ET——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Chengrong Investment Interest expenses 579 3,451
BRI E MERX
Yangcheng Yangtai Interest expenses 3,591 492
f5 9 15 2= MBERX

~
Note: M EE
The amounts represent interest expenses on loans due to the non- BREFIBIEENHBARIEERERZERZ
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries as detailed in note 26(b). FMBEFMAX - FFRME26(0) °
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

39. EXBAEANELRF (5

(b) Balances with related parties (b) BEEBEA Lz

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group and the
Company had the following balances with related parties:

RZF-—=FR-FT-—ZF+=
A=+t—8B ARERARAH
BIEATH NI -

() Amounts due from related companies (i) FEWRIELNRFIE
The Group xKE
Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the year
FARE
*EELH
2013 2012
2= —ET-C-f
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE | ARETT AR®TR
Chengrong Investment B gHIRE 29 - 29
Yangcheng Yangtai PR 6,000 6,000 6,000
Nopin Engineering #iE 2,696 2,447 2,696
Zhenghou Zhengcheng  ZBJ1 &% 4,800 7,800 4,800
13,525 16,247
—

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

CHINA LEASON CBM & SHALE GAS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Balances with related parties (Continued)

(i) Amounts due from directors

Ak 5 Y 205 e B

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE

39. EXBAEANELRF (5

(b) EEREEALZ&E (B)

(i) BRESHE

The Group x5KEH
Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the year
FARE
*RELH
2013 2012
—2-=§ | CZZ=-=§
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTRT AR®TT
Wang Zhong Sheng T8 - 691 691
Zhang Qing Lin (Note) R MK (BT EE) - 254 254
- 945
——— ——
The Company ENF
Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the year
FRBE
*EELH
) )
2013 2012
—$—= —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE | ARETR AR®FR

Wang Zhong Sheng TRB

1,795 1,361 1,795

The amounts due from the directors are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.
Note:

Zhang Qing Lin was retired on 27 May 2013.

ZERUESHEALSELR  2ER
AMBREE -

B 5E -

REMR _-_Z—=FRA_1+tHEME-

—E-=H5R TEEREERESREX£FEAR2T 0 21



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bos 5 YA 265 A 25 Y ik

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

212

(c)

30. EXHAEAETR S @

(b) Balances with related parties (Continued) (b) BEEEATZ&E& (&)

(i) Amounts due to directors/non-controlling (i) ERNESWBARZIEE
shareholders of subsidiaries &% A% B 3k I8
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and RE/BRFBREER - &
repayable on demand. BERBRERERE -

(iv) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries (iv) FEM (FEL) BB A RIZKIE
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and DERBRFBRERRT - &
repayable on demand. BRERERERER -

Key management personnel remuneration ) TEEBABZEHFM

Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBFEERABZFHM(BE

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors D RIRKMI FORMIFF10E TR 2 E

and the chief executive as disclosed in note 9 and certain NAEARREE TETHAER

of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10, is AETEEFMEE ZFIR) AT -
as follows:
The Group
%M
2013 2012
—Z—=F —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥ET T
Short-term employee HHEEERT
benefits 2,160 2,541
Post-employment benefits BB 12 12 7 38 50
Equity-settled share-based AR 45 & LARR 15
payment expenses RER Z2AHAX - 204
Total remuneration B RS
is included in “Staff costs” W [8 LKA
(note 7(a)) (Mf5E7(a) 2,198 2,795
~—
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40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

On 20 December 2013, Mr. Wang and the placing agent
entered into a placing agreement, and the Company and
Mr. Wang entered into the subscription agreement,
pursuant to which (i) the placing agent has agreed to
place, on behalf of Mr. Wang and on a best effort basis,
an aggregate of up to 880,000,000 existing shares
(beneficially owned by Mr. Wang) to not less than six
placees at the placing price of HK$0.092 per placing
share; and (ii) Mr. Wang has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, and the Company has conditionally agreed
to issue and allot, the subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.092 per subscription share.

The placing was completed on 30 December 2013 in
accordance with the placing agreement. An aggregate of
880,000,000 placing shares have been successfully
placed to not less than six placees who are independent
third parties, at the placing price of HK$0.092 per placing
share.

On 3 January 2014, 880,000,000 subscription shares
were allotted and issued to Mr. Wang at the subscription
price of HK$0.092 per subscription share pursuant to the
subscription agreement dated 20 December 2013. The
net proceeds from the subscription are approximately
HK$79,658,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB62,707,000).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, an
aggregate of 3,170,867,896 shares of the Company were
alloted on 6 February 2014 pursuant to an open offer of
3,170,867,896 new shares of HK$0.01 each on the basis
of one offer share for every two existing shares held on
the record date at the open offer price of HK$0.04 per
offer share. The net proceeds from the open offer are
approximately HK$123,405,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB97,160,000).

“E--FFHR PEBERE

40. REHRSEIR

(@)

RERAEREXEEBRATF

R-E—=F+—-"A-+B L
EAEREERET VRS W:E -
AR BB T S A BIRT S R BB 179
#BRUO)ESEREBEERERR
ThE  BRAHAEERTDRA
HERBAEEEGERXRZS
880,000,000/ 3R B % 1n (A £ 4%

ExlEa)  BREEATREE
B85 0.0928 7T « R()EELEEHE
BKHERERE  MARREHIK
HREHITREZERERS - R
FEE A TIRRIEAR(10.0928 7T -

ERRBREEHBENR T —=F+
“A=+THREKESE - & #
880,000,000/% i & I% 5 E = RR BE
EETRAERK0.09278 7T
BEFALRAZBBILE=ZF
ZAEBEA o

R-—ZT—ME—A=H  2RE
HBA - —=F+=-RA=+H
ZREHE  EREEERAE
17 0.0927% Jr id 8 & % 17
880,000,0000% REE M 15 F E %
Ao REBEIR S RIEFEED
/79,658,000 HHERHAR
#62,707,0007T) °

RBEBRERE - ARAERZ
T—NF = ANBREBERGLEA
HERAMRREROEE R
BERD 2 EERARBREES
BEERMKB0.04FB TAMBEE
3,170,867 ,896 X AR EfE0.018 7T
¥R - BiE4 $£3,170,867,896
BRARBRAD - AFBEEZFTE
RIAFEFA A H123,405,0007%8 7T
(FHERHARI7,160,000
JT) °
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41.

214

IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE 4. BEERATRAINRRARERA
CONTROLLING PARTY
At 31 December 2013, the directors consider the immediate RZE—=F+"A=1T—H EER
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Jumbo AAEBEEREN AR NRKIERS AS
Lane Investments Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI. EREARAR  —KRRBEXEE
Jumbo Lane Investments Limited does not produce financial MK AR - BEREGRAGNE
statements available for public use. ERAEARERA T B®RE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T A 1 5 4 22

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=F+_H =1 —HIFFE
RESULTS ¥
For the year ended 31 December
HE+-A=t+-HLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—$-=f | _ T C—T——F C"ZT-TH C"ITINF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR | ARETE AR%®Tr ARETRT AR¥ETR
Turnover EEE 187,184 183,834 253,849 230,989 40,056
Loss from operations MSEBEL Y FR (76,196) (26,913 (15,036) (8,150) (17,645)
Finance costs HBER (27,657) (7,214) (8,762) (9,681) (4,260)
Gain on remeasuring existing  EWEME#H €
interest in as AHHERE
available-for-sale BA#ER s
investment on acquisition - — — 4,960 —
Fair value (loss)/gain on other Ett 4 @ EE
financial assets ZAFE(BR)
e - (17,051) 17,051 = =
Fair value (I0ss)/gain on ARBREFITE
the derivative component of T AZ3 2 A&
convertible bonds (B8) /s - = (6,487) 3,223 =
Impairment loss on goodwill  EEREFIE (163,000 (2,339) (21,492) = (52,971)
Impairment loss on BREEREBRE
intangible assets (25,000) — — — —
Loss before taxation B 75 A 5 1R (291,853) (58,517) (34,726) (9,648) (74,876)
Income tax credit/(charge) FiEHiKe,/ (Bx) 13,092 (7,945) (14,609) (871) 251
Loss for the year from REFBELEEK
continuing operations ZAFEER (278,761) (61,462) (49,335) (10,519) (74,625)
(Loss)/profit for the year from R EE & L& &
discontinued operations XBIAFE
(&518) /&7 - - - (11,947) 15,795
Loss for the year AEEER (278,761) (61,462) (49,335) (22,466) (58,830)
Attributable to: ToI s -
Equity shareholders ARAERRE
of the Company (271,440) (55,130) (45,016) (20,493) (58,741)
Non-controlling interests JefE Rt (7,321) (6,332) (4,319) (1,973) (89)
Loss for the year AEEEE (278,761) (61,462) (49,335) (22,466) (58,830)

———

_i__$$$|§ Ep. yrum %
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 = F—=4F+_H =+ —HIFF/E
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
At 31 December
R+=B=+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—8-=% | _Z_-Ff CT-——% C"TZT-TF C"IZITNE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | AR®Tx ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Total assets BERE 1,506,671 1,545,761 1,396,942 713,299 545,025
Total liabilities BaE (685,922) (523,058) (315,545 (258,971) (275,176)
Non-controlling interests FiER R (15,322) (22,643) (28,975) (21,294) (2,527)
Equity attributable to equity AR EIERFRE
shareholders Efh R
of the Company 805,427 1,000,060 1,052,422 433,034 267,322
D —
216
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